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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE Q L{ (—I :

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH ,
Lori A. Weaver ‘ : 129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301

Commissioner 603-271-9544  1-300-852-3345 Ext. 9544
Fax: 603-271-4332 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov

Katja 8, Fox

Director
May 30, 2025
Her Excellency, Governor Kelly A. Ayotte
and the Honorable Council
State House.
Concord, New Hampshire 03301
REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Health,
to amend an existing contract with NAMI New Hampshire (VC #166630), Concord, NH, to
continue providing Family Mutual Support Services and supporting the Critical Incident Stress
Management trainings, by exercising a contract renewal option. by increasing the price limitation
by $1,430,204 from $3,071,357 to $4,501,561 and by extending the completion date from June
30, 2025 to June 30, 2027, effective upon Governor and Council approval. 2% Federa! Funds,
88% General Funds.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on June 30, 2021, item #18
and amended on June 15, 2022, item #22; May 17, 2023, item #25; December 20, 2023, item
#31; and most recently amended on August 30, 2024, item #24.

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Year 2025 and are
anticipaled to be available in State Fiscal Years 2026 and 2027, upon the availability and
continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget
line items within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the
Budget Office, if needed and justified.

See attached fiscal details.

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is for the Department to exercise an available renewal option
for the Contractor to continue providing family support, peer-run support groups, and suicide
prevention services through education and advocacy for adults and families affected by Serious
Mental iliness (SMI); and children and their families affected by Serious Emotional Disturbance
(SED), statewide. The Contractor will continue supporting in-Reach Services at Glencliff Home
and the Ciritical Incident Stress Management (CISM) Trainings that meet federal Bipartisan Safer
Community Act (BSCA) grant requirements to provide critical incident training to first responders,
DCYF staff and other providers. Additionally, the Contractor will continue providing an array of

. frainings based on best practices for suicide prevention and post intervention for individuals,

family members, service providers, and the general public.

The Contractor will continue providing information to the public through web-based media
and distribute electronic and printed materials approved by the Department on topics that include
family support and education programs, as well as resources for survivors of a suicide loss.

The Contractor is @ member organization of the New Hampshire Suicide Prevention
Council and will continug supporting the implementation of the goals of the suicide prevention
council’s strategic plan.
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The Department will continue to monitor Contracted services through review of data
reports, periodic surveys, and other data as requested by the Department to ensure:

¢ A minimum of eight (8) training sessions are held each month;

¢ One-on-one family support programming for a minimum of 125 individuals
- annually; - :

+ Web-based support groups serve a minimum of 120 famities/caregivers. annually;

+ Family, friends, peer, and caregiver education classes are held for a minimum of.
175 participants annually;

* Responses to a minimum of 1,000 phone, e-mail, social media messaging, andfor
in-person inquiries annually;

o Community presentations are conducted to a minimum of 400 family members and
the general public annually on a variety of topics related to promoting awareness
of treatment and recovery, suicide prevention, and early interventions, and
advocacy.

o In-Reach services are available to residents at the Glencliff Home through an In-
Reach Liaison who, in collaboration with the in-reach case manager, assists
residents with exploring steps to transitioning back into the community.

o Coordination of three (3) CISM trainings including atiendee registrations and event
logistics.

As referenced in Exhibit A, Revisions to Standard Agreement Provisions, of the original
agreement, the parties have the option to extend the agreement for up to four (4) additional years,
contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the parties and
Governor and Council approval. The Department is exercising its option to renew services for the
remaining (2) years available.

Should the Governor and Council do not authorize this request, individuals with SMI, their
families, and parents of children with SED will lose access to essential family peer support and
sulcide prevention services. These services are critical components of the mental health system
. that help individuals and families navigate complex care needs and prevent crises. Without them,
emergency departments will see increased boarding of psychiatric patients and community
mental health centers (CMHCs) will face greater strain. Critical incident stress management
trainings are necessary fo create competent providers who are prepared to address crisis
situations in the state. Additionally, this contract enables to Department to meet terms of the
Olmstead Settlement Agreement (CMHA) and federal block grant requirements for family support
and suicide prevention.

Area served: Statewide.
Source of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Number #93.958, FAIN #B09SM089203.

Respectfully submitted,

Commissioner

The Depariment of Health and Human Services’ Mission is to join communities and fam:‘liés
in providing opportunities for citizens lo achieve health and independence.



DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
RFP-2022-DBH-01-FAMIL-01-AD5
FISCAL DETAIL SHEET

-

05-95-92-922010-41190000 HEALTH AND.SCCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF, HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV OF
vt BUREAU OF MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES, FAMILY MUTUAL SUPPORT SERVICES

100% General Funds

Vendor Name: NAMI NH Veridor # 166630-B001

State Fiscal Class / Account Class Title Job Number | Current Amount Increase Revised Amount
Year (Decrease)
2022 102:5Q0731 Contracts for Program Services 92204119 $522, 637.00 $0.00 $522,637.00
‘2023 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92204118 $522,637.00 $0.00 $522,637.00
2024 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92204119 $547,637.00 $0.00 $547,637.00
2025 102-500731 Caontracts for Program Services 92204119 $547,637.00 $0.00] $547,637.00
2026 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92204119 $0.00 $522.637.00 $522,837.00
2027 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 922041198 $0.00 $522,637.00 $522,637.00
Sub Tofal $2,140,548.00 $1,045,274.00 "$3,185,822.00

05-95-92-922010-41170000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF, HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV OF,
BUREAU OF MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES, CMH PROGRAM SUPPCRT
100% General Funds

: o’
Vendor Name: NAMI NH ' Vendor # 166630-B001

State Fiscal Class / Account Class Title Job Number. Current Amount Increase Reviseﬁ Amount
Year . (Decrease)
2022 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92204117 " $100,000.00] $0.00 $100,000.00
2023 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92204117 $192,465.00 $0.00 $192,465.00
2024 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92204117 $192,465.00 $0.00 $192.465.00
2025 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 02204117 $192,465.00 $0.00 $192,465.00] -
2026 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92204117 $0.00 $192,465.00, $192,465.00
2027 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92204117 $0.00 $192,465.00 $192,465.00
Sub Total $677,305.00 $384,930.00 $1,062,325.00

05-95-92-622010-19090000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF, HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV OF,
BUREAU OF MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES, SAMHSA GRANT

100% Federal Funds

Vendor'Name: NAMI NH

Vendor # 166630-B001
State Flscal Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount - Increase Revised Amount
Year (Decrease)
2024 074-500589 GRANTS FOR PUB ASST AND REL 92201915 $104,460.00 $0.00 $104,460.00
2025 074-500589 GRANTS FOR PUB ASST AND REL 92201915 $30,000.00 $0.00 $30,000.00
Sub Total $134,460.00 $0.00 $134,460.00

05-95-92-922010-41200000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVIéES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVYCS DEPT OF, HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV OF,
BUREAU OF MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES, MENTAL HEALTH BLOCK GRANT

100% Federal Funds

Vendor Name: NAMI NH

A3

Vendor # 166630-B001

State Fiscal Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount Increase Revised Amount
Year {Decrease)
2025 074-500589 GRANTS FOR PUB ASST AND REL 92264120 $118,954.00 ($33,224.00) $85,730.00
2026 074-500589 GRANTS FOR PUB ASST AND REL 92284120 $0.00 $33,224.00 s $33,224.00
Sub Total $118,954.00 $0.00 $118,954.00
|  TOTAL |  $3,071357.00]  $1.430204.00]  $4,501,561.00

Governor and Council Letter Attachment

Fin

ancial Detail

Page lof 1



Docusign Envelope ID: A3022232-14E0-42D9-8A23-3328CF711567

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services
Amendment #5

- This Amendment to the Family Mutual Support Services contract is by and between the State of New
Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services ("State" or "Department”) and NAMI New
Hampshire ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 30, 2021 (ltem #18), as amended on June 15, 2022 (ltem #22), and amended on May 17, 2023
(Item #25), and amended on December 20, 2023 (Item #31), and most recently amended on August 30,
2024 (ltem #24), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions
specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, the Contract may be amended upon wntten
agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:
June 30, 2027

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:
$4,501,561 _

3. Modify Exhibit B, Scope of Services; Section 3.3.4, to read:
3.3.4. Reserved

4. Modify Exhibit B, Scope of Services; Section 1.37., to read:
1.37. Critical Incident Stress Management Training Coordination

1.37.1. The Contractor shall, in collaboration with Substance Abuse and Mental Health
Services Administration’s (SAMSHA) Mental Health Block Grant (MHBG) Program
Planner, the Internal Critical Incident Stress Foundation (ICISF), and the
Department as needed, coordinate logistics for all Critical Incident Stress
Management (CISM) trainings to support the Department's goal of developlng and
sustaining CISM Trainers statewide, including but not limited to:

1.37.1.1. Organizing in-person trainings provided by |CISF as follows, and on the
dates as specified:

1.37.1.1.1. CISM with Children - July 14 - 15;
1.37.1.1.2. Advanced Individual - July 14 - 15; and
1.37.1.1.3. CISM application with Children - August 4 - 5.
1.37.1.2. Scheduling training times and locations.
1.37.1.3.  Procuring the training venue(s).
1.37.1.4. Procuring event food.

1.37.2. The Contractor shall organize the training registration site, prepare daily
attendance sign-in sheets, and submit sign-in sheets to ICISF, including:

1.37.2.1. Collecting and signing the daily training attendance sign-in sheets and
submitting to the Department also; and

1.37.2.2. Coordinating with ICISF post trainings to ensure attendee sf?s?éction

NAMI New Hampshire A-5-1.3 Contractor Initials

RFP-2022-DBH-01-FAMIL-01-A05 Page 1 of 5 Date 6/2/2025

v7.12.23



Docusign Envelope ID; A3022232-14E0-4200-8A23-3328CF711567

evaluations are completed and submitted to the Department.

1.37.3. The Contractor shall promote training opportunities to audiences identified by the
Department by email, social media, and as otherwise requested by the
Department.

1.37.4.

1.37.5.

The Contractor shall attend each training and provide logistical oversight including,
but not limited to:

1.37.41.

1.37.4.2.

1.37.4.3.

1.37.4.4.

1.37.4.5.

Coordinating logistic details with venue staff, ICISF trainer, and”
attendees.

Managing daily sign-in attendance sheets, which must include
participants’ names, email addresses, and signatures. All attendees
must sign in daily to show procf of attendance.

Submitting daily sign-in attendance sheets at the conclusion of the
trainings to the Department and ICISF.

Identifying participants who are interested in taking the CISM exam,
including:

1.37.4.4.1.In collaboration with ICISF, collecting and submitting a list
of names of training participants who are interested in the
Train-the-Trainer path to the Department

Post trainings, coordinating with ICISF to ensure evaluations are
completed and provided to the Department.

The Contractor shall ensure any sharing of attendees’ personally identifiable
information (Pll) with the Department is conducted through the Department's
designated SFTP site, or as otherwise directed by the Department.

5. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms; Section 1., to read:
1. This Agreement is funded by:

1.1. 2.99% Federal funds, from the New Hampshire Certified Community Behavioral Health
Clinic Planning Year, as awarded on 3/15/23, by the Substance Abuse and Mental Heaith
Services Administration (SAMHSA), Center for Mental Health Services, ALN 93.829,
FAIN H79SM087622.

1.2. 2.64% Federal funds, from BSCA Center for Mental Health Block Grants, as awarded on
8/23/23, by SAMHSA, Center for Mental Health Services, ALN 93.958, FAIN
B09SM089203.

1.3. 94.37% General funds
6. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, Section 2., to read:

2. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in the
fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved line item, as
specified in Exhibit C-1, Amendment #1, SFY 2022 Budget through Exhibit C-16, Amendment
#5, Budget Sheet.

7. Modify Exhibit C-10, Budget Sheet — Amendment #4, by replacing it in its entirety with Exhibit C-
10, Amendment #5, Budget Sheet, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

8. Add Exhibit C-11, Amendment #5, Budget Sheet, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein. -

9. Add Exhibit C-12, Amendment #5, Budget Sheet, which is attached hereto and incorporDaSted by

NAM! New Hampshire

RFP-2022-DBH-01-FAMIL-01-A05

v7.12.23

A-5-1.3 Contractor Initials
6/2/2025
Page 2 of 5 ‘Date



Docusign Envelope 1D: A3022232-14E0-42D8-8A23-3328CF711567

reference herein.

10. Add Exhibit C-13, Amendment #5, Budget Sheet, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

11. Add Exhibit C-14, Amendment #5, Budget Sheet, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

12. Add Exhibit C-15, Amendment #5, Budget Sheet, which is attached hereto and mcorporated by
reference herein.

13. Add Exhibit C-16, Amendment #5, Budget Sheet, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

DS
NAM] New Hampshire A-85-1.3 Contractor Initials Q

RFP-2022-DBH-01-FAMIL-01-AQ5 Page 3of 5 Date, 6/2/2025

v7.12.23



Docusign Envelope ID: A3022232-14E0-42D9-8A23-3328CF711667

All terms and conditions of the Contract and-prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and.effect. This Amendment shall be effective upon Governor and Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

!

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Signed by:
6/4/2025 [‘{zaja, For
- P2ABFECTEEHEE4FI—
Date Name: Kaja Fox

Title:  pirector

NAMI New Hampshire

DocuSigned by;

6/2/2025 Susan. Stearns

SORR52ACEEREMAR

Date Name: Susan Stearns
Title:

Executive Director

NAMI New Hampshire A-8-1.3

RFP-2022-DBH-01-FAMIL-01-A05 Page 4 of 5
v.7.12.23



Docusign Envelope ID: A3022232-14E0-42D8-8A23-3328CF711567

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

DocuSigned by:
6/6/2025 Wh‘jv\, Gunvino

Dato : : Name: Robyn GUarino
Title:

Attorney

| hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date . Name:
Title:

NAMI New Hampshire A-S-1.3

RFP-2022-DBH-01-FAMIL-01-A05 Page 5 of 5

v. 7.12.23



Docusign Envelope ID: 7E5FBB36-D048-44AC-B81D-3AAFIEACAA14

Exhibit C-10 Amendment #5 Budget

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Contractor Name: NAM! New Hampshire

Budget Request for: C/SM Training Coordination

Budget Period: 7/1/2024 - 9/30/2025
Indirect Cost Rate (if applicable) 10% SFY25, 15% SFY26

Lineftem . | Program.Cost - Furided
C S . byDHHS - SFY 26

1. Venue and Incidentals-(2) In person (3) day tramngs-75 | ... .
attendees each $49,044 $0
2. Venue and Incidentals-(4} In person (2) day trainings-30
attendees each $10,068 $28,890
3. Virtual Training(4) 1-Day De-Escalation Trainings-25 :
attendees _ _$5'05_6 %0
4. Venue and Incidentals-(4) In person MHFA trainings one- -
day -25 attendees each 313,768 30
Total Direct Costs $77,936 $28,890
Total Indirect Costs $7,794 $4,334
Subtotals $85,730 $33,224
b g : . - $118,954

Ds
Contractor Initials: L__

I RFP-2022—DBH-O1 -FAMIL-01-A05

5/29/2025
Date: /29/



Docusign Envelope |D: 7ESFBB36-D048-44AC-B81D-3AAFSEAC4AT4

Exhibit C-11, Amendment #5, Budget Sheet

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name: NAMI New‘Hampshlre o

Budget Request for:

Budget Period

77172025 - 6!30!2026

Indirect Cost Rate (if applicable)|26. 6%

'”Salary & Wages -

2. Fringe Benefits p $7.4,21-7
3. Consultants . T
4. Equipment

Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to
equipment costs per 2 CFR 200.1 and
Appendix |V to 2 CFR 200.

5.(a) Supplies - Educational

5.(b) Supplies - Lab

5.(c) Supplies - Pharmacy

5.(d) Supplies - Medical

5.(e) Supplies Office

6. Travel

7. Software

8. (a) Other - Marketing/ Communications

8. (b) Other - Education and Training

8. (c) Other - Other {(specify below)

Postage

Translation Services

Other (please specify)

Other (please specify)

9. Subrecipient Contracts

Total Direct Costs

Total Indirect Costs

- $89,735.

TOTAL

622637

RFP-2022-DBH-01-FAMIL-01-A05

Ds
3 ‘ $S
Contractor Initials:

Date: 5/29/2025



Docusign Envelope ID: 7E5FBB36-D048-44AC-B81D-3AAF9EAC4AT4

Exhibit C-12, Amendment #5, Budget Sheet

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name: _NAMI New Hampshlr

'Budget Request for: %

Budget Period| 7:‘1!2025 6/3012026-_ N

Indirect Cost Rate (if applicable)[0.266. -

1, Salary&Wageé'” |

—$57.647

2. Fringe Benefits

'$12, 682

3. Consultants

4. Equipm'ent

Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to
equipment costs per 2 CFR 200.1 and
Appendix [V to 2 CFR 200.

5.(a) Supplies - Educational

5.(b) Supplies - Lab

5.(c} Supplies - Pharmacy

5.(d) Supplies - Medical

5.(e) Supplies Office

6. Travel

7. Software

8. {a) Other - Marketing/ Communications

8. {b) Other - Education and Training

8. (c) Other - Other (specify below)

Personal Care Flex Funds

Fuel and Care Giver Assistance Pool

Staff Development .

Other (please specify)

9. Subrecipient Contracts

Total Direct Costs

Total Indirect Costs

TOTAL

Ds
[ §S
Contractor Initials:

RFP-2022-DBH-01-FAMIL-01-A05

Date:

5/29/2025



Docusign Envelope |D: 7E5FBB36-D048-44AC-B81D-3AAFIEAC4A14

Exhibit C-13, Amendment #5, Budget Sheet

 New Hampshire Department of Health and H-uman Services

Contractor Name: |N#

Budget Request for:

Budget Period

7/1/2025 - 6/30/2026 -

Indirect Cost Rate (if applicable)

26.6% .

Line ltem

1. Séfary & Wégéé "

2. Fringe Benefits

3. Consultants

4, Equipment
Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to
equipment costs per 2 CFR 200.1 and
Appendix IV to 2 CFR 200.

5.(a) Supplies - Educational

5.(b) Supplies - Lab

5.(c) Supplies - Pharmacy _

5.(d) Supplies - Medical

5.(e) Supplies.Office

6. Travel

7. Software

8. (a) Other - Marketing/ Communications

8. (b) Other - Education and Training

8. (¢) Other - Other (specify below)

Other (please specify)

Other (please specify)

Other (please specify)

Other (please specify)

9. Subrecipient Contracts

Total Direct Costs

Total Indirect Costs

TOTAL

RFP-2022-DBH-01-FAMIL-01-A05

3 DS
‘ S
Contractor Initials:

Date: 5/29/2025
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Exhibit C-14, Amendment #5, Budget Sheet

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name:

' Budget Request for:

Budget Period

Indirect Cost Rate (if applicable)

Salary & Wagésm

1.
2. Fringe Benefits
3. Consultants

4, Equipment

Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to
equipment costs per 2 CFR 200.1 and
Appendix IV to 2 CFR 200.

5.(a) Supplies - Educational

5.(b) Supplies - Lab

5.(c) Supplies - Pharmacy

5.(d) Supplies - Medical

5.(e) Supplies Office

6. Travel

7. Software

8. (a) Other - Marketing/ Communications

8. (b) Other - Education and Training

8. (¢) Other - Other (specify below)

Postage

Transiation Services

Other (please specify)

Other (please specify)

9. Subrecipient Contracts

Total Direct Costs

Total Indirect Costs

TOTAL

RFP-2022-DBH-01-FAMIL-01-A05

. DS
‘ $S
Contractor Initials:

Date:

5/29/2025



Docusign Envelope ID: 7E5FBB36-D048-44AC-B81D-3AAFIEAC4A14
Exhibit C-15, Amendment #5, Budget Sheet

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name:|NAMI New- Hampshire. .

Budget Request for: |[Family Mutual Support erv'
Budget Period | 7/1/2026 - 6/30/2027" - "

Indirect Cost Rate (if applicable)|26,6% ..

i Lineltem
1. Salary & Wages

2. Fringe Benefits

3. Consultants

4. Equipment

Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to
equipment costs per 2 CFR 200.1 and
Appendix IV to 2 CFR 200.

5.(a) Supplies - Educational

5.(b) Supplies - Lab

5.(c) Supplies - Pharmacy

5.(d) Supplies - Medical

5.(e) Supplies Office

6. - Travel

7. Software

8. (a) Other - Marketing/ Communications

8. (b) Other - Education and Training

8. (c) Other - Other (specify below)

Personal Care Flex Funds

Flel and Care Giver Assistance Pool

Staff Development

Other (please specify)

9. Subrecipient Contracts

Total Direct Costs

T S153% |

Total Indirect Costs

TOTAL -$92:465

DS
l $S
Contractor Initials:

RFP-2022-DBH-01-FAMIL-01-A05 Date: °/%%/20%5



Docusign Envelope I1D: 7E5FBB36-D048-44AC-B81D-3AAFOEAC4A14
Exhibit C-16, Amendment #5, Budget Sheet

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name:|NAMI| New.Hampshire =

Budget Request for: |Suicide Prévention.Coalition- Séal}Ageﬂf'

Budget Period}7/1/202

Indirect Cost Rate (If applicable)|26.6% . o

" Line tem”

1._Salary & Wages

"~ $17,00

2. Fringe Benefits

T $3,740

3. Consultants

4. Equipment

- |Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to
equipment costs per 2 CFR 200.1 and
Appendix |V to 2 CFR 200,

5.(a) Supplies - Educational

5.(b) Supplies - Lab

5.(c) Supplies - Pharmacy

5.(d) Supplies - Medical

5.(e} Supplies Office

6. Travel

7. Software

8. (a) Other- Marketing/ Communications

8. (b) Other - Education and Training
8. (¢) Other -~ Other (specify below)

Other (please specify)

Other (please specify)

Other (please specify)

Other (please specify)

9. Subrecipient Contracts

Total Direct Costs

Total Indirect Costs

TOTAL

- Ds
‘ SS
Contractor Initials:

RFP-2022-DBH-01-FAMIL-01-A05

Date:

5/29/2025
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State of New Hampshire
Department of State

CERTIFICATE

[, David M. Secanlan, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that NAMI NEW HAMPSHIRE is
a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on September 24, 1982. I further
certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State’s office have been received and is in good standing as far as

this office is concerned; and the attached is a true copy of the list of documents on file in this office.

Business ID: 62349
Certificate Number: 0007173741

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

[ hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed
the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,
this 2nd day of May A.D. 2025,

David M. Scanlan

Secretary of State
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

I, ___Joseph Keenan -, hereby certify that:

1. | am a duly elected Officer of __ NAMI New Hampshire.

2. The following is a true copy of a vote-taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on __May 28, 2025___, at which a quorum of the Directors/sharehclders were present and voting.

VOTED: That _Susan Stearns__Executive Director. {may list more than one person)

is duly authorized on behalf of __ NAMI New Hampshire to entér into contracts or agreements with the
State of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and all
documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which
may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. | hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and rernains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority was valid thirty (30)

. days prior to and remains valid for thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. | further certify
that it is understood that the State of New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s)
listed above currently occupy the position(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To
the extent that there are any limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with
the State of New Hampshire, all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

Signature of Elected Officer
Name: Joseph Keenan

Title: President Board of Directors
NAMI New Hampshire:

Dated: _May 28, 2025_

Rev. 03/24/20
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CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

DATE (MM/DDIYYYY)
03/25/2025

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY-OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED; subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A staternent on
this cerfificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

.21 Meadowbrcok Lane

PRODUCER Sg’ﬁgm Sidney Stevens
E & § Insurance Services LLC : PHORE . (603)203-2791 f;}’é, Ny (B03)293-7188

E-MAIL
ADDRESS: 5|dney@e3|nsura_nce.net

P O Box 7425 [NSURER{S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #
Gilford NH 03247-7425 | ysyrera: Philadelphia Insurance Co
INSURED INSURER B: Technology Insurance Co 42376
National Alliance on Mental lliness, NAMI-NH INSURER G :
&5 North State Street [NSURER D :
INSURER E :
Concord ] NH 03301 INSURER F :
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 25 REVISION NUMBER:
THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN 1S SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.
IE%‘ TYPE OF INSURANCE '?p?s% WVD POLICY NUMBER (ﬁﬂf%%}'ﬁ% gﬁ%%ﬁ% LMITS
>¢| COMMERGIAL GENERAL LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE ¢ 1,000,000
[DAMAGE TO RENTED
| CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR PREMISES (Ea cocurrence) s 100,000
| MED EXP {Any ane person) 3 5,000
Al PHPK2668445-005 0510712025 | 05007/2026 | peonmaaoymgury | 1,000,000
| GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE s 3,000,000
POLICY 5 Loc PRODUCTS - compiopass | s 3.000,000
OTHER: s
AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY &%"gg&%ﬁ‘:‘f'”@ﬁ LM s 1,000,000
ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY, (Per persen) | $
[ | OWNED SCHEDULED . "
A || Amos onwy - oS PHPK2668445-005 05/07/2025 | 05/7/2026 | BODILY INJURY (Per accident) | $
S¢| HRED NON-OWNED FROPERTY DAMAGE S
AUTOS ONLY AUTOS ONLY | (Per accident)
s “
| D[ umBRELLALIAB | | gecur ; EACH OCCURRENCE - s 1.000,000
A | |excessune CLAIMS-MADE PHUB05005-005 05/07/2025 | 05/07/2026 | pgorecate S
oeo | X revenmion s 10,000
WORKERS COMPENSATION PER OTH-
AND EMPLOYERS® LIABILITY Xl STATUTE | ER =500
B | R T EXECUTIVE NIA TES4490991 10/10/2024 | 10/10/2025 | E:L EACHACCIDENT § -
{Mandatory in NH) EL. DISEASE - EABMPLOVER |5 900,000
If yes, describe under . 500.000
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below EL. DISEASE-POLICYLIMIT | $ -
Abuse Aggregate 1,000,000
Abuse & Professional I99 g $
A PHPK2668445-005 05/07/2025 | 05/07/2026 |Professional Aggregate $1,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS § LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may ke attached if more space is required)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

CANCELLATION

State of NH, Department of Heaith & Human Services
129 Pleasant Street

Concord
]

NH 02301

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

.

ACORD 25 {2016/03)

@ 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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MISSION

NAMI New Hampshire is a grassroots organization working to improve the lives of all people
affected by mental illness and suicide through support, education and advocacy.

VISION

We envision a future where people affected by mental illness have hope, help, and health, and
are able to:
"« Access the supports and evidence-hased treatment necessary for recovery; *
Have a Iiféspan that is not cut short by suicide or co-occurring conditions; and *
Reach their full potential, living in their communities free from discrimination.

GUIDING VALUES

Compassion. We offer compassion and empathy to all who are affected by mental illness and
suicide.

Dignity. We believe everyone deserves to be free from judgment, and strive to foster hope
always. "

Inclusiveness. We respect people, value the voice of individuals with lived experience,{ and are
committed to equality and diversity.

Collaboration. We are committed to a culture of teamwork and collaboration with diverse
partners, working toward shared goals.

Integrity. We believe in openness and transparency, ste_warding our resources, and being
accountable to the individuals and families we serve, our members, and our funders.

Find Help, Find Hape.
NAMI New Hampshire o 85 North State Street e Concord, NH 03301
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Board of Directors
NAMI New Hampshire

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of NAMI New Hampshire (a nonprofit
organization), which comprise the statements of financial position as of June 30, 2024 and 2023, and the
related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related
notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
NAMI New Hampshire as of June 30, 2024 and 2023, and the changes in its fiet assets and its cash flows
for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our
report. We are required to be independent of NAMI New Hampshire and to meet our other ethical
responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audits. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation
of financial statements that are free from material misstaternent, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about NAMI New Hampshire’s ability to
continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the financial statements are available to be
issued.



Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and
Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion,. forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the
aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing
Standards, we: "

» Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures
include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. .

»  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of NAMI New Hampshire’s internal control. ‘Accordingly, no such opinion is
expressed.

¢ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

¢ Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about NAMI New Hampshire’s ability to continue as a going concern
for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters
that we identified during the audit.

Supplementary Information

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole.
The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for
Federal Awards, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly
to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in



the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal awards is fairly stated,
in all material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated January 2, 2025,
on our consideration of NAMI New Hampshire’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
effectiveness of NAMI New Hampshire’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That
report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in
considering NAMI New Hampshire’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

WM*WPQ

Manchester, New Hampshire
January 2, 2025



NAMI NEW HAMPSHIRE
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
June 30, 2024 and 2023

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash
Investments
Accounts receivable, net
Grants receivable
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT:
Land
Building and improvements
Equipment
Furniture and fixtures

Less accumulated depreciation
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, NET

OTHER NONCURRENT ASSETS:
Investments
TOTAL OTHER NONCURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Refundable grant
Current portion of mortgage notes payable
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES:
Mortgage notes payable, less current portion
TOTAL NONCURRENT LIABILITIES

TOTAL LIABILITIES s

NET ASSETS:
Without donor restrictions:
Undesignated
Board designated
With donor restrictions:
Purpose restrictions
TOTAL NET ASSETS

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

See notes to financial statements
1

2024 2023
693,715 § 202,257
1,001,860 1,437,882
263,193 175,491
373,363 418,116
2,332,131 2,233,746
290,800 290,300
1,177,690 1,177,690
8218 8,218
604 604
1,477,312 1,477,312
(282,455) (252,259)
1,194,857 1,225,053
1,026,322 929,259
1,026,322 929,259
4,553,310 $§ 4,388,058
132,005 § 108,662
368,810 384,731
346,161 33,333
19,983 17,022
866,959 543,743
229,911 293,383
229,911 293,883
1,096,870 837,631
2,430,118 2,621,168
1,026,322 929,259
73,456,440 3,550,427
4,553,310 $ 4,388,058




NAMI NEW HAMPSHIRE
STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES
For the Years Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023

2024 2023
CHANGES IN NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS
REVENUE AND SUPPORT:
Fees and grants from governmental agencies - $ 3,928,652 3 2,884,587
Contributions ) ) 570,816 828,635
Interest and dividends 1,783 - 21,441
Unrealized gains (losses) on investments 142,051 66,148
In-kind donations 20,092 29,187
Fundraising events ' 186,226 223,030
Training services ‘ 1,200,318 1,604,084
Membership dues 3,891 3,557
Other revenue 93,230 94,677
Net assets released from donor restrictions - -
TOTAL REVENUE AND SUPPORT ’
WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS 6,156,059 5,755,346
EXPENSES:
PROGRAM SERVICES:
Community and Public Policy Relations 330,913 278,839
Connect Suicide Prevention Project 1,078,091 900,271
Public Education 3,643,476 3,122,205
TOTAL PROGRAM SERVICES 5,052,480 4,301,315
SUPPORTING SERVICES:
Management and General . 862,693 876,577
Fundraising 334,873 405,943
TOTAL SUPPORTING SERVICES 1,197,566 1,282,520
TOTAL EXPENSES ' 6,250,046 5,583,835
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET ASSETS
WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS (93,987 171,511
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS . (93,987) 171,511
NET ASSETS - JULY 1 3,550,427 3,378,916
NET ASSETS - JUNE 30 ¥ 3,456,440 $ 3,550,427

See notes to financial statements
2



NAMI NEW HAMPSHIRE

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

For the Year Ended June 30, 2024

SALARIES AND RELATED EXPENSES:

Salaries
Employee benefits
Payroll taxes

OTHER EXPENSES:
Accounting
Audit fees
Legal and membership fees
Contracted services
Client services/training
Software subscriptions
Staff conferences and conventions
Occupancy
Office supplies
Maintenance
Fundraising/Event supplies
Depreciation
Food supplies
Equipment rental
Equipment maintenance
Advertising
Printing
Telephone and communications
Postage and shipping
Staff transportation
Insurance
In-kind goods and services
Other expenditures

Total

Program Services

Supporting Services

Community _Connect o
and Public Suicide Total Management Total
Policy Prevention Public Program and Supporting Total
Relations Project Educatjon Services General Fundraising Services Expenses
$ 257,150 $ 414,670 $ 2,580,278 § 3252098 § 548819 § 179873 § 728,692 § 3,980,790
28,627 43,365 321,558 393,550 71,268 22,817 94,085 487,635
20,147 31,195 202,723 234,065 32,967 14,493 47,460 301,525
305,924 489,230. 3,104,559 3,899,713 653,054 217,183 870,237 4,769,950
- - - - 13,434 3,295 16,729 " 16,729
- - 25 25 20,300 - 20,300 20,325
250 11,909 29,595 41,754 1,135 - 1,135 42,889
3,515 504,276 70,176 577,967 26,147 27,257 53,404 631,371
2,504 23,092 138,838 164,434 - - - 164,434
203 1,109 30,145 31,457 20,533 5,408 25,941 57.398
604 2,185 2,220 5,009 4,544 1,742 6,286 11,295
1,218 4,141 13,883 19,242 3,896 1,219 5,115 24357
788 638 25,121 26,547 38,850 - 38,850 63,397
3,270 11,119 37,283 51,672 10,466 3,270 13,736 65,408
- - - - - 18,166 18,166 18,166
1,510 5,133 17,211 23,854 4,832 1,510 6,342 30,196
2,007 678 3,540 6,225 12,519 12,834 25,353 31,578
- - 1,600 1,000 12,720 - 12,720 13,720
- 113 490 603 7.353 188 7.541 8,144
- - 1,334 1,334 - - - 1,334
974 - 4,936 " 5,910 348 1,997 2,345 8,255
5,173 2,269 29,370 36,812 25,217 2,238 27,455 64,267
380 553 3,214 4,147 2,351 2,516 4,867 9,014
1,593 18,247 118,984 138,824 1,729 5,958 7,687 146,511
1,000 3,399, 11,395 15,794 3,198 1,000 4,198 19,992
- - - - - 29,092 29,092 29,092
- - 157 157 67 - 67 224
$ 330913 § 1078091 § 3643476 § 5052480 § 862,693 § 334873 § 1197566 § 6,250,046

See notes to financial statements
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NAMI NEW HAMPSHIRE

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

SALARIES AND RELATED EXPENSES:

Salaries
Employee benefits
Payroll taxes

OTHER EXPENSES:
Accounting
Audit fees
Legal and membership fees
Contracted services
Client services/training
Software subscriptions
Staff conferences and conventions
Occupancy
Office supplies
Maintenance
Fundraising/Event supplies
Depreciation
Food supplies
Equipment rental
Equipment maintenance
Advertising:

- Printing
Telephone and communications
Postage and shipping ‘
Staff transportation
Insurance
In-kind goods and services
Other expenditures

Total

Program Services

Supporting Services

Community Connect
and Public Suicide Total Management Total
Policy Prevention Public Program and Supporting Total
Relations Project Education Services General Fundraising Services Expenses
$ 218,072 § 317,550 $ 2,149771 $ 2685393 $ 648,033 § 187,795 § 835828 § 3,521,221
14,795 34,428 273,321 322,544 71,278 22,524 93,802 416,346
14,711 24,890 159,852 199,453 68,867 12,700 81,567 281,020
247,578 376,868 2,582,944 3,207,390 788,178 223,019 1,011,197 4,218,587
815 2,605 10,948 14,368 2,754 4,077 6,831 21,199
875 2,832 10,325 14,032 2,460 1,050 3,510 17,542
150 1,928 1,030 © 3,108 3,251 1,032 4,283 7,391
5,139 402,612 134,776 542,527 10,838 24,821 35,659 578,186
1,966 49,810 84,530 136,306 1,072 201 1,273 137,579
1,835 7,020 20,451 29,300 3,310 39,199 42,509 71,815
173 1,050 1,594 2,817 4,017 4477 8,494 11,311
1,545 4,833 17,658 24,040 5,080 1,859 6,939 30,979
2,292 7.404 40,459 50,155 6,524 11,231 17,755 67,910
4,050 1,268 46,232 51,550 24,651 4,860 29,511 81,061
- - 1,806 1,806 - 25,120 25,120 26,926
1,510 4,735 17,514 23,759 4,673 1,812 6,485 30,244
3,850 3,413 13,459 20,762 1,546 15,225 16,771 37,533
730 2,318 9,734 12,832 2,208 988 3,196 16,028
- - 2,925 2,925 3,071 - 3,071 5,996
- - 207 207 - - - 207
1,775 - 381 - 2,156 234 7,500 7,734 9,890
2,113 6,179 41,872 50,164 3,198 2,715 5,913 56,077
713 128 2,599 3,440 1,621 3,685 5,306 8,746
681 22,007 68,756 91,444 3,919 2,631 6,550 97,994
1,045 3,261 11,915 16,221 3,428 1,254 4,682 20,903
- - - - - 29,187 29,187 29,187
- - - - 544 - 544 - 544
$ 278839 5 900271 § 3,122,205 § 4301315 § 876577 § 405943 T § 1,282,520

See notes to financial statemenits
4

$ 5,583,835



NAMI NEW HAMPSHIRE
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the Years Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Cash received from grants, contributions, and contracts
Interest income received
Cash paid to employees
Cash paid to suppliers and others
Interest paid

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of investments
Sale of investments
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Investing Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Payments on mortgage notes payable
Net Cash Used for Financing Activities

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash
Cash, beginning of year

Cash, ending of year

Supplemental Disclosure of Non-cash Transactions:
Unrealized gains on investments
Forgiveness of debt

See notes fo financial statements

5

2024 2023
$ 6246012 $ 5,756,968
1,783 21,441
(3,996,711) ~  (3,501,829),
(2,176,263) (2,000,088)
(10,362) (12,237)
64,459 264,255
. (697,304)
481,010 100,000
481,010 (597,804)
(54,011) (16,137)
(54,011) (16,137)
491,458 (349,686)
202,257 551,943
$ 693715 $ 202257
$ 142,051 $ 66,148
7,000 7,000
$ 149,051 $ 73,148




NAMI NEW HAMPSHIRE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Years Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023

NOTE 1—SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Organization and Purpose

NAMI New Hampshire (National Alliance on Mental Illness) was founded as a nonprofit corporation in
1982 and is committed to improving the lives of all people affected by mental illness and suicide through
support, education and advocacy. As a grassroots coalition of people living with mental illness and their
families, NAMI NH has over 40 years of service to Granite State children, transition age youth, adults,
and seniors, offering statewide activities which provide education/training and support to individuals,
families and communities. The organization also promotes and provides advocacy and empowerment at
the individual/family level as well as at the systems level by offering members, volunteers, and
stakeholders training and graduated opportunities to build confidence in advocacy and leadership skills.
Last year, NAMI NH provided support, education and advocacy to over 12,000 individuals. The financial
support for these programs and activities comes from a variety of sources that include governmental and
private foundation grants, contract services, donations, and membership dues.

We envision a future where people affected by mental illness have hope, help, and health, and are able to:
*  Access the supports and evidence-based treatment necessary for recovery;
* Have a lifespan that is not cut short by suicide or co-occurring conditions; and
«  Reach their full potential, living in their comrmunities free from discrimination.

In support of our mission, NAMI NH is dedicated to providing support, education and advocacy equitably
without discrimination against, or harassment of, any person on the basis of race, color, national origin,
language religion, sex, age, disability, citizenship, marital status, creed, sexual orientation, gender
expression or gender identity (individuals’ preferred gender will be respected, and individuals will be
referred to by their name and pronoun of choice, whenever feasible) or any other characteristic protected
by federal or state law. Any such discrimination or harassment is prohibited and will not be tolerated.

Accounting Policies

The accounting policies of NAMI New Hampshire conform to accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America as applicable to non-profit entities except as indicated hereafter. The
following is a summary of significant accounting policies.

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting.

Basis of Presentation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the reporting pronouncements pertaining
to Not-for-Profit Entities included within the FASB Accounting Standards Codification. The Entity is

required to report information regarding its financial position and activities according to the following net
asset classifications:



NAMI NEW HAMPSHIRE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions — Net assets available for use in general operations and not subject
to donor or certain grantor restrictions. The governing board has designated, from net assets without
donor restrictions, net assets for an operating reserve.

Net Assets With Donor Restrictions — Net assets subject to donor or certain grantor imposed restrictions.
Some donor imposed restrictions are temporary in nature, such as those that will be met by the passage of
time or other events specified by the donor. Other donor imposed restrictions are perpetual in nature,
where the donor stipulates that resources be maintained in perpetuity. Donor-imposed restrictions are
released when a restriction expires, that is, when the stipulated time has elapsed, when the stipulated
purpose for which the resource was restricted has been fulfilled, or both.

Recognition of Donor Restrictions

Contributions are recognized when the donor makes a promise to give to the Entity that is, in substance,
unconditional. The Entity reports contributions restricted by donors as increases in net assets without
donor restrictions if the restrictions expire (that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose
restriction is accomplished) in the reporting period in Which the revenue is recognized. All other donor
restricted contributions are reported as increases in net assets with donor restrictions, depending on the
_ nature of the restrictions. When a restriction expires, net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified to
net assets without donor restrictions and reported in the statements of activities as net assets released from
restrictions.

Donated Services, Materials and Facilities

NAMI New Hampshire receives significant volunteer time and efforts. The value of these volunteer
efforts, while critical to the success of its mission, is not reflected in the financial statements because the
accounting criteria for recognition of such volunteer efforts have not been satisfied.

Donated goods and professional services are recorded as both revenues and expenses at their estimated
fair value. The Entity received donated supplies and professional services in support of fundraising
activities totaling $29,092 and $29,187 during the years ending June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively.

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of program and supporting services activities have been summarized on a functional basis in the
statements of activitics. The statements of functional expenses present the natural classification detail of
expenses by function.

The financial statements report certain categories of -expenses that are aftributed to more than one
program or supporting function. Accordingly, certain indirect costs have been allocated among the
programs and supporting services benefited. Salaries, employee benefits, payroll taxes, accounting, audit
fees, legal fees, occupancy, maintenance, depreciation, equipment rental, equipment maintenance,
telephone, and insurance are distributed based on a cost allocation process. Expenses are initially charged
to each program or supporting function based on time and effort. Expenses associated with management
and general are then allocated among the program and supporting services based on one of two criteria.
The first criteria used is to allocate indirect costs based on the indirect cost rate established by the grantor.
If there is no indirect rate specified, the overhead rate as it appears on the IRS form 990 of the preceding
year will be used.



NAMI NEW HAMPSHIRE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purpose of the statements of cash flows, cash and equivalents consists of demand deposits, cash
. on hand and all highly liquid investments with an original maturity of 90 days or less.

Investments

Investments, which consist principally of money market accounts, certificates of deposits, mutual funds,
and exchange traded funds, are carried at their market value at June 30, 2024 and 2023. Investments
reported as non-current represent amounts designated by the Board as held for reserves. Unrealized gains
and losses on investments are reflected in the statements of activities.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable consist primarily of noninterest-bearing amounts due from services and programs.
The allowance for uncollectible accounts receivable is based on historical experience, an assessment of
economic conditions, and a review of subsequent collections. Accounts receivable are written off when
deemed uncollectible. Additionally, management has recognized an allowance for credit losses based on
estimated non-payments. As of June 30, 2024 and 2023, the estimated allowance for uncollectible
accounts receivable was $4,000. The Entity incurred no credit loss expenses for the years ended
June 30, 2024 and 2023.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost. Donated property and equipment is recorded at fair value
determined as of the date of the donation. The Entity's policy is to capitalize expenditures for major
improvements with a cost in excess of $1,000 and to charge to operations currently for expenditures
which do not extend the lives of related assets in the period incurred. Depreciation is computed using the
straight-line method at rates intended to amortize the cost of related assets over their estimated useful
lives as follows:

Years
Building and improvements 39
Equipment 5
Furniture and fixtures 7-10

Depreciation expense was $30,196 and $30,244 for the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively.
Compensated Absences

Full-time and part-time employees are entitled to paid vacation based on their length of employment.
Employees are allowed to carry forward a maximum of 10 vacation days. Upon termination of
employment, full-time employees will receive up to five days of accrued/unused vacation pay. Accrued
vacation pay amounted to $68,412 and $58,356 as of June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively.



NAMI NEW HAMPSHIRE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023

Income Taxes

The Entity is exempt from Federal income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code
and is also exempt from State of New Hampshire income taxes and, therefore, has made no provision for
Federal or State income taxes. In addition, the Entity has been determined by the Internal Revenue
Service not to be a “Private Foundation” within the meaning of Section 509(a} of the Code. The Entity is
annually required to file a Return of Organization Exempt from Income Tax (Form 990) with the IRS.

FASB Accounting Standards Codification Topic 740 entitled Accounting for Income Taxes requires the
Entity to report uncertain tax positions for financial reporting purposes. The Entity had no uncertain tax
positions as of June 30, 2024 and, accordingly, does not have any unrecognized tax benefits that need to
be recognized or disclosed in the financial statements.

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain
reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Cash, accounts receivable, accounts payable and accrued expenses are carried in the financial statements
at amounts which approximate fair value due to the inherently short-term nature of the transactions. The
fair values determined for financial instruments are estimates, which for certain accounts may differ
significantly from the amounts that could be realized upon immediate liquidation.

Revenue Recognition

The Entity recognizes contributions, donations, and other miscellaneous income when cash is received or
based on donor restrictions as described previously. Interest income is recognized monthly as accrued.
The Entity recognizes revenue from contracts with customers in the form of training and consultation
services provided to organizations and individuals. Revenue for training and consultation services are
recognized at a point in time as services are rendered. Amounts recognized are based on amounts
invoiced. Payment is due on presentation of invoice.

The Entity also has revenue derived from governmental contracts for support services provided to
individuals. Revenue from governmental contracts is recognized when the Entity has met the performance
requirements specified by contract provisions. For governmental contracts, services are invoiced on a
monthly basis in arrears, however, a receivable may be recorded in advance of amounts invoiced if all
other performance requirements have been satisfied. Payment is due on presentation of invoice.

NOTE 2—ADOPTION OF ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

In June 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-13, Financial Instruments - Credit Losses (Topic 326). The
objective of Topic 326 is to provide useful information for decision making, by considering expected
credit losses on financial instruments. It requires financial assets which are measured on an amortized cost
basis to be presented at the net amount expected to be coliected. Adoption of Topic 326 did not have a
material impact on the Entity’s statements of financial position, statements of activities, or statements of
cash flows.



NAMI NEW HAMPSHIRE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023

NOTE 3—LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY

The Entity regularty monitors the availability of resources required to meet its operating needs and other
contractual commitments. Cash reserves in excess of daily operational needs are invested with the
objective of providing a mix of income and growth, but overall to protect the organization’s accumulated
wealth. Investments can be made in the following securities: certificates of deposit, money market mutual
funds, exchange traded funds, and corporate bonds. Sources of liquidity include cash, investments, and
accounts receivable. :

For purposes of analyzing resources available to meet general expenditures over a 12-month period, the
Entity considers all expenditures related to its ongoing programs and activities as well as the conduct of
services undertaken to support those activities to be general expenditures.

The following table reflects the Entity’s financial assets as of June 30, 2024 and 2023, reduced by
amounts that are not available to meet general expenditures within one year of the statement of financial
position date because of donor and other restrictions or internal board designations. Amounts not
available include the internal board designated funds. In the event the need arises to utilize the board
designated funds for liquidity purposes, the funds could be drawn upon by a vote of the Finance
Comumittee.

Financial assets available for general expenditure, reduced by donor or other restrictions limiting their
use, within one year of the financial position date, comprise the following:

2024 2023
Cash $ 693,715 § 202,257
Investments 2,028,182 2,367,141
Accounts receivable, net 263,193 175,491
" Grants receivable ) 373,363 418,116
Total Financial Assets 3,358,453 3,163,005
Less:
Net assets with donor restrictions - -
Board designated funds (1,026,322) (929,259)
Financial Assets Available to Meet Cash Needs
for General Expenditures Within One Year $ 2,332,131 $ 2,233,740

NOTE 4—SIGNIFICANT CONCENTRATIONS OF CREDIT RISK

The Entity maintains bank deposits at local financial institutions iocated in New Hampshire. The Entity’s
cash deposits are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) up to a total of $250,000
at each financial institution. As of June 30, 2024, deposits in excess of FDIC insurance limits and
uninsured were $377,994.

NOTE 5—INVESTMENTS

Fair Value Measurements

The Entity reports under the Fair Value Measurements pronouncements of the FASB Accounting
Standards Codification (FASB ASC 820), which establishes a framework for measuring fair value. That
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NAMI NEW HAMPSHIRE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023

framework provides a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs of valuation techniques used to
measure fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities (level 1 measurement) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs
(level 3 measurements). The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are described below. 7

Level 1 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are unadjusted quoted prices for identical assets or
liabilities in active markets at the measurement date.

Level 2 - Inputs to the valuation include:

Quoted prices for similar assets or 11ab11mes in active markets;

Quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not actlve

Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability;

Inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data by
correlation or other means.

9.0.

If the asset or liability has a specified (contractual) term, the Level 2 input must be observable for
substantially the full term of the asset or liability.

Level 3 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to the fair value
measurement.

In some cases, the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability might be categorized
within different levels of the fair value hierarchy. In those .cases, the fair value measurement is
categorized in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is
significant to the entire measurement. Assessing the significance of a particular input to entire
measurement requires judgment, taking into account factors specific to the asset or liability. The
~ categorization of an asset within the hierarchy is based upon the pricing transparency of the asset and
does not necessarily correspond to our assessment of the quality, risk, or liquidity profile of the asset or
liability.

F ollowing is a description of the valuation methodologies used for assets measured at fair value.

Money market funds, mutual funds, exchange fraded funds, and equities: Valued at the closing price
reported on the active market on which the individual securities are traded.

Certificates of deposit and corporate debt securities: Valued using a market approach valuation technique
which incorporates third-party pricing services and other relevant observable information such ag market
interest rates, yield curves, prepayment risk and credit risk generated by market transactions involving
identical or comparable assets or liabilities in valuing these types of investments.

The methods described above may produce a fair value calculation that may not be indicative of net
realizable value or reflective of future fair values. Furthermore, while the Entity believes its valuation
methods are appropriate and consistent with other market participants, the use of different methodologies
or assumptions to determine the fair value of certain financial instruments could result in a different fair
value measurement at the reporting date. y

I1



NAMI NEW HAMPSHIRE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023

The following tables set forth by level, within the fair value hierarchy, the Entity’s assets measured at fair
< value as of June 30, 2024 and 2023:

Assets at Fair Value as of June 30, 2024

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Money market mutual funds $ 1,003,098 _§ 1,003,098
Mutual funds 420,250 420,250
Exchange traded funds 514,168 514,168
Certificates of deposit 3 48,126 48,126
Corporate debt securities 42.540 42,540
Total assets at fair value § 1,937,516 $ 90,666 3 - $ 2,028,182
Assets at Fair Value as of June 30, 2023
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Money market mutnal funds $ 1,140,464 § 1,140,464
Mutual funds 431,478 431,478
Exchange traded funds 411,053 411,053
Certificates of deposit $ 379,152 379,152
Corporate debt securities 4,994 4,994
Total assets at fair value $ 1,982,995 $ 384,146 h) - ¥ 2367141
NOTE 6—MORTGAGE NOTES PAYABLE
At June 30, 2024 and 2023, the mortgage notes payable consist of the following:
2024 2023
$348,000 mortgage note payable, secured by property, payable
in monthly installments of $2,364 including interest through March 2028.
Interest is fixed at 5.35% through March 2028, with interest thereafter
based on the Federal Home Loan Bank of Boston Advance rate plus 3%. $ 165,894 $ 219,905
$140,000 mortgage note payable to the City of Concord, New
Hampshire is non-interest bearing and is secured by the property.
The Entity is a subrecipient of Community Development Block
Grant funds which were used to create an ADA compliant
community education space. Repayment of the funds will be
required in the event of noncompliance with the grant. The note
will be forgiven over a,period of 20 years through December 31, 2034, 84,000 91,000
. '§ 249804  § 310905

Under the terms of the mortgage note payable for the property located at 87 North State Street, Concord
New Hampshire, with a balance outstanding as of June 30, 2024 of $165,894, the Entity must maintain a
loan to value ratio of less than 80%. Additionally, the Entity must demonstrate a debt service coverage
ratio of at least 1.00. For the year ended June 30, 2024, the requirement to maintain a debt service
coverage ratio compliance of at least 1.00 was waived by the lender.

12



NAMI NEW HAMPSHIRE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023

Following are the maturities of the mortgage notes payable as of June 30, 2024:

Year Ending
June 30, Amount
2025 5 19,983
2026 21,079
2027 22,235
2028 23,454
2029 24,741
Thereafter 54,402

$ 165,894

NOTE 7—BOARD DESIGNATED NET ASSETS

Board designated net assets consist of the following at June 30, 2024 and 2023:

2024 2023
Contingency fund $ 876,322 $ 779,259
Fixed Asset fund 100,000 100,000
Special Opportunity fiind 50,000 50,000

3 1,026,322 3 929,259

NOTE 8—REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS

The follewing tables provide information about balances of receivables, contract assets, and contract
liabilities associated with contracts with customers for the years ended June 30, 2024 ahd 2023:

Contract Contract
Receivables Assets Liabilities
June 30, 2024 $ 263,193 $ - % -
June 30, 2023 $ 175,491 5 - k) -
July 1, 2022 $ 268,685 $ - h -

NOTE 3—CONCENTRATION OF REVENUE RISK

The Entity's primary source of revenues is fees and grants recetved from the State of New Hampshire and
directly from the federal government. During the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, the Entity
recognized revenue of $3,928,652 and $2,884,587, respectively, from fees and grants from governmental
agencies. These represented 64% and 50% of total revenue and support without donor restrictions for the
years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively. Revenue is recognized as earned under the terms of the
grant agreements and is received on a cost reimbursement basis. Other support originates from training
services, contributions, in-kind donations, and other income.

NOTE 10—RETIREMENT PLAN

The. Entity has a deferred compensation retirement plan under Section 403(b) of the Internal Revenue
Code. Under the terms of the plan, employee contributions are made through a salary reduction plan.

13



NAMI NEW HAMPSHIRE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT}NUED)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023

During the years ending June 30, 2024 and 2023, the Entity’s contribution to the plan was equal to up to
3.0% of each eligible employee’s annual salary. The Entity contributed $73,014 and $65,021 for the years
ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively.

NOTE 11—CONTINGENCIES
The Entity particiiaates in a number of federally assisted grant programs. These programs are subject to .
financial and compliance audits by the grantors or their representatives. The amounts, if any, of additional
expenses which may be disallowed by the granting agency cannot be determined at this time, although the
Entity expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

NOTE 12—SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent events have been evaluated through January 2, 2025 which is the date the financial statements
were available to be issued.

14



SCHEDULE I

NAMI New Hampshire

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
For the Year Ended June 30, 2024

— Federal Grantor / Pass-Through Grantor /
Program or Cluster Title

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

Received directly from U.S. Treasury Department
Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services - Projects of Regional and National Significance

Pass Through Payments from the City of Manchester, New Hampshire
Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services - Projects of Regional and National Significance

'

Received directly from U.S. Treasury Department
Congressional Directives

Pass Through Payments from the University of New Hampshire
Block Grants for Community Mental Health Services

Total Department of Health and Human Services

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards

Assistance
Listing
Number

93.243

93.243

93.493

93.958

See notes to schedule of expenditures of federal awards
“

Is

Pass-Through
Entity
Identifying
Number

N/A

. #1H795MO082210-04

N/A

#PZL0190

Expenditures

§ 946,526

13,664

960,190
109,235

137,082
1,206,507

3 1,206,507



NAMI NEW HAMPSHIRE
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2024

NOTE 1-—BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (the “Schedule”) includes the federal
award activity of NAMI New Hampshire under programs of the federal government for the year ended
June 30, 2024. The information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of -
Title2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards {Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule
presents only a selected portion of the operations of NAMI New Hampshire, it is not intended to and does
not present the financial position, changes in net assets, or cash flows of NAMI New Hampshire.

NOTE 2—SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented using the accrual basis of
accounting, which is described in Note 1 to NAMI New Hampshire’s financial statements. Such
expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein
certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursements.

NOTE 3—INDIRECT COST RATE

NAMI New Hampshire has not elected to use the 10-percent de minimis indirect cost rate allowed under
the Uniform Guidance.

NOTE 4—RELATIONSHIP TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The recognition of expenditures of federal awards has been reported in the NAMI New Hampshire’s
financial statements as program services and management and general expenses, as applicable.
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:%VACHON CLUKAY CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

608 Clestnut Streer » Manchester, New Hampshire 03104

& CoMPANY PC (603) 622-7070 » Fax: (603) 622-1452 + wwwachonchukay.com

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT
OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Board of Directors
NAMI New Hampshire

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Compfroller General of the United States, the financial statements of NAMI
New Hampshire (a nonprofit organization), which comprise the statement of financial position as of
June 30, 2024 and the related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year
then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated
January 2, 2025. '

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered NAMI New Hampshire’s
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of NAMI New Hampshire’s internal
control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of NAMI New Hampshire’s
internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination
of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement
of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attentlon by those charged with
governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses
or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified.
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Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether NAMI New Hampshire’s financial statements
are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material
effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions
was.not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our
tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the organization’s
infernal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the organization’s internal control and compliance.
Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

MQ&J@%%W?Q

Manchester, New Hampshire
January 2, 2025
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608 Chestnuz Streer « Manchester, New Hampshire 03104

& COMPANY PC (603) 622-7070 + Fax: (603) 522-3452 wwwvachonclukay.com

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM
AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE
REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Board of Directors
NAMI New Hampshire

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program
Opinion on Each Major Federal Program -

We have audited NAMI New Hampshire’s compliance with the types of compliance requirements
identified as subject to audit in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material
effect on each of NAMI New Hampshire’s major féderal programs for the year ended June 30, 2024,
NAMI New Hampshire’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results
section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

In our opinion, NAMI New Hampshire complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance
requirements refetred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal
programs for the year.ended June 30, 2024.

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2
U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and
Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Our responsibilities under those standards
and the Uniform Guidance are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
Compliance section of our report.

We are required to be independent of NAMI New Hampshire and to meet our other ethical
responsibilities, in accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on
compliance for each major federal program. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of NAMI
New Hampshire’s compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above.

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance
Management is. responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design,
implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of

laws, statutes, regulations, rules, and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to NAMI
New Hampshire’s federal programs.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the
compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an
opinion on NAMI New Hampshire’s compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform
Guidance will always detect material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting material
noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above is considered material if there is a
substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the judgment made by a
reasonable user of the report on compliance about NAMI New Hampshire’s compliance with the
requirements of each major federal program as a whole.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing
Standards, and the Uniform Guidance, we:

e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

o Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a
test basis, evidence regarding NAMI New Hampshire’s compliance with the compliance
requirements referred to above and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary
in the circumstances. ‘

¢ Obtain an understanding of NAMI New Hampshire’s internal control over compliance relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test
and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of NAMI New Hampshire’s 1nternal )
control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing-of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material wealknesses in internal
control over compliance that we identified during the audit.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material
weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.
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Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not.designed to identify all
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies in internal control over compliance. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not
identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses,
as defined above. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over
compliance may exist that were not identified.

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal
control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to deseribe the scope of our

testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the
Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

WW%‘MPQ

Manchester, New Hampshire
January 2, 2025
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NAMI New Hampshire
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs .
For the Year Ended June 30, 2024

Section I--Summary of Auditor’s Results

F inancial Statements

Type of auditor’s report.issued on whether the financial -
statements audited were prepared in accordance with GAAP: Unmodified

Internal control over financial reporting:

Material weakness(es) identified? yes X  no
Significant deficiency(ies) identified? yes X ___ none reported
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? yes X __no
Federal Awards
Internal control over major federal programs:
Material weakness(es) identified? yes X no
Significant deficiency(ies) identified? yes X nonereported
Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance
for major federal programs: Unmodified
Any audit findings disclosed that are required to
be reported in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a)? yes X no
Identification of major federal program(s):
Assistance Listing Number(s) Name of Federal Program or Cluster

Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services - Projects of

24 . . ..
93.243 Regional and National Significance

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs: $ 750,000

Auditee qualifted as low-risk auditee? X yes no

22



Section II--Financial Statement Findings

There were no findings relating to the financial statements required to be reported by GAGAS. ‘

Section III--Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

There were no findings and questioned costs as defined under 2 CFR 200.516(a).
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Susan L. Stearns.

QUALIFICATIONS

» Lived experience as a family member and advocate

Strong management and leadership skills in non-profit organizations

Proven ability to build, foster, and lead teams during challenging times

Experienced working with boards of directors, grassroots volunteers, and policymakers
Expertise in program development, implementation, and evaluation

Experienced working with diverse individuals and communities

Understanding of the intersection of‘mental illness, disability, 1nequa11ty, abuse justice
system involvement, and family issues

WORK EXPERIENCE

NAMI New Hampshire (National Alliance on Mental Hlness), Concord, New Hampshire
Executive Director, 2022 — Present

Principal administrator of NAMI NH responsible for advancing the vision and mission of NAMI
NH as set by the Board of Directors. Provides overali leadetship to assist and support the staff
members and volunteers in discharging the highest quality work in support of Granite Staters
affected by mental illness and suicide.

Deputy Director, 2016 — 2022, Director of Philanthropy, 2013-2016

Responsible for program development and implementation, including evaluation and Quality
improvement, directs organizational efforts in the state’s seven Integrated Delivery Networks,
interfaces with criminal justice partners, oversees fund development and grant writing.

. Greater Nashua Mental Health Center at Communlty Council, Nashua, New Hampshlre
Director of Development, 2007 — 2013

Developed strategies to diversify revenue and sustain programs; responsible for grant writing and
management; provided operational management of collaborative projects in¢luding supportive
housing, mental health court, and primary and behavioral health care integration.

Harbor Homes, Inc,, Nashua, New Hampshire

Director of Proposal Development, 2005-2007

Responsible for project design, proposal development and writing, as well as building
partnerships with community providers and stakeholdets.

Guardian ad Litem Board, Concord, New Hampshire

Trainer, contracted, 2004-2010

Trained Guardians ad Litem on Mental Illness & Recovery; Effective Strategies for Working
with Parents with Mental Illness; and Domestic Viclence.

Disabilities Rights Center, Concord, New Hampshire

Director, Coalition for Family Law & Mental Health Project, 2001-2006

Oversaw coalition-building and project management to promote legal equity for parents with
- mental illness, ensure adequate assessment of parenting competency, and improve outcomes.



Whole Village Family Resource Center, Plymouth, New Hampshu e

Executive Director, 1998-2001

Oversaw collaborative project for supporting families with mulhple risk factors for negative
outcomes, including fund development and evaluation efforts.

New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic & Sexual Violence, Concord, NH

Program Specialist, 1993-1998

Responsible for providing training on domestic violence, sexual assault and stalking to various.
audiences, including law enforcement, EMS, child protective services, and other prowders,
oversaw evaluation efforts for fourteen certified crisis centers across the state.

Task Force Against Domestic & Sexual Violence, Plymoﬁth, NH
Administrative Director, 1988-1993
Oversaw agency operations, including finance, human resources, and grant/project management.

PROFESSIONAL ACTIVITIES

Children’s Behavioral Health Resource Center Leadership Team, Member & NAMI NH
Principal Investigator, 2021 — present

Mental Health Technology Transfer Center — New England Advisory Team
(HHS Region 1 — SAMHSA), Member, 2019 — present

Governor’s Commission on Disability, Member, 2016 —present
Appointed by Governor Margaret Hassan

Lakes Region Mental Health, Board Member & Past President, 2007 — present

EDUCATION

University of Massachusetts, Amherst School of Education. Graduate Studies in Consulting
& Counseling Psychology, 1986 — 1987,

University of Massachusetts, Amherst. B.A. in English, 1986.

SELECTED PUBLICATIONS & PRESENTATIONS

2020 Perspectives « Interview with NAMI NH Deputy Director, Susan Stearns,
hitps://www.youtube.com/watch?v=MDvKLo06dXE,

2018 8B 51 — Establishing o commission to study expanding mental health courts statewide.
https:/bit.ly/3nDV7i3.

2009 Reclaiming Our Future: A Pathway for Treating Co-Occurring Mental Health and
Substance Use Disordets in New Hampshire’s Adolescents and Young Adults, NAMI
New Hampshire. hitps:/bit.ly/3xmWXHt.

2008 Raising Matthew: A Mother Reflects on Medicating Her Son, No Health without
Mental Health, Community Council of Nashua, NH, reprinted in Genesis Tirmes, 2009,

2005 The Struggle for Justice: Seeking Legal Equity for Parents with Mental Illness, RAP
Sheet: The Latest in Disability Research, Advocacy, Policy, and Practice, Winter Issue, -
https://drenh.org/wp-content/uploads/2021/03/2005WinterR AP . pdf.

1994 Mediation and Domestic Violence: Considerations for Mediators and Battered
Women, New Hampshire Bar Journal, Vol. 35, No. 2, p. 32, June.
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Skills

» Operational management

¥ Infrastructure planning

» Documentation compliance

v Accounting principles
understanding

+ Risk management

+ Reporting skills

+ Strategic planning

* Financial & Human Resource
administration

+ Executive leadership

+ Team building and leadership

+ Financial leadership

+ Strategic business planning

+ Revenue growth

+ Policy development

+ Construction Project
Management

Education and Training

Bachelor of Science:
Business Administration,
Accounting

BRYANT UNIVERSITY

Professionall‘
_Certiﬂcations

Certified Internal Auditor
Deslgnation

TAMMY E. MURRAY

Summary

Resourceful Non-Profit Chief Financial Officer prepared to leverage twenty
years of experience to support operations of mission driven organization.

" Expertise in Generally Accepted Accounting Principles, grant compliance, -

reporting and auditing. Human Resource experience in talent and
performance management, compensation and benefits, compliance and
workplace safety. Strong leader with calm presence and ability to build
relationships across all organizational levels.

Experience '

NAMI New Hampshire - Chief Financial Officer
Concord, New Hampshire
06/2001 - Current

v Integral member of senior management team providing strategic vision,
leading complex nonprofit organization with multiple funding sources
including federal, state contracts, Medicaid eligible services and an
affiliated structure with diverse program areas delivered nationally.
Developed forward-looking, predictive models.and activity-based
financial analyses to provide insight into the organization's operations
and business plans while managing organizational risk.

Implemented controls for Accounts Payable, Accounts Receivable and
General Ledger, ensuring accuracy, consistency and compliance with
funders’ requirements incfuding Office of Management and Budget’
Uniform Administrative requirements, cost principles and audit
requirement for federa! awards. ‘

Achieved unqualified audit opinions, with no material weaknesses or
_defictencies during entire tenure of position.

Developed financial measurement standard and system to monitor
performance against goals including budgeting, forecasting and business
models. ‘

Engaged finance committee in investment, and asset management,
growing activities by $1.5M.

Led and-executed real estate acquisitions, renovations of organization's
two facilities, reducing overhead expenses and enhancing
organization's visibility.

Designed succession planning, talent review and performance
management processes across the organization.

Developed and managed employee-benefit programs including 403(b) plans
ensuring compliance with all regulatory requirements.

Identified IT system upgrade requirements to accommodate expanding
growth, and compliance.

Oversaw acquisition of copyright and trademark de5|gnat|ons for
evidenced based training products to sustain révenue generation:
activities, ~
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TAMMY E. MURRAY cont,

OfficeMax, Incorporated - Field Operations Manager
Cleveland, Ohio

OfficeMax, Incorporated - Senior Internal Auditor
Clevelund, Ohio

Balfour Company - Collection Services Manager

Attleboro, Massachusetts

Balfour Company - Senior Auditor/Accountant
Attleboro, Massachusetts

The Jan Companies - Staff Accountant
Cranston, Rhode Island

AWards

Business Excellence in Non Profit Management Sep 2019, New Hampshire
Business Review . '

Outstanding Women in Business Award Nominee Jan 2019, New Hampshire
Business Review

Excellence In Non Profit Management Jun 2008, The Corporate Fund




Liz
-Hodgkins

| Deputy Dir'ecto,r )

EDUCATION
Bachelor of Science/ Péycholog_y
" Keene State College -
1992-1996

Certified Volunteer Ad ministrator
April 2023

EXPERTISE .
) Eve:it Planning
Proje@t Manggé;ﬁent
 Voluntéer Administration
¢-i o problem-Solving - |

- Leadership . -
Critical Thinkifig

Teamwork

FRP—

PROFILE

Dedicated, mission-driven program and volunteer manager who
effectively engages community members, staff, and volunteer
leaders. Adept at assessing community needs and matching with
organization goals to meet grant and strategic plan deliverables,
Specializes in maintaining strong and respectful relationships with
stakeholders.

WORK EXPERIENCE

Deputy Director

NAMI NH | Concord, NH | July 2024 - Current

Oversee the operations of a diverse mental health organization of 64
employees and 200+ statewide volunteers, Utilizing the strategic plan
and mission, work with program directors to critically think about ways
te improve operational efficiency and achieve goals. implementing
effective strategies to cultivate and maintain a positive work culture.

Adult Program Director
NAMINH | Concord, NH | 2022 - Current
Oversee administration of volunteers throughout the organization,
working across teams to create agency wide volunteer practices. Manage
NAMI signature programs, grants, and grassroots vaolunteer operations.
s Utilizing volunteer administration best practices to work towards
agency strategic plan goals. o
» Closing workforce and organizational capacity challenges and
gaps by strategically recrufting, training, and engaging skilled
volunteers.

Education and Support Program Coordinator
NAMI NH { Concord, NH | 2014 -2022
Coordinate and oversee state-wide events and programs that are
facilitated by trained volunteers. Utilizing the strategic plan as a guide,
seeking opportunities to grow our community connections and access to
programming that benefits Granite Staters affected by mental illness and
suicide,
¢ Maintain relationships with valuable organization volunteers;
offering opportunities to be part of our mission driven
programming.
s Recruit, screen, and train new volunteers and connect them with
mentaors in their community.
o Plan, coerdinate, and execute the NAMI NH Annual Conference.

Training and Event Coordinator
Independent Contractor | Concord, NH | 2008-2012

Program Director
NFl North | Concord, NH | 2062-2006



Michelle Wagner

PROFESSIONAL SUMMARY

¢ Diverse professional healthcare experience in mental health education and advocacy, psychiatric nursing,
clinical management, home healthcare, developmental disabilities, surgical and emergency services.
Leadership, supervision, and management provided to staff and programs in a variety of settings.
Skillful in delivering psychoeducation to individuals and groups in clinical and mental health environments,
including teaching Mental Health First Aid, cofacilitating Strengths Based Recovery, and teaching indigent
patients as an RN volunteer on Mercy Ships in Togo, Africa.

EDUCATION

Boston University - Boston, MA August 2023
Master of Theological Studies

Southern New Hampshire University - Hooksett, NH January 2018
Master of Science: Clinical Mental Health Counseling

New Hampshire Technical Institute - Concord, NH May 2000
Assaociate Degree: Nursing

University of New Hampshire - Durham, NH . May 1986

Bachelor of Science: Business Administration

PROFESSIONAL WORK EXPERIENCE

NAMI New Hampshire (National Alliance on Mental Illness) Concord, NH September 2019 - Present
Director of Support and Qutreach Programs
o Provides leadership and direction for the development, implementation, evaluation; and marketing for
support and outreach programs. Collaborates with other teams to assess the effectiveness of established
programming and evaluate the need for new resources.

Community Educator and Peer Services Coordinator
» (Oversaw aspects of NH's First Episode Psychosis/Early Serious Mental [liness (FEP/ESMI) initiative, including
stakeholder engagement, education, and training and statewide public awareness and anti-stigma campaigns.

Interim Healthcare - Portsmouth, NH January.2019 - August 2019
RN, Home Health :

o Promoted physical and mental well-being of patients through collaborative care delivered in their homes.

» Educated patients and caregivers about disease processes, symptom reduction, and medication management.

The Mental Health Center of Greater Manchester - Manchester, NH September 2016 - February 20138
RN, Psychiatric/Counseling Internship
s Assisted individuals in maintaining mental health stability by providing case management to support access to
services fulfilling biopsychosocial-spiritual needs. '
¢ Completed 700 hours of clinical internship in a practice specializing in personality disorders.

Waban Projects, Inc. - Sanford, ME November 2013 - May 2015
Nurse Manager
¢ (Coordinated clinical oversight to 25 homes, a preschool, and an adult day program for 150+ children and adults
with developmental disabilities.
o Supervised 2 RNs, directed daily schedules, and implemented process improvement initiatives.

Atlantic Urology Associates - Portsmouth and Exeter, NH March 2012 - August 2013
RN, Lead

o Oversaw activities of 10 clinical and clerical personnel in 2 offices.

o Performed patient triage, assessment, direct care, and assisted surgeons with procedures.

Concord Hospital - Concord, NH June 2007 - January 2012
RN, Emergency Department and Presurgical Testing -

e Provided comprehensive quality medical care for patients of ail ages in a Level Il trauma center.

» Collaborated with a multidisciplinary team to educate patients and ensure safety during surgery.



NH Department of Health and Human Services

List those primarily responsible for meeting the terms and conditions of the agreement.

Contractor Name:

KEY PERSONNEL

Job descriptions not required for vacant positions.

NANiI New Hampshire

i

Susan Stearns

{Executive Director

$0.00 $200,700.00
Tammy Murray Chief Financial Officer $0.00 $180,300.00
Elizabeth Hodgkins Deputy Director $0.00 $127,000.00
Michelle Wagner Director of Support & Outreach $73,100.00 $86,000.00
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH

Lorl A Weaver 129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301

Commissioner i 603-271-9544  1-800-852-3348 Ext. 9544 .
Fox: 603-271-4332  TOD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov

Kata §. Fox
Directoy

Augusl 1, 2024

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council
State House
Concord, New Hampshire 03301 © o

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Health,
to enter into a Sole Source ameridment to an existing contract with NAM! New Hampshire (VC
#166630), Concord, NH to continue the provision of Family Mutual ‘Support Services; support
the ongoing efforts of the Community and Stakeholdér Engagement Coordinator; and to add
coordination and, logistical support of Critical Incident Stress Management trainings, by
increasing the price limitation by $148;854 from $2,922,403 to $3,071,357 with 1o change to the
¢ontract completion date of June 30, 2025, effeétive upon Governor and Council approval. 100%
Federal Funds,

The ariginal contract was approved by Governor and Cotngit on June 30, 2021, itern #18
as amended on June 15, 2022, item #22; and amended on May 17, 2023, item #25; and most
recently amended on December 20, 2023, item #31,

- Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Year 2025, with the authority
to adjust budget line items within the price limitation.

See attached fiscal details.

EXPLANATION

“This request is. Sole Source bacause the Depariment is amending the scope of services
and adding funding that increases the price limitation by more than 10% of the original contract
amount; this request therefore must be identified as sole source.in accordance with Manual of
Procedures {(MOP) 150. The original contract was competitively bid.

The purpose of this reqiiest is to add scope and funding to allow the Contractor to organize
and coordinate the logistics -of approximately 14 additional trainings in Critical Incident Stress
Management (ClSM) a program that teaches inlervention skills fo support individuals who have
experienced traumatic events and disasters. The additional trainings will allow a CISM train-the-

-trainer pathway:

Inaddition, funding is being added for thie Contractor to continue to stipport the efforts of
the Communlty and-Stakeholder Engagement Coordmator through the No Cost Extension of the
Certified Community Behavioral Heéalth Clinic Planning Grant. CCBHCs provide high-quality care
for people with any mental health or substance use disorder. The Clinics assess and help people
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His Excellency, Govemor Christopher T. Sununu
ard the Honcrable Council
Pege 2of2

by taking a "whole health" approach considering individuals somal and physical health needs
while providing :ntegrated behavioral health care.

New Hampshire is in the process of implementing CCBHCs through community mental health
centers, most recently receiving a four-year implementation grant to expand CCBHCs. The
Community and Stakeholder Engagement Coordinator solicits input from a diverse group of
individuals with lived experience, leads the Stakeholder Advisory Councit, and prowdes additional
outreach and engagement actlwtles for the program.

Approximately 200 mdlvlduals will be engaged to provide input on the CCBHC model, and
approxlmately 165 participants will receive CISM trainings through June 30, 2025.

The Conlractor will schedule all CISM trainings, arrange lodging accommodations for
training participants, market training opportunities, manage onsite training logistics, and ensure
evaluations are complatad. Additionally, the Contractor will continue supporting community and
stakeholder engagement by soliciting input from individuals with fived experience of behavioral
health disorders, minority groups and other relevant stakeholders to assist the Department with
collecting the necessary feedback to further implement the CCBHC model.

The Departmant will continue to monitor services through the review of data raports.
periodic surveys, and other data as requested by the Depaﬂment

Should.the Governor and Council nof authorize this request, the Contractor will be unable
to schedule and coordinate CISM trainings on behalf of the Department and would be limited in
its ability to continue soliciting input from individuals and stakeholders to inform the continued
implementation of the CCBHC model. .

Area served Statewide

Source of Federal Funds: Assistance Lisling Number (ALN) 93.829, FAIN H795M087622
and ALN 93.958, FAIN BO9SM089203.

In the event: that the Federal Funds become no longer availabls, addmonal General Funds
* will not be requested to support this prograrn

Y
[}

Respectfully sybmitted,

Lori A. Weaver
Commissioner

The Department of Health and Humon Services' Mission is o join communities and fomilies
in providing cpportunities for citizens to ackieve health and independenice.



DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

Famlly Mutual Support Services {RFP-2022-DBH-01-FAMIL-01-A04)

FISCAL DETAIL SHEET

05-95-092-922010-41190000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF,
HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV OF, BUREAU OF MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES, FAMILY MUTUAL

SUPPORT SERVICES i
100% General Funds
Vendor Name: NAMI NH Vendor # 166630-8001
State Fiscal - : Ingrease .
Year Class f Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount (Decreass) Revised Amount
2022 102-500731 Contracls for Progrem Services 92204119 $522,637.00 $0.00 $522,637,00
2023 102:500731 Contracts for Program Services 92204119  $522,637.00 $0.00 $522,637.00
2024 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92204118 $547 637.00 - $0.00 $547,637.00
- 2025 102-500731 Conlracts for Program Services 92204119 $547.637.00 $0.00 $547,637.00
Subtotal $2 140,548.00 $0.00 $2,140,548.00
05-95-092-522010-41170000 HEALTH AND SQCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF, .y
HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV OF, BUREAU OF MENTM. HEALTH SERVICES, CMH PROGRAM
SUPPORT
100°% General Funds
Vendor Name: NAMI NH Vendor # 166630-B001
State Fiscal | . Increase .
N
Yoar Class / A;counl Class Title Job Number Current Amount (Decrease) Revised Amoun}
2022 102-500731 ' Cantracts for Program Services 92204117 $100,000.00(" $0.00 - $100,000.00
2023 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92204117 $192.465.00 $0.00 $192,465.00
2024 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92204117 $192.465.00 $0.00 $192,465.00
2025 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92204117 $192,465.00 $0.00 $192,465.00
: Sublotal £677,395.60] " $0,00 $677,395.00
05-95-092-922010-19090000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES'S. HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF, 2
HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV OF, BUREAU OF MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES, SAMHSA GRANT
100% Federal Funds i - 3
Vendor Name: NAMI NH . Vendor # 166630-8001
Slate Fiscat ‘. Increase L
Year Class l Agcount Class Title Job Number Curren! Amoun? (Decrease) Revised Ameunt
2024 102-500731 Contracls for Program Services 92201915 $104,460.00 $0.00 $104,460.00
2025 102-500731 Conlracts for Program Sarvices 92201915 $0.00 $30,000.00 $30,000.00
- Subtotal $104,460.00 $30,000.00 $134,460.00
05-85-092-922010-41200000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF,
HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV OF, BUREALI OF MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES, MEN'I’AL HEALTH -
BLOCK GRANT .
160% Federal Funds
Vendor Name: NAMI NH 4, Vendor # 166830-B001
-State Fiscal’ : : . , Increase . :
Year Ciass / Account Class Title Job Number Currepl Amount (Decrease) . Revised Amount
2025 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92284120 = $0.00 $118,954.00 $118,854.00
- ] Subtolal $0.00 $118,5854.00 £118,954.00
‘ ( TOTAL| ~ $2,922,403.00) ~  §148,954.00]  $3,071,357.00|

Governor and Councdil Letter Attachment

Financial Detail
Pagelof1
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services
Amendment #4

This Amendment to the Family Mutual Support Services contract is by and between the State of New
Hampshire, Department of -Health and Human Services ("State" or "Depariment”) and NAMI New
Hampshire ("the Contractor”).

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract”) approved by the Governor and Executive Coungil- -
on June 30, 2021 {ltem #18), as amended on June 15, 2022 {ltem #22), and amended on May 17, 2023
(Item #25), and most recently amended on December 20, 2023 (item #31), the Contractor agreed to
perform certain services based' upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and
in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS,- pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, the Contract may be amended upon written
- agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:
$3,071,357
2. Modify Exhibit B, Scope of Services; by adding Section 1.37, to read:
1.37.  Critical Incident Stress Management Training Coordination

1.37.1 The Contractor, in collaboration with SAMSHA's Mental Health Block Grant
. (MHBG) Program Planner, the ICISF, and the Department as needed, shall
coordinate logistics for all Critical Incident Stress Management (CISM)
trainings to support the Department’s goal of developing and sustaining CISM
. Trainers statewide, including but not limited to: T )

1:37.1.1  Scheduling training dates, times, and locations throughout the
State that promote increased accessibility for more attendees.

1.37.1.2  Arranging for foodirefreshments.
1.37.1.3  Booking lodging accommodations for attendees. ‘

1.37.2 The Contractor shall market training opportunities via ema‘il. social media, or
as otherwise requested by the Department to audiences identified by the
Depariment. -

- i 1.37.3 The Contractor shali facilitate participant online registratibn via HIPAA
*compliant SurveyMonkey only, including, but not limited to:

1.37.3.1  Confirming participant eligibility for lodging accommodations at the
~ hotel where the training is being held by verifying the distance from
padicipant’s residence to the training venue is a minimum of 50

miles. ) )
1.37.32 _Closely monitoring the number of participants eligible for lodging
accommodations for each training to ensure the availability of
¢ . funding for lodging throughout the entire training cycle (estimated
through June 30, 2025, or as otherwise determined by the

Department),

1.37.4 The Contractor shall attend each training to coordinate onsite logistics
inctuding, but not limited to: 0s
1.37.41  Managing in-person, daily sign-in attendance sheets, ‘{higlg must
NAMI New Hampshire - A-5-1.3 Contractor Initials

RFP-2022-DBH-01-FAMIL-01-A04 Page10of 5 Date 8/13/2024
v7.12.23
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include participants names, email addresses, and signatures.
1.37.4.2  Ensuring participants sign in daily.

1.37.43  Scanning and sending daily sign-in attendance sheets to the
Department and ICISF.

1.37.4.4  Identifying participants who are interested in taklng the CISM
-7 exam.

1.37.4.5 - In collaboration with ICISF, collect and submit to the Department
a list of the names of training participants who are interested in the
Train-the-Trainer path.

1.37.5 Post trainings, the Contractor shall coordinate with ICISF to ensure
evaluations are completed and provided to the Department. -

- 1.37.6 The Contractor shall ensure the sharing of personally identifiable
' information with the Department is conducted through the Department's
designated SFTP site, or as otherwise directed by the Department.

3. Modify Exhibit B, Scope of Services; by adding Sections 1.38 through 1.40, to read:
1.38. Confidential Data -

1.38.1. The Contractor must meet all information security and privacy requirements as set
4 "by the Department and in accordance with the Department's Information Security
Requirements Exhlbtt as referenced below.

1.38.2. The Contractor must ensure any individuals mvolved in delivering services through
this Agreement contract sign an attestation agreeing to access, view, store, and
discuss Confidential Data in accordance with federal and state laws and
regulations and the Department's Information Security Requirements Exhibit. The
Contractor must ensure said individuals have a justifiable business need to access
confidential data. The Contractor must provide attestations upon Department

request.
/!

1.39. Privacy Impact Assessment i

1.38.1. -Upon request, the Contractor must allow and assist the Department in conducting
a Privacy Impact Assessment (PIA) of its system(s)yapplication(s)web
portal(s)/website(s) or Department system{s)/application(s)/web
portal(s)lwebs;te(s) hosted by the Contractor, if Personally 1dentifiable Information
(Pl is collected, used, accessed, shared, or stored. To conduct the PIA the
Contractor must provide the Department access to applicable systems and
documentation sufficient to allow the Department to assess, at minimum, the
following: .

1.39.1.1. How Pl is gathered and stored;
, 1.38.1.2. Who will have access to PII;
- 1.39.1.3.  * How Pl will be used in the system:; ,
1.39.1.4. How individual consent will be achieved and revoked; and
1.39.1.5. Privacy practices. '

1.39.2. The Department may conduct follow-up PlAs in the event there are etther
significant process changes or new technologies impacting the collection,

NAMI| New Hampshiré B & A-5-13. " Contractor Initials

RFP-2022-DBH-01-FAMIL-01-204 Page 2.0f § Date_5/13/2024

v7.12.23

+
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processing or storage of Pll.

1.40. Website and Social Media . - L

1.40.1.

1.40.2.

1.40.3.

The Contractor must work with the Department's Communications Bureau to
ensure that any social media or website designed, éreated, or managed on behalf
of the Department meets all Department and NH DolT website and social media
requirements and policies. .

The Contractor agrees Protected Health Information (PHI), Personally identifiable
Information (PI1),. or other Confidential Information solicited either by social media
or the website that is maintained, stored or captured must not be further disclosed
unless expressly provided in the Contract. The solicitation or disclosure of PHI, PII,
or other Confidential Information is subject to the terms of the Department's

JInformalion Security Requirements Exhibit, the Business Associate Agreement

signed by the parties, and ali applicable Departiment and federal law, rules, and
agreements. Unless specifically required by the Agreement and unless clear notice
is provided to users of the website or social media, the Contractor agrees that site
visitation must not be tracked, disclosed or used for website or social media
analytics or marketing.

State of New Hampshire's Website Copyright

1.40.3.1. Allright, title and interest in the State WWW site, including copyright to
all Data and information, shall remain with the State of New Hampshire.
The State of New Hampshire shall also retain all right, title and interest.
in any user interfaces and computer instructions embedded within the
WWW pages. All WWW pages and any other Data or information.shall,
where applicable, display the State of New Hampshlre 5 capyright.

4. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms; Section 1, 10 read:
This Agreement is funded by:

~ a. 4.2% Federal funds, New Hampshire Certified Community Behavioral Health Clinic
Planning Year, as awarded on 3/15/23, by the Substance Abuse and Mental Health
Services Administration, Center for Mental Health Services, ALN 93.829, FAIN
H79SM087622.

b. 3.8% Federal funds, BSCA Center for Mental Health Block Grants, as awarded on
© 8/23/23, by the Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration,
Center for Mental Health Services, ALN 93. 958 FAIN BO9SM089203.

c. 92% General funds,

5. Add Exhibit C-10, Amendment #4, Budget Sheet, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
- reference herein.

6. Add Exhibit C-11, Amendment #4, Budget Sheet, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
- reference herein. ‘_

-

NAMI New Hampshire

A-S5-1.3 " Contractor Initiats ™
8/13/

202%

RFP-2022-DBH-01-FAMIL-01-A04 Page3of5 Date <

v7.12.23

»
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All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This-Amendment shall be effective upon Governor and Council approval.

"IN WITNESS WHEREQF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

DocuSkgned by: i )
8/13/2024 _ Katjs §. for :
E [E[xﬁaﬂd DAT442?
Date Name: Katja s." Fox
T'ﬂe: oirector

. NAMI New Hampshire

r

8/13/2024 - .
Date "
-
"
“ J:‘ )
NAMI New Hampshire - A-8-13
: RFP-2022-DBH-01-FAMIL-01-A04 Page 46f 5 - .

v. 7.12.23

v
1
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|
»

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is abproved as to form, substance, and
execution. e o :
OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

= _ ) Doculigned by:
8/14/2024 _ (_/janjn, Gunins

Date Name: Robyn Guari no .
Title: Attorney

] héreby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on; {date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:-

4o Title:
NAMI New Hampshire A-8-1.3 ) -
RFP-2022-DBH-01-FAMIL-01-A04 - . Page5of5

v, 7.12.23
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Exhibit C-10, Amendment #4, Budget Sheet

3

&

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

. - Contractor Name:

NAMI New Hampshire N .

Budgetl Request for:

CISM Training Coordination

Budget Period

07/01/2024-06/30/2025

01

indirect Cost Rate {if applicable)

Line ltem

Program Cost - Funded by DHHS

T, Venue and Incidentals-(2) in person (3)

day trainings-75 attendees each $49,044
2. Venue and incidentals-(4} In person (2) .

. day Irainings-30 attendees each ) $40,272
3. Virtual Training(4) 1-Day De-Escalation
Trainings-25 attendees 5,056
4. Venue and Incidentals-(4) In person
MHFA trainings one-day -25 aftendees ‘
each $13,768
Total Direct Costs $108,140 |
Total Indirect:Costs $10,814

'$118,954

TOTAL

By

it

RFP-2022-DBH-01-FAMIL-01-A04

Contractor [nitials: C
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i Exhibit C-11, Amendment #4, Budget Sheet
New Hampshire Department of Heaith and Human Sarvices
Contractor Name:|NAMI New Hampshire
’ Budget Request for:|Family Mutual Supporl Services
Budget Periad|7/1/2024 - 6/30/2025
_ Indirect Cost Rate (if applicable)|21%
o Line’ltem Program Cost - Funded by DHHS
1. Salary & Wages $19,835
2. Fringe Benefits - $4,889
3. Consultants 30 |
4. Equipment
* Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to -
equipment costs per 2 CFR 200.1 and
‘ Appendix IV to 2 CFR 200. ' $0
5.(a} Supplies - Educational 50
) 5.{b) Supplies - Lab : . $0
5.{c) Supplies - Pharmacy $0
5.{d)} Supplies - Medical $0.
5.(e) Supplies Office ‘ 30
6. Travel ) 30
7. Software $0
8. (a) Other - Marketing/ Communications $0
8. (b) Other - Education and Training %0 |
8. (c) Other - Other (specify below) 30
Other (please specify) i . $0:
. Other (please specify) 30
Other (please specify) 30
. Other (please specify) $0
’ 9. Subrecipient Contracts $0-
Total Birect Costs $24,724
*| Total Indirect Costs - $6,276
TOTAL $30,000

L)
e

AT

’ ’ o5
1 ) l §S
: Contractor Initials:

8/5/2024

RFP—ZOZZ*DBH:M-FAM!L—01-A04 Date:
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‘STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH

"Lort A Wegver " ‘ 129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH. 03301 .
L Commlysioner ' 603-271-9544. 1-B00-B52-3345 Exl. 9344 d
- Fox: 603-27154331  TOD Actess: 1.800-7135-2964° www.dhhs.al.gov
Kagr's. Fox ' R :
- Director

November 12, 2023

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Hohorable Council .

State House - _

Concord, New Hampshlre 03301

P- . _ REQUESTED ACTION \
Fgulhorize"t_he Bepartiment of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Health;
to amend an existing contract with ' NAMI New Hampshire (VC#186630), Concord, NH to add
funds:to support family mutual support and suicide’ prevention services, by increasing thé price
limitation by $50,000 from $2,872,403 to $2,922,403 with no change 1o the conlract completion”.
dste of June 30, 2025, effective upon Govemor and Council approval. 100% General Furids,

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council 6n June 30, 2021, item #18,
amended on June 15, 2022, item #22, and most recently amended on May 17, 2023, item #25."

Funds are.avallable in'the following accounts for State Fiscal Years 2024 and 2025, with
the -authorlty to adjust budget line items within the price limitation and encumbrances between
slate fiscal years through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

See attached fiscal détails.
EXPLANATION ' .

The: purpose of this request is to add funding so that family mutual suppon providers can.

keep pace with the.cost of service provision. Pursuant to House Bill (HB) 2, Section 550 (2023),
‘funds were made evaliable for this purpose. The Contractor will continue providing ‘statéwide
famity mutual support, public education and suicide. prevention services through suppor;
education and advocacy for aditts and familiés affacted by Serious Mantal-iliness (SM}), as well
as children and their families affected by Sarlous Emotional Disturbance (SED).

‘Approximately 22,000 individuals will be served from July 1, 2023 through June 30, 2035

. The Contractor will continue to provide peer-fiin suppart groups, education classes,

treinings, end advotacy opportuntties for Individuzls and families affected by mental illness

. throughout the state. They will aiso continue to provide an amay of training sessiohs on best
practices for suicide prevention and post intervention for individuals, family members; service
providers, and tha geéneral public. In addition, crisis intervention, suicide intervention, and peer.
feadérship training 8éssiona will be provided.

. The Contractor will continue providing Information to the public through web-based media,
. and distribute electronic and printed materials, upon approval by the Depariment, ~on topics. that
¢ Include family support and educalion programs and resources for gurvivors of a guicide loss.

h ﬁ"he,-CoHira‘otor pariicipates on the New Hampshire Suicide Prevention Coundil as a
mamber organization, end will support implementation of the goals of the suicide prevention
“council's strategic plan. ’ v

£l
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His Excellency, Govemor Chdstopher'r Sununy

and the Honorable Councl - C s
.Pagezofz : i :
_ ' LRI
The Department will continue to monitor these services through the review of data repons
periodic surveys, and other data as requested by the Department to ansure the Con!ractor
pmmdes ot
T Aminimum of eight (8) !ramlng sessions each month; &l
N "o One-on-one family .support programming for a mm!murn of 125 lndivldua!s "
P annually; - e
¢ ‘Web-based support groups te serve a mlmmum of 120 families/caregivers
-annually; » .

o Family, friends, peer, and caregiver education classes for a minimum of 175
! participanis annualy;

Y - e Responses to a minimum of 1,000 phone e-mafl, social mediz messagmg, andior
7 in-person inguiries annually; and e

. "o Community presentations to a minimum of 400 fam:ly members and the general
* public annually on a variety of topics related to Ppromoling awareness of treatment
. and recovery, suicide prevention and early interventions, and advocacy.

v o In~Reach services to residents at the Glencliff Home through an In-Reach Liaison .
who, in collaboration with' the in-reach case manager, assists residents with
explaring s{eps to transitioning back into the community.

¢ One (1) fuli time Community and Stakeholder Engagernent Coo'rdinatqr
(Engagement Coordinator) to inform the development of the NH CCBHC modesl.

Should the Governor and Councll not authorize this request, the Departmentw;ll be unatle

- {o prov:de the Contractor wilth additional funding to keep pace with the cost of service provision,

This may impact services to individuals with severe mental iliness, their families, and parents and

familias of children with serious emotional disturbances, which could result.in an increase in the
rate: of suicides statewide.

Ared sorved: Statewide. ' i
Respectfully submitted,

Lori A. Weaver
Commiastoner

i e
[

o

The Depgmhi&nt of Healthrand Hunian Services' Mission is to}'oa'n communities and fanities” .
> s ' .- inproviding opportunities for eltitens to ashisue hiealth and independence, -



P

-

SUPFORT SERVICES . g R
100% Goneral Funds v . i .
. Vendor Name; NAMI NH : Vendor & 166630-B001 y ,
Stale Fiscal ‘ p - ’ Increase
Yeer Class 7 Account Class Title Job Number, } Current Amount (Decroase) Revisad Amount
2022 102-500731 Confracls for Program Services | - 82304119 | . $532.637.00 §0.00 .>522 637 .00
2023 102-500733 Contracls for Program Services 92204119 §522837.00 - $0.00 p522,637.00
2024 - 102-500731 Caontracis for Program Services 92204110 $522,637.00] $25000.00 $547,637.00
20_25 102-500731 Contracts for Program Servicas 92204119 $522 637.00) 325,000.00 $547,6837.00
- = Sub Tota! $2, 090 548. 00 [ 350.000.00] ___82,740,648.00
06:96-092-322010.41470000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF, 5 N
HMS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV OF, BUREAU OF MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES, CMH PROGRAM
SUPPORT . .
100% General Funds . = ' .
* Vandor Name: NAMI NH Vendor # $66630-8001 . .
Stato Fiscal | o i r s ; : ’ Increase ;
vear | Ctess/Account Ciass Title Job Number | Current Amount (Decrease)- Revised Amount
2022 102-500731 Conlracts for Progrom Services 02204117 -$100,000.00] $0.00 $100,000.00,
. 2023 102-500731 Conlracls for Program Seivices 2204117 $192.465.00 S0.00 $192 46500,
2024- 102-5007314 Conlracts for Program Services 92204117 $192 465.00 $0.00 $192 485.00
2028 102-500731 - | Conlracts for Program Sarvices 92204117 '+ $192 465,00 $0.08 $192,465.00
g T ‘- EY Sub Tolaf $677,395.00 $0.00] $677,395.00|
06.55.092-522010.13090000 HEALTH-AND SOCIAL S8ERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF, .
+ HHS! BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV OF, BUREAU OF MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES, SAMHSA GRANT
100% Federa! Funds: 5 N .
Vendor Nemo: NAMINH ~ ~ ¥ Y Vendor # 166630-B001 .
| State Fiscal - . : .o o Incrossa - e .
Year . Qlass / Ao_counl _ ‘Class Tille \ Job Number Cl.n'reql Amnunt_ (Decraase) Revised Amount
2024 1. 102-500731 Conlracts for Program Services - 18D $104.460.00] . :0.00 3104.480.001
2035 . 102-500731 - Conlracts for Program Services T80 . $0.00 30.001 - - $0.00
, _ . S ® r Sub Tolal $104,460,00] $0.00 $104,460.00
. e R
= @ [ TOTAL ]  $2,872,403.00] - $60,000.00] sz 822,403. oo] .,
[ A .
. * kf
. z = b . B i ¥
’.'x;‘-s-j - t . & ; B -‘-‘ L
d - el N 1
| - - ‘ ’ s J ] K Y
iy " - : o 3 ;Js fg
s Governor and Coundil Letter Attachment " . ’
' Financial Detail *

* .
£ S =

DocuSign Envaropa ID: EF3235AD—F9PF—4679-81EB-8808158?4471
s 'DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
j . RFP-2022:-DBH-01-FAMIL-01-A02
FISCAL DETAIL SHEET

- * W

05-95-09_2-922010-41190%0 HEALTH ANO SOCIAI: SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF,
HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV OF, BUREAU OF MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES, FAMILY MUTUAL

-
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.

R e ! 4 State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services .
Amendment #3 . T,

This Amendment te the Family Mutual Support Services contract is by and between the State of New
- Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services ("State" or "Department”) ‘and NAMI New

Hampshin‘;g ("the Contractor”). . , R

WHEREAS, purstant to an agreement (the "Contract”) approved.by the Governor and Executive. Council

i on June 30, 2021 (ltem #18), as amended on June- 15, 2022 (ltemn #22), as amended on May 17, 2023
(ltem #25), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions

o specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

- WHEREAS, -pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, the Contract may be amended upon written
agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council: and

NOW THEREFORE, In consideration of the foregolng and the mutual covenants.and conditions contained
In the Contract and set forth hersin, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:: .

1. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitétion. to read:

. $2.922403 - .

2. Modity Exhibit C-4, Amendment #2, SFY 2024 Budget Sheet,r in its, entirety with Exhibit C-4,
‘Amendment #3, Budget Sheet, which s attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.”

3. Modify Exhibit C-6, Amendment #2, SFY 2025 Budget Sheet, In its entirety with Exhibit C-6,
Amendment #3, Budggt Sheet, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

4. Add Exhibit C-8, Amendment #3, Budget Sheet, which is attached hereto and incorporated. by
reference herein, '

5. Add Exhibit C-9, Amen'dmen‘t. #3; Budgef Sheet,-which s éttachéd hereto and incorporated by

reference hereln. P | ‘
. . 5 4 h
* ? {
\ *o . . —
.‘!. s
jiii
, ¥ K *’&i
. ”
E " k *.
NIEN R * * - s
- SH s
NAMI New Hampshire . ) A-8-1.3 ) Contractor Initials .
y V. 11/28/2073
RFP-2022-DBH-01-FAMIL-01-A03 Page 10l 3 . Dae TR
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-

’

All terms and condmons of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain 4

in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective upon Governor and Council approval

‘.

IN WITNESS WHEF_QE_OF. the parties have:se't thelr hands as-.of'the_ date writlen below,

-

11/29/2023
Date .
i 11/28/2023
Date

NAMI New Hampshrre

v. 71223

¥ R

RFP-2022-D8H-01 FAMIL-01-A03 ‘

*

State of New Hampshire

Department of Health and Human Servrces

Title:  gxecutive pirector
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]
»

The preceding Amendment having been reviewed by this oﬂ” ica, is approved as to form, substance and
execution.

: : OFFICE OF THEATTORNEY GENERAL - *
11/29/2023 & ' '
Date _ . a
h Title: Attorney . .
| hareby certify that the foregolng Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Councl of
the State of New Hampshxre at the Meating on: .{date of mesting)
OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE
Date : Nams
. . . Title
J : . hd ~ :
- \‘w ‘ ¢ ; 5
i & T )
Y o e L :
[ g . » . " S . ~
¥ r;: wr . " Y
4 -
5 . bl & e -
o rEd o
2 :'G.. 'i_‘; : :
- NAMI New Hampshiie ' A-S-1.3
RFP-2022-DBH-01-FAMIL-01-A03 & *:  Page3of3 '
v.7.42.23 | s
$ 5 ' L { ¥
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““3 T . Exhibit C-4 Amendment #3, Budget Sheet , ’ o
' _ New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services .
! _Contractor Name:{NAMI:New Hampshirds > v~ 2§, T a " :
. - o % Budget Request for:|EamilyiMutial SupfportiServices R . o '
o i Budget Period|7/1/2023- ‘6!30!2024r::,‘:,’;.-. ErSEr s - =
- . —__Indirect Cost Rate (if applicable}|26:6%: L
i -
. '.‘. L o 1 e T e o s &
N %% émﬁmamf‘gwﬂ%l EooL
. = " 4 Salary & Waae Sa!ary& Wages . ) S G .Jx, PRI B419:2343 | ’ A .
R 2.. Fringe Benefits = ' -;'.’-' < §89,419: i .
" .. |[3.... Consultants . s T T80
e & T .. |3 Equipment - ; SN :
. R Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to .
; ~ |equipment costs per 2 CFR 200.1 and - v
. Appendix IV to 2 CFR 200.
: . 15.(a) Supplies - Educational
1o . " {5.4b) Supplies - Lab B
. . . |5-{e) Supplies - Pharmacy -
. LT “ [6.4d) Supplies - Medical .
) - S5.4{e) Suppliss Office
e 8. Travel - .
7. GSoftware - . .
8 © «  |8.{=) Other - Marketing/ Communications , ¢ o
- . . B - 8. {b) Other - Educationi and Training
¢ - |8. {¢) Othar - Other{specnfy helow) - o R, E e e .
- Postage. R = _,'-«. oo 52 500 : : °
. ___Other (please specify) N o filen - - ooty en §0, . 3
> Other (please specify) 5 LSRR .'1-?*,&505 :
Qther {please specify) o e300 . .
. ~ |8. Subrecipient Contracts ~ C S TS0 _
" |TotelDirect Costs ___* ;. N T $540,887
3 % Toftal Indirect Costs . R R M I e R E R ICAL T .
, [ToTAL - - L i, w7 v Mgl 5652097 ', )
A i g ¥ - Vo . .
- . T e 7 ’ Contractor Iitizl: e
RFP:2022-DBH-D1-FAMIL-01-A03 4 T . . s Date.hllfzalzoza

> *
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Esthibit. C-6 Amendment #3, Budget Sheet - .

— New Ha:ﬁpshire Department of Health and Human Services

= Contractor Name:

NAMENGWHampsho BT aiases]

‘Budget Request for:

Ramity MutualiSupportiServicessis!

Budget Period

1141202456730/ 2026 R r v |

“Indirect Cost Rate (it applicable)

[26:6%6 5 S Ta “*“‘Mf

1. ‘Sa!ary&Wages i .

T T
S ﬁn&ml%} "él.

2 ‘I".g‘-;',
i b&i‘f-l 5

,‘U ‘n_l.

2. Fringe Benefits ’ ! mwm;zﬂrm ".-3&33‘&574’.'40&
3. Cohsultants EE = .«--!.1='a£' F R SRR TR S]]
4. Equipment o ¥

Indirect cost rate cannot be applied o
equipment costs par 2 CFR 200.1 and
AppendixiV to 2 CFR 200.

&' A T q’ rAns
5 Herdl ﬂ

i~
]

§’ ﬁ&mmﬂ: -'F‘- sk

5.(a) Supplies - Educational

RS A NSRS 780

5.(b) Supplies-Lab

m T \:Hcé.*‘\"’%{a&%;‘ﬂﬁﬁo

5.(c)- Supplies - Pharmacy o

Al S L S e rr'r.»::wu:iﬁ._

5.(d) Supplies - Madical*

R A B S A e o0 1

5_(e) Supplies Office

. 'i%a:“" "‘?.s'f P “-T%'ium r:-?ff-',,c“““sl)‘

6. Travel . ”

R g

7. Software.

RN LA T AR S G

.+ |8. (a) Other - Markehngl Commumcauons

: l-'ési':'i“:f:‘:f' = .:muf-zhmsa:—n 93

8. (b} Other - Education and Training

SN G LOVRN R 52:34 01

8. (¢) Other - Qther (specify balow)

s SRS AN T AR SO

Other (postags) e :c,;s- ':n‘:ﬁiﬁ SRR $2i500;
COther (please,specify)‘ N EN iy .‘f*m;ﬁ;ﬁ%,‘%ﬁiﬁz

© Other (please specify) -

e

Other (please specify) S s Dot T e \.d'&-._SO

9. Subrecipient Contracts -l ’pi#‘rd' AN ERER LTI W 0;

Total Direct Costs e lh%‘ﬁ.—i&ﬂb?"?? et Ay 3453 5895

Totai Indirect Costs B » W‘?B‘%ﬁ\?{ n‘i'léf".:"-?'c?i."-$$.9.‘1§043.1
[ToTAL PR T A TR SBATIO3 |

o

Contractor Inftial; _N———:
11/28/2023
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- DotuSign Envelope [0: EF3235AD-FODF46T9-81ER-BE0B 15674471 ) ) " .
-' T Co " Exhibit C-8 Amendment #3, Budget Sheet - s
s . - . : ! ’ 25 : )
: o T e New Hampshire Departnent of Health and Human Services
o Contractor Name:[NAMINowW Harmpehire 3 s e mrn o Co
- . . - Sujelda; Prevantzon Coahhon-FlsEr—-;
. Budget Request for: Agentﬁr '%‘i ‘??F:f.' e M@;ﬁ. ) oo .
. ) Budget Period 7)1!2023'."’6)‘30[2024 W«‘”‘(sﬁﬁ# -
. Indirect Cost Rate {if applicable)|0.0% xSy puntemaas)’ oo
. : ‘ R ] W]FMF e mwws-m. ST -
) ¢ £ e dhs ] :l"’:.nzﬁ‘:ﬁn-:ezs%nj___‘.;’;;ﬁﬁ: %9& cos% "mea W} )
. 1 Salary& Wages : e 'ﬂf_i-’%’.'.ﬁ"'ii‘rﬁ" Ms?&g.ﬁ'? 4z - : .
% 2. Fringe Benefits . - lim%”ﬁﬁ‘f‘?él*ﬂ%wﬁﬁtsm' ’ :
: 5 .- |3. Consultants (,;3:’:-'3"@:-: Lt e i
’ - 4. Equipment . - . B
e Indirect cost.rate cannot be epplied to "
. equipment costs per 2 CFR 200.1 and ¢ phEadls 72 .
* " - |Appendix IV to0 2 CFR 200: R s faie ;gﬂ- %‘;ﬁi‘ -
. ' ) " |5(a}_Suppfies - Educational " i‘%“e.ﬁ‘*-..“’?.»‘!..:’é{ 27 Y<%'.ﬁ.3?si5§3¥-9k‘50r : . N .
BRE . . 5.(b) Supplies - Lab R R AP R LT S0 ' ’
& ’ . [5ic) Supplies - Pharmaey - - ~hdxm-»wsr¢mﬁamﬁwmes $0: o
: " [|5(d) Supplies - Medical - R R R A e S0 :
ER L . 5.(e) Supplies Office RGO e L s TRt 0 i
8. Travel . : *aﬁﬂ:aiémvhm’@mm.-#a 2:$0:
BEAS - . 7. Software . UM N Iy BT D ;so‘- -
. 8. (8} Other - Marketing/ Communications i T8 )it RS ntetiiiorne S )
. _18. (b) Other - Education and Training o e L 1 IL.- ;‘;;50?. 5 -
’ e " 18, (¢} Other - Other (specify below) VR e S YRR St e SO - . N ;
- ot Outside Senvices A e S T Y 588820, .
' . . Cther {please specify) e e L L e 1
Other (pleasa specify) Yhe f AT SIS IEAET 80 7 :
a . . “Other (please specify) A S R RSP Hat TR A1 . . .
! Y S. Subrecipient Contracts - . _ R A W 2RSSR S0 ¢ ’
- - . Total Direct Costs T A L e ;.s_.a.,$100.000;- - -
- > - e -
N . Tota! Indirect Costs, ™ i y E"'; Siltas Mw—oi-‘m;m} 7 $ﬂ,
& TOTAL « N AT IR ST _&,moo;nqo:; v . .
S ’ o y e Contractor Initiat: _
RFP-2022-DBH-01-FAMIL-01-A03 T - . Datet¥/28/2023.
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: Exhibit C-9 Amendment #3, Budget Sheet 7 .
New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services T
Contractor Name:]NAMINew Hampshire T aars "
Suﬂcngfeiranhonﬁ- alitio ton:hiscal, '*fl .
Budget Request for:|Rgni: 5 ik .1“:*‘.‘.-?:‘6"?3:*@:.*-:-.-5“ -
: Budget Period|7/1/2024:= SfGUIZOZSt by el P £
" Indireci Cost Rate (f appilcable) | 0:0% A me i EAe '”'?ﬁr* B B
“mga-a::r : Ry z . .
: e Wl - !Agg@m B f%%ﬁﬂﬁa ; _ | .l
“11. Salary & Wages - T T T e T A :
2. Fringe Benefits B . TR RN A e B, 5008 .
3. Consultants ety ""“""‘""-‘-‘%‘WSO,: ooy
4, Equipment -~ - [ATIEESE TR v B . ae
Jindirect cost rate cannot be applied to Iﬁi"‘»%"ﬁ?‘{#?f A LT .
equipment costs per 2 CFR 200.1 and ;|52 _.ﬁéig’zﬁ, iy
TAppendix IV 1o 2 CFR 200. LR A e sy 501{ . " -
5.{a) Supplies - Educational R A T s:.‘ass}-tv;oi * o -
{5.(b) Supplies - Lab R S D e e LT . -
5.(c) ‘Supplies - Pharmacy - i‘ic":“in?»f‘c."'" D T A DA '
5.(d) Supplies - Medical NERE %\?M%’F’r’kﬂ zasoll N
5.(0) Supplies Ofiice .s.m‘:-,\..- R R A S UE
6. Trave) v ani ,rﬁlrﬁﬁﬁ%f”ﬁwmo-
7. Sofware . A "r'}“j"-‘s"uéf‘ ST xﬁ' A F0L .
8. (&) Other - Marketing/ Commumcaﬂons C“E?hé&t.\ MR "“&Fﬁf"‘ 502 . ,
8. (b) Other - Education and T raining F TR ,rt.}t» T (2§03 ;
8, (¢) Cther - Other (specify beiow} F B e R e e P PRk U1 - -
Quiside Services S - TR L 5881920, ) ) .
Other (please spacify) . : ”w%"‘r‘“‘""‘)f“mﬂ e Re 30 .
Other (please spacify) i ‘1‘5 R TR B0
. Olher (please spacify) o .I‘E:JCQ'.-,-:\« .k-J.SU: ' -,
9. Subrecipient Contracts SR .'.-d,a-r-» mii»’i% FETRRTT )
Total Direct Costs e e e E R A 25.100.000; L B -
Tclal Indirect Costs ’ . SRR Rl Ty b Varen e pe i U I .- 3
[ToTAL R S T T ey S 00,0008 . .

e . 03
. < - t. * l SS
s . Contractor Initial:

1w
4

o Date:

" i3 : . 11/28/2023 .

=
-y
-
o
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'STATE/QF NEW HAMPSHIRE
. DEPARTNENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

'lﬁ.PﬁEASAN’['_m;';‘ CONCORD, WH- 03301 .

Lot AWearer. - 2 T
_Iriterim Comitaslader : oo . 6032719544 1-800-852-3345 Fat. 9544 I B
) . Fox: 603-271-4331 'TDD Accesy; 1-800-7352964  wiyedhla.ob,gov
Knt)s S. Fox ; .
Dirciter . . ‘
. . April 27, 2023 ) .
His Excellency, Governor Christophsr T, Sununu
+ and the Honorable Council,
State Hougs,

Coneord, New Hampshire 03301

_ Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Health,
to amend an existing contract with NAM] New Hampshire (VC #166630), Concord, NH, for family
mutual support and suicidé prevention services, by exercising @ contract renewal option by
increasing the price limitation by $1,534,664 from $1,337,735-t0 $2,872,403 and extending the
cempletion date from June 30,.2023 to June 30, 2025, affective July 1, 2023, upon Governor.and

«Counc_ll_appr'pua]. 100% Genaral Funds,

The original contract was-approved by Govemor énd Councli on June 30, 2021, ltem #18,

and amended with Governor and Council approval on June 18, 2022, ilem #22.

Funds are anticlated to he avallable In the following accounts for State Fiscal Yoars 2_0_2;1
and 2025, upon the availabllity and. conlinusd eppropriation of funds in the fiture operating
budget, with the autherity to adjust budget ling ltems within the price limitation and encumbrancas
between state fiscal ysars tpr__ough tha Budget Office, if naeded and justified. B
. $seattached fiscal details. '

. . (EXPLANATION o "

‘Thie;purposa of fhis request is to llw the Gantrastor to coninue providing family mutual
support; ‘public. education and suicide. prévention services through support, educstion and
advocacy for adults and families affectéd by Serious Mental [liness (SM1), as well as.children and

thelr famtlies affected by Sérious EmotionalDisturbance (SED).

. Additionally, the-Contractor wil hire one (1) full ime Engagement CQOrrfinaluE-ma will
solicit Input, convene arid codrdinate a Stakeholder Advisory Cotincil, facilitate the development
of parinerships, &nd provide technical asslstance to community mental health centers to
awarded by the Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration, Approximately
22,000 individugls Wil ba served from July 1, 2023 thraugh June 30, 2025, - "

The Gonhtractor provides services to adulls 18 years of age and older with 8M), and
children under 18 .years of age with SED, and their family members, as woll as mental health
service providere and the general public. . : : -

_ Thé Contractar. Wil continue io provide pser-run support groups: education classes, -
trainings, and advosacy opportunitiss for individuals and families affected by mental liness .

throughait the state. They will also continus to provide an array of training sessions on best
praclices for suicide prevention and past Intérvention for individuals, famlly members, servicé

provlders, and the general pubilc. In addition, crisis intervention, suig:idq_ Intervention, and peer

teadership raining sessions will be provided.  *_ ©, - )

21

a ] o .
fut & * * . o o
- -

SR L LT T

"REQUESTED ACTION = : Lo

DEVISION. FDR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH B

. Incorporate consumer:and family {aput Into organizational aclivitles, as requlred by the gramt.
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His Excaloncy, Govaroor Christopher T Sununy Y
. and the Honoratls Coungl)
Pego20f2 : i - . )

. The Contfactor will continus pravlding lnrormatmn to the public lhrough web-based medis,
and distribute elastronic and printed materials, upoh approval by the Department, on toplcs that

) include family suppart and educatzon programs and reésources for survivars of a suicide Ioss

- The Cantractor parficipates on the New Hampshire Suiclde Prevention Colngll 83 8
membar organization, end will support implementation of the goals of the su:dde prevention
council's strategic plan,

% -The Depariment will monitor services to ensure the Contractor provides:
¢ A minimum of eight (8) tralning sessions each month ' @ o
ik
- + Ons-on-one family support pmgrammmg for & minimum of 125 Individualy

. annually;

;" o Web-based support groups 1o serve @ minimum of 120 .families/caregivers

td annually;

. o Family, frlends; pasr, and caregwer education classes for.a minimum of 176 -

participants annually; . . .

* Responsas fo a minimum of 1,000 phane, o mail social maedia massaglng. andlor
: In-person Inqulr!as annually; and . _

o Gornmurmy presentations {0 a minimum of 400 family members and the general

. and recovery, suicide prevention and early inlerventions, and advocecy

S in-Reach services to residents at the Glenclif Home 1hmugh an In-Redch Lialson'

who, In collaboration with the inweach cage manager, assists res!den!s with
exploring steps to trensitioning back into tha communlly

e One (1) full time Community ang Stakeholdar Engagement Coordinator -

(Engagement Coordlnalor) to inform the development of the NH CCBHC model

As reforenced in Exhibit A, Revisions ta Standdsd Agreement Provisions, of the onglnal
agresment, the parties have the option to extand the agreemant for up to four (4) additional years,
contingant upon satisfactory delivery of eervicss, avallable funding, agreement of thé parties and
‘Govarrior and Councll approval. The Department Is axerclsing its option to renew servicas for two

_(2) years of tha four {(4) years available. o .

. Shuuld the Govemnor and Councll nol authorize thrs request, indwldua!s with severe
menta} liness, thelr faniilies, and parents and families of children with serious emotional

public annually on a variety of topics related to promoting awareness of treatmant

disturbancag may not have access fo these servites that assist tham to navigate the manta) health -

system. In additien, families and professionals may not have access to tralning, orto suppon
.group leadership and advotacy networks that provide assistance to preven! sulmde wiilch could
result in anincrease inthe rate of suicides s!alemde .

. .,

Asea served: Statewide. , . y
Y “Respectiully submitted,
5 Lol H F'-—
, : ) Lori A. Weaver 2
irtetim Commissiones T
& ,,~ . ) . .
‘ N 7 : ' ol
Th‘ Depariment of Health and Humon Seruices’ Mirsion iv o join rvmnwni‘ues cr.dfamueu T
in providing opporlumdafor cilizeng to odueve heolth ond independence. - et
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. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
<, o RFP-2022-DBH-01-FAMIL-61-A02
e 5 . * FISCAL DETAIL SHEET

o 05.85.082.922010-41190000 HEALTH ANO SOCIAL SERVIGES, HEALTH AKD HUMAN SVCS

DEPT QF, HHS: BEHAVIQRAL HEALTH DIV OF, BUREAU OF MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES,
FAMILY MUTUAL SUPPORT SERVICES

100% Goneral Funds . o . ", . i
bl Larpd N"':
Vandor Nama: NAMINH HI . -+ Vendor¥ A66630-8001 .
Stal\?el;}?e;al Classmucount © Class Tle Job Number . | Currenl Amotnt ({;nwc amﬂﬁif Revised Amount |-
2022 102-500731__|_Coniradls fof Program Services | 92204119 $522.637.00 %000 $522,.637.00] .
2023 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 02204119 £522,637.00 __$0.00 522,637.00!
2024 102-500781 -1 -Coniads o rem Senvices | 92204119 $0.00 5522 837.00 $522,637.00
2025 102500731 .| _Conlracts for Propram Sorndoss 92204110 $0.00] $522,677.00 £522,637.00
" ' L Sub Total 31,045, 214 00 $1.045274,001 82090 548.00
; " % = -

05-05-092:022010-41170000 HEALTH AND soclAl. BERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN sves
DEPT QF, HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV OF, BUREAU OF MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES, CMH

PROGRAM SUPPORT . B .
100% Genoral Funds ' © "
Vendor Name: NAM) NH = . Vendor # 166630-8001 .-
Stale Fiscaf | - I Increase
Year Ctass { Acoount ] Class Thie Job Number | Cunenl Amounl | | {Decreace) Revised Amount
s Q0R2 4 -:102-50073i, ‘1 Contracts for Frogrem Sanvices 52204117 $£100.000.00 - $0.00 £100.000.00
2023 102-500731 . Canlradls for Program Senvices 92204117 . 519246500 $0.00 5192,465.00] .
2024 $02-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92204117 . $0.00 $182 465.00 $192.4585.001
2925 -1 102.500731 Contracts for Program Sendces 92204117 50001 ° $182 46500 $192,465.00
B A, | up Tolal §2.465. $384,930.00] - $677,395.00
7 - = ™ T o,
05:95-092-522010-19090000- HEALTH AND BOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND RUMAN SVCS S
DEFT OF, HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DV OF, BUREAU OF MENTAL HEALTH SERVIC ES, .
. SAMHSA GRANT ) _ . ¥ 0
100% Fodoral Funds o . o :
Vendo: Name:NAMINH__~ . {__ Vendori 166630:8001 #
Slal‘?ei;s | Classt Account | = ' Closs Tit . Job Number " Curment Amount mh’lﬂg;:;}- | Revised Amoynt’
04 102-5007 21 Canlratls (o Program Senvices -TeD *$0.00§ “§104.480.00] °  $104,480.00
42025 102-500731 Contrects for Program Senvices 180 $000) . - £0.00] $0.00
< | SubTotsl _{+ _S0.00[.  $104,460.60 $104,460.00

g’; Page 1of1 &

- = h i3 - ek - - - e
B : [TTTOTAL | $1,337,739.00] ~_ 51,634,664.00]  $2,872,403.00]
h ig_j“ : - N " ™
“y . . ) o
(i #y o3 . : . .;-f;:}[
- i * & .
X i N ) .
ik - . : ,"! ’ H
Y B R \ .
1. < . .
S !
= k24 i )
ey i . o o
Lk - . \ o -
Governor and Councli Lettef Attachment e i
L Flnancial Detatl iy o 9,
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State of New Hampshire !
Department of Health and Human Services N
Amendment #2 ‘

T

This Amendment to-the Family Mutual Support Services contract is by and between the State of New
Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services ("State” or “Department™) and NAM! New

Hampshire ("the Contractar™), _ ,
WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contrat”) approved by the Govemor and Executive Council

. "on June 30, 2021 (tem #18), as amanded on June 15, 2022 (ltem #22), the Conlractdr agreed to perform
certain services based upon thé terms and conditions specified in. the Contract as amended and in
consideration of certain sums speacified: and . . -

.." . WHEREAS, pursuant {o Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph '17. and Exhibit ‘A, Revisions 1o
Standard Agreement Provisions, the Contract may be amendad upon writlen agreemsnt of the parties

- - and approval from the Governor and Executive Councll; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the lerm of the Bgreement, increase the price limiation, and
modify the-scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and "

NOW THEREFORE, fn consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenanis and conditions contained
in the Coniract and se! forth herein, the parlies hereto agree to amend as folfows: B

*1." Form P-37 General Peovislons, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:
-June 30,2025

Hive B

NAMI New Hampzhka
C T . RFP-2022-0BH-01-FAMIL01-A02 Pags 1 of 4 . Dale

2.

9. Add Exhibit C-5, Amendment #2,

~

Form P-37, General Prpvisions_. Block 1.8, Price Limitalion, to read: g

$2,872,403 : ©. : N . .

Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.9, C’:ontractlng Officer for State Agency, ta read:
Robert W. Moore, Director Co

Add Exhibit B-2 - Amendment #2, Additional Scope of Services, Community and Slakeholder
Engagement Coordinator, which is attached herelo and'incarporated by seferance hereln,
Modify Exhibit C, Paymeni Terms, Section 2, to read: S

2. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basts for actual expenditures incurred in the
fulfillment ‘of this* Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved ling item,. as

. specified in Exhibit C-1, Amendment #1, SFY 2022 Budget through Exhibit C-7, Amendment
#2, SFY 2025 Glencliff Home In-Reach Budget, Y

Modify Exhivit C, Payiment Terms, Section 7, to read:

7. The Contractor must provide the services in Exhibil 8, Scope’ of Services, Exhibit B-1,
Amendment #1, Glencliff Home In-Reach Seivices, and Exhibit B-2 ~ Amendment -#2,

*
i
im ¥

Additional Scope of Seivices, Community and Stakeholder, Engagement. Coordinator, in - %-

. complianca with funding requirements.

. Modify Exhioit C, Payment Terms, Section 8,10 read: .

8. The Conlraclor agrees that funding under this Agreemient may be withheld, in whole or In part

in the event of non-compliance with the terms and conditions of Exhibit B, Scope of Services,

-+ Exhibit B-1, Amendment #1, Glencliff Home In-Reach Sewices, and Exhibil B-2 — Améndment
* #2, Additional Scops of Services, Communily and Stakeholder Engagemant Coordinator,

8, Add Exhibit C-4, Amiendmerit #2; SFY 2024 Bu_ﬂget. which is attached-hereto, and fncorpor‘éted by

reference herein. .

SFY 2024 Budget, Glencliff. Home In-Reach Budget, whigh is
Y

-

“Contraclor Initals” A

4/27/202.5 .

e,
g

ASa3

M

-
A

VaTef
REN S
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attached herato and incorporated by reference heraln. Lo
10. Add Exhibit C-6, Amendment #2, SFY 2025 Budgel which is attached hereto and mcorporated by
e refemnce herein: - . .
11 Add Exhibit C-7, Amendment #2, SFY 2025, Glenclff Home In-Reach Budget. _
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All terms-and conditions of the Contraci and prior emendments nol modified by this Amendment remain
In Rl force and effect. This Amendment shalf be effective July 1, 2023, upon Govemor and' Counctl
approval whichevar is later.

- - - 1y

L. IN WITNESS WHEREOF the partles have-set their hands as of the date written be!ow “

' " - ' N /7

& ) T, i State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services . .

Y .
s o v
as21/2023 - ¢
) Date SV Name Katda o Fox . -
‘ 9T Tile: psrector A
. ! v Lo
NAMI New Hampshlre o ow - .
4/27/2023 v .
¥ e
Dale - te . } *
‘5 =
e i . I i
= . B
& * i ! 2 " 1
I s, ¥ & ’ Y ’ I
” - ' ; L.
. - v ‘ .
"y !
* & - 1
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L3 i . o ¥
Co L 4 8 gL L
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3’1 The preceding Amendmient, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
» T execulion. : S .
. ; . 37
, " . OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL .
a " "3 : - P . ' ' . 2 " . =i
R G A ¥ == DG ead byt W & S ;'
4728/2023 o , E/-)‘?hgw Gutrina o o
) ‘ S ) TATUSIHID,. )
Date - Name:Robyn Guarino - oyt ” s
e i Title: attoraay . : g )
. ; | hereby certify that the foregoing Améndmegt was approved by the Governor-and Executive Council of .
o the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: ; {date of maeting) . '
: - [ ‘OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE
e ¢ o + *
r, i N :
] Dat@ i . . Name: w h ]
* Title; . .
a * 4 a
= h * ‘, - 1.4
. ) . e » . ) : % i B
I . - : s A - ' *+ o)
; £ B . ‘ = .~
* s q ’ . 14 - : .
. . i i' W v ‘:'
l!‘a; o *: * ‘-;_:': i I : e
a - . - o *
:? - ' S ) 4
I . L E .
gs * ‘ W " ' L ‘ h’
i e “ " * - . i %
.- * . . Ex . . had & - . * =
’ - [ % .
« < % i - '
) i{-g P & % - s e )
’ e . - x%;z P ' ‘ '
" * NAMI New Hampshite AS12 s , : o
= RFP-2022-DBH-01:FAMIL-D1-A0Z * , Page 4ol 4 . 5 T
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New Hampshire Departmem of Health and Human Services.
Temporary Staff Services |

i

t

EXHIB!T B-z Amendment #2

: ‘s 1.2.2.11. Harbor Momes. . ~ co
_ JLJ
RFP-2022-DOH-01-FAMIL-01-AD2 - . COmtretor llliats Nmmemeem—n
. . . _ 4/27/2023
NAMI Now Hompshiro ., ° Page 1013 mm_—_,

k3

R

vk,

L

. [ u .
1 . R }3

- Additional Scope of Services; . : e

Communily and Stakeholder Engagement Coordmator

Y Overview and Statement of Work a

o

Engagemem Coordinator (Engagemem Coordinatory who will: - = -2

L 1.1.1.

. 112
‘., : ?:?‘L,‘::‘ . 1.1.‘3-I

Coordinate, convene, and solicit input from- a Slakeholder Adwsoxy'
Counct  while co!]aboratmg ‘with the DHHS Coordinated-

Comprehensive Behavioral Heatth Care (CCBHC) Project Director:
Facilitate the deve!opment of partnerships; and * i -

Provide téchnical assistence to .Community. Mental Health Centers
(CMHCs) to mcorporata consumer and farnriy mpul into organizational
activities. s

) oo 12 ' During the- planning year the Contractot must ensure the Engagement

1.24.1. Peers.
1.2.1.2. " Fanily members

Coordinator. ..

1.21.° Engages Contractdr staff and slakeholders to inform the development__

- of the NH CCBHC mode), whlch mcudes but is not limited to: . ..

-

.

1.2.1.3. Communities in stakeholder workgroups

.2, . Obtains stakeholder input lhroughoul the 'state from indw:duals wzth-
. SUD andformental illness, families and others affected by SUD and/or

mentalillness, and stakeholder organization, through regional listening
sessions. Stakeholder organizations include, but are not limited to:

1.2.2.1. Ascentria Care Alliance.” %

1:2.2.2.  National Hispanlc institute, (NHI} New England Chapter

1,2:2.3. Mt Kears_arge Inclian Mus_eum (MKIM).

" .1.2.2.4. " Rural Outright. , :
Z'jﬁ . 1225, "Hope for NH Recovery (HNHR),

" '1.2.2.6. -NH Hamm Reduction Coalition, L
1.22.7. "Famum Center in Manchester. o

" 1.228.. RO.A.D to Betier Life in Nashua.

1,229, Headrest, Inc.
1.2,2.10. Familiesin Transition (FIT).

; 1.1, The Contractor must provide one (1) full time Commumty and Stakeholdar -

#ik,

Pl
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12212,
T 1228
T 12248,
o 12215,

Waypolnt T ’ e
"Youth MOV.E New Hampshire: " - r
‘Mental Health Courts. - ‘
NH Mental Health Peer Support Agencaes

1.2.3. Ensures inputis received from. populaﬂons including, but not limited to:

#0123
- 1232,
o 1.233.

o 1.2.34,

1.235.

L :‘ v ) 1.2-3-‘6.

L .- 1238
1.2.3.9.

1.2,3.10.
L1.23.11.

123,12,
c 1233,

N

124, Engages stakeholders to devélop a process of board govemanoe or
other appropriate opportunities for meaningful input by consumers,

1.23.7.

Btack, Lating, !ndlgenous and Nalive American persons,
Asian Americans and Pacific Islanders and other persons of .
color:

LI

Members of religious minorities. F e

Lesblan, gay, busaxual transgender and queer. (LGBTQ+)
persons.

Persons wlih“ disabilities.
Peréops who live in rural areas.
Persons who have immigrated. i
Persons of refugee status. )
Persons of migrant status. "
Youth persons. . s . LR __
Young adult persons.” ' - o
Persons Serving in the military.
_Persons who are of Veteran status.

Persons otherwise adversely affected by persastent poverty
or Inequahty .

.

el

b L5
- By

,.‘o:i,-'

e persons in Tecovery, and family members‘in CCBHC oversight,

* 126, Provides suppori in the development and preparationof the application ’
to part:cfpate in-a four {4) year CCBHC Demonstration Program.

)
‘&’

#

ED

RFPH220BHO1-FAMIL-01-A02
NAMI New Hampehitp  °
: oAl

P2 -
3 ;

1.2.6‘. Advocates to further expand opporiunities o deliver coordznated'
: comprehensive behavioral health care through the CCBHC moda)..

T '1.2.7 -Attends the monthly Department CCBHC LLeadership-team meeting.

4

. . ( .-, o
L .

‘ Contrattor Iritlats_—
4/21/2D23
Page 2613 . . - Dalo

54
L
e
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» 13, Reporing - ° . .
" - 131, The Contractor must submits a"Stakeholder Engagement Progress
.7 " Repod to the Departmanl CCBHC Leadership team on a monthly .-
basis.
1.3.2. -The contractor must submits quarterijr reports to the Department :
- CCBHC Leadeship Team that includes, butis not limited to:
. w i 1.3.2.1. Stakeholder engagement aclivities. s
v '1.3.2.2, Feedback received. . ) .
- - ) A X - * * . i
i - wo" v )
L R ’ o, * -‘ .
. 3 .
2 d.o x
LV . - £ .
SR .' - N e, * . ! + 4
i - K
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L] ' - . y . 3r
_ s i
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
' DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES .

i

NAY25'22%n 3127 Roap

.
o
. .
-8
» (H . )
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LS

i

DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH

§19 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 063301
6032719544 1SUG8S1-04T ExL 954
Foaa: 603-270-4X02 TDDAccess: 1-8-00-73&2964 W Ahb. nh.sw

- ® L

.

His Excellency. Govemor Christopher T: Summu
and the Honoratle Councll
State House "

Cancord, New Hampamre 0330i

HUMAN SVCS DEPY OF; HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALYH QIV OF, QUREAU OF MENVAL

r

e

‘May 23, 202"

EEQUESTED ACT | ﬁ

Lo *

1’ - B
¥

Aulharize the Depaitmont of Heslth and Human Services, Division-for-Behaviaral Haaith,
to amend an existing contract with NAMI New Hampahire (VC#166630), Concord, NH, for family
mutual suppaort and suicide prevention servicas, by increasing tha price timftion by $142,465

fom $1,165,274 t0.$1,337,739 with no changa to the contract cumptn!:on date of June 30, 2023,
glfective upon Govemar and Council approva! 100% Ganaral Funds.’

The originel contract was approved by Governar and Councit on June 30, 2021, item 18,

. = Funds are svailable in the following accounis for State Fiscal Years 2022 and 2023, with
the authority to adjust budget line kems within the grice imitation and encumbrances balween
. gtate fiscal ysars thraugh the Budget Office, if needed and justified,

05-95-092.922010-41180000-102.5090739 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND

HE&LT@-I SERWCES FAMILY MUTUAL SUPPORT SERWCES

Jy

W]

Stato

| Flscal
Year

c!ass !
. Recoumt

i

. Class Title -

© Job

Mumbor

. Gumm
Budga?

o

lné&aa sed
{Dacreasod)
Amount’

" Rovised

Budget

el
g

2022

402-500731

Contracia for
" Prog Sve

82204118

5497.83?

sés.om‘

$522,837

2023.

.102-500731

.Contracls for
Prog Sv&

£2204119

-8497,637 |

$25 000

$522,697

~ Sublotal-

899 5:274

it

350 00@.

S04

PO
s

HEAI.'?‘H SERVICES, CMH PROGRAE& SUPPORT .

0&98-082 923010411?000@-1 02-500731 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH ANB
. WUMAN SVCS DEPT OF, HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DW OF, EUREAU OF MENTAL"

State -
Flacal |

Yenr

\CIaas !

3

Accoumt -

Clasa Tma

 Jab
Number

g

a5,

Cutvent

-

- Budget “ |

,I_nea:'ensed )
(Decronned)
- Amount

Rovised )

: Budgst

u ¥
T
ar

2022

102-500731

Contracts for
Prog Sve-

02204147

$100,000

e
A

sl

$100,00D

o

]
v L]
.

ot »

ﬂu D(,wrlnm! cfﬂnml and Humon Services’ Misslon 1 lo join communities ur-d fcmlhu
Jin ,pnud’mg o;lpnrtuamu fretisann b achizue healih ard independenes,

+

i
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His Excelloncy, Govomor Critstoghor ¥, Summy

and tha Honorabie Coundll “ '
mzo's ”‘N“ . - B )
b {1- i :_.:"_‘.,7. : S ' - . s
. Contracts for : . , _ .
zo?q_ 102-600731 Prog Sve - | P2204197 | §100.000 $92.465 (- 3162485
R : = | Subtote) | 9200000  $92485| $2824865
K . 1. Towt] $4,986.274|  $242,486 | $9;357,v38.

" The purpese of thig requeei ls to add 850 000!hat was appmpnaied in the State's opefaimg
pudget for Stalo Fiscal Years 2022 and 2023 to aupport MH's Family phutual Suppor Senvices.. Thls
incroasé in hinding i calical to sustaining family mutual support and suicide prevention servicas

- through support, education ant! advocacy forpeople affectad by mental ilness, Additionally, this

request includes funding and en expanded scops cf services for the Glenclif Home In-Reach
Lialsonpasilion. This position ensures In-Reach services are availabla to rasidents at Glancliff
Homa by working collaborstivaly with staff, communily prowdera andregidsnte and their tamilias

. and guardians o trangition into community-based settings.

Approximately 11,000 indwidua!s and femilios will be served through June 30 2023,

: The Contractor will wntinue providing famity mutual guppon, public education, and suicide
prevention services through suppon, aducation and edvocacy to adulie age 18 years of ege.and
older with e Serious Mental liingss, and their families; children under age 18-years of age with
Satious Emationa! Disturbance, and their families; professlonat siaff members prouldmg aeMoea

* tothass populalions; and the penerg public. .

‘Services !nc!uda peer-run suppdrt groups, educauon dams. trainings, and advocacy
opportunitios for individuals and families affectad by mental inass throughou! the state. The

" Confractor will also continue providing.an éfrey of iralning sessions on best practicas for sulcide

provantion and post intervention for individvats, family membars, sarvice providers, and the
genara) public, including edditionsl tralring sessuona on crisis in!arven!ion suicide intervention
and peer (eadership training, =

The Conlraclor participates on the New Hampsmre Suicide Pravention Coungil as a
member organizalion, end darves' as the fiscal agant for $100,000 of dasignsted stale gencral
funds to suppart Implémentation of the goals of the Suicida Prevention Council’s strategic plan
and will continue providing information o the public lhrough wab-based media, and digtribute
elactronie and prinled matarials, 'with approva! from the Department, on topics that includs family
suppont and-etucation programs and resourcas for survivors of a guicide oss,

The Departmeni wln contlnue 1 mcni!cr gorvices ueing lha i'ouowing performance

maasuraa

o Thalotal number of training 8695109 provided duringthe pravious mnn'tti_. .
. Tha.number of individuals who participated in each fraining session, ..
¢ Individual and colleclive resulls of pro and post tasts for aaoh type of training,

° Tho number of contacts made with efakeholders and the general public in providing
mantal health support and tesouroas and public speaktng engagemants, -

o The number-of web-basadlalectromc postings and resources dussaminated gath
momh

‘y.,:

)
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| " His Excotlency, chm:chﬂslopmt‘r Sununy L W
‘and v Honambis Councl e oot . . 3., -
. . Pﬂse 39'3 . -_‘!’ L] - <
;o © . The number of technical assistance hours spont’ wﬁh education, suppen and
) . !eadarshlp progrems.
LI ' ..u The number of residerits sarves through the Glencluff ln-Reach Liaizon poslllon )
. * Shiould the Gevemor and Counci! fiot authorize this request, thare may not be adaquate . .
support sarvices for families of individuals with sgvera and peralstont mental finess, orfor parents o
and familios of chitdren with Seriobs Emotionat Disturbances who are trying to navigate the montal
haalth system, Additionally,: famikes, psers, and menmal health professionals moy not have *
opponunities to pasticipate in- tratning; support group leadership; and advocacy nstworks that -
o aasist them to help pravent suiclde, or to halp tndividuals aﬁaded by suidda : . '
W " Area served: Statewide oo Lost " G
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendmem # L.

- Thls -Amendment to the Family. Mitual Suppor Sennces conlract is-by and between. the State of New,
‘.« Hampshire, Deparimem of Healih and Human Services ("Stale” or “Depar!meni") and NAMI New
Hampshire ("the Coritractor™).

WHEREAS, pursuant{o an agreement (the "Cnntract") approved by the Gavernor and Executive Council
on June 30, 2021, (llem #16), the Contractor agreed lo perlorm certaln services.based upon the Ierms and
¥ condittons speclﬂed In the Contract and In consideration of certaln sums specified; and

. WHEREAS, pursuant o Form P-37, Genesal Provisions, Paragraph. 17, and Exhibit A, Révisions 1o
Standard Agreement Provisions, the Contract may be amended upon writlen agreement of the parties
and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and v

WHEREAS, the partias agree to increase the price hmuahon and moddy the scope of serwoes to suppoﬂ
continued delivery of these semces “and

- NOW THEREFORE, ln consrderailon of tha foregoing and the mulual covenants and conditions conlained .
: in the Contract and set forth herein, the partigs herelo agree to amend as follows; - o .

¥

cay *

-

& s "1, Form P.37, Gengral Provistons, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, lo read: v "
; BT 1% £ J ; ; .
’ 2, Form P37, General Provisions, Btock 18, Contracting Oﬂ'cer for State Agency, to read
Robert W. Moore, Director ' T - * .
y 3. Add Exh:bnt B-1=- Amendment ¥, Glanchﬂ Home In-Reach Samces. whichis attnched herelo and
Incorpora!ad by refgrence herein,. - - i

4. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terrns Seclzonz as follows:* .

2. Payment shall be"on 8 cost renmbursement biasis for achial expendnlures incurted in the
fulfiliment of ‘this Agresment, and shall be in accordance wilh the approved line Rtem, a8
specified in Exhibit C-1, Amendment #1 SFY 2022 Budget through Exhibit C-2, Amendment#?
SFY.2023 Buige!. '

' 8. Modify Exhibit C-1, Budget Form by replacing it in its entirély with Exhibil C-1 Amendmentiﬂ SFY
5 2022 Budpget, which Is ettached hereto and Incotporated by referenc.e herein.

‘6. Modity Exhibit C-2, Budget by replacmg it in ¥s entirety with- Exhibit C-2 Amendment 81 SFY 2023
Budgel, which 15 atiached hereto.and incorporatad by ralerence herein,

7. Add Exhibit C-3 Amendmeni #1 SFY 2023, which1s attached herelo and mcorporated by
- : refetence hereln,

-
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* .

Al terms and condrrions of the Cr:nrract not modified by this Amendment temain in full force and eHect

" .. Thig Amendment shall be effechve upon Governor and Council approval. o . o
T . R h
iN WITNESS WHEREOF the partres have set their hands as of the date written below, o o

'i*

R . srau_e of New Hampshire :
' Departinent of Health and Human Services .
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The ptecedhg Amendment, havlng been: rev!awad by thls off ce Is approved asto forrn subs!ance and

execution, . ‘. - 2
) - OFFtCE OF THE )"(I’I‘()F'U\JE.E‘rr GENERAL
43 | ' - ) o . ~Dosetiona b : )
oo s/24/2002 %% . T l ‘ﬂtjﬂa é?wm .
Date . . . Name: dbyn Llarsno .
. o~ Title' Attarney . )

. A heteby certify that the feregoing Amendmenl was approved Dy the Govemnor and Executive Gounell, of‘
the State of New Hampshlre at the Meeting on: {date of meeiing)

P

z . L
L g OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE
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New Hampshire Departmeni of Health afd Human Services
Mental Health Servlcas .

" Exhibit B-1 ~ Amendment #1

S -residents and staff al Glencliff Hame, -the In-Reach Case Manager as well as..

®. - . Glencliff Home In-Reach Services
1.” Glenctiff Home In-Reach Lidison . .. .
1.1, The Conlractor shall ensure In-Reach sarwces are’available lo residents at the

. Glencliff Home through an In-Reach Lialson who, in collaboration with the In-
Reach Case Manager:
s 1.0.4. " Assists residents with exploring opliens for living in the cammunrty r
bt
' 1.1.2. Provldaa Information o residents relahve o communhy basad opporiunllles
L1143 Asslsts residents with acqumng skslls o ba aclive mambers of the
- communily. . -

1.1.4. Offers support lo enable individuals to venture uul andl partrcspale ir
communlty -based re-engagement opporiunities.

1.2, The.Contraclor shall ensure the In-Reach Lizison coordinales access to G!emhff
Home residenls; scheduling and transportation; and. other services with the v
Depaﬂrrwnl-dasignatad Glenchff Homa stalf.

~13. The Conleaclor shall ensure Ihe-Ic-Reach Lialson abides by Glendliff Home'
: policles end practicas identified 8s epplicable to the tn-Reach Liaison by the
Department. a

. 14, Tha Con!mclor shall ensure the In-Reach Llalson works in pannarsh!p with
guardians, if applicable, end communily-based providers and agendies o ass;st
: residents with thelr planning and transiiion process.

1.5. The Contractor shall ensure the tn-Reach Lialson; L b

fu

».7 151, Supposns case coordination and transiton .planaing efforls currenlly in - z

LR

. ' place at Glencliff Home. -

. 15.2. Engagesin shared laaming with G|encliff‘Home residents ragarding Ihe
values of integrated communily-based living.

15.3. Collaboretes, with the residen), Glenclifi Home staff, ihe In—Reach Case
Manager end community providers to achieve the goals :denul‘ea in the S
5 " sesldenl’s transition plan, ‘ )

H " L)

) X

2 Performance Otitcomas and Reporﬂng

.. 2.1 The Conlraclor shall ensure that residents are bater prepared to =~ .0 ., >
return o ‘community-based living, as evidenced by: '

2.1.1. Engaging. in shared leaming activilies w]lh the In-Reach = ~ @

W Uslson eround the vames of inlegrated . oommun!ky based '
L living. .

-2,1,2. Meseting wilh the !n-Reach Llgison and !n-Reach Case

Manager and, whan epplicable, family members, guardian, s,

Glencliff Homa staff, and other specified supports to identify

concems of reservalions regerding commumty -based living

end " devoloping strategles o deress or resolve suth - Tt

*  CONCems and resesvalions, ’

i, ¥

: D1
NAMI New Rompéhire . Exhibif 0-1 « Amiendmeat 81+ ' Con!mclorlmlialsC—
RFF:2022-DBH-01-FAMIL-O1.AOL Page 1 of ) w | Date /2 5/ 23’ 2002,
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* New Hampshire Depantment of Heslth and Hurian Services = 3% T
@ " Exhibit &-3 Amendment 71 SFY 2023 3
Cantractor NAME: NAMI Ncw Hampshire ' ' Lt -
Project Title: Family Mutug! ‘Support Serviess : .
Budget Period: SFY 2023 L ) » .
Glencliff Homa In-Reach Services Budget e i - e ] 5 w
Y | N ttem . N .  Description Tiulylne .
“{Peer Support Specialist: i K 1S
" . o - |20 hours per week 1o provide peer support W T L
G $eaff . ¥
Glenc Sta s :. ’m’i,gemces to residents; 530 hr, - e = SM'ZODL
4 - T - +JFICA, Medicare, SUTn. Workers Comp, AOBB . Ty J
Glentlitt s : - -
Glenclitt Siztt-Fringe - Mateh, 12.95% ffinde = ., 4080
Sub-total i 3 Coe s:s,un]
o . Estimated 5570 per month, 24000 miles per vzar@ B
Transportation{Using Pre-Pandemlc rates) 485/} 10 TFANSPON CONSUMETS 10 2CCAST SUPPOS = . $12,000
: ’ Jand services, -
- £, " |additionat liability insurance required for -
ity insura . C, "
Uiability 1 nece . transporting clients,$4,135/employee 81 125
Technology b Purchase new Laptop and set-up, $900/ea. . $900
Phong . Cell phone $70/per month/employre, ¢ontract 5840
. {HIPAA Zoom ficense ‘ Additiona] Zoom lirense for virtual muunﬁs - 3259) .
Supervision . $:.15 FTE, $122.000 o, " . $18,300
. . FICA, Melﬁcare SUTA, Workers Comp, 4038
-Eri . s
. [openision-Fringe Match, Health, Dental & Uife 36.2% fringe sg.s_z;
"= [Tara) Peer Supporn Specizlist - 575,280]
Oﬂleﬂ T -+ f-’.‘ * * > >
T 8ted.an peevious actwal, funds to provide *F toE -
residents with personsl eare items, transportation, | |
Personal Care Flex Funds  ° etc. to assist during the resintegration process » .. $3,500
= . - jwhen other financial resources are not available, & ._..;_
T ¥:[i.e. bus ticket, taxi voucher, co-poy asskstance. et | '
. >,
R ) L “u |purchase of Gas Gife Cards to family members who
Fuel andCare Giver Assistance Posi need financial assistance to auend'Fann'!y events . - $2,000
Lo - - ‘INAMI NH Staff attendance at trainms conferencs
o “"’“’?’“ or webinars, 5300 . - N 5300
. - . " - 5 - .
Sub-Totz}: Other ¥ as A 5,800
indirect 3I% approved IDC of salary - " . 511,355
Total . 592,465

it

RAMI New Hampshire RFP-2022-DBH-01-FAMIL-01-A01 . .
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£xhibit G-3 Amendiment H1 SFY 2023 Budget
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1

P g5 1 Slass : " Clasa Title Job Number rou:mm};hm 1

T2022 | 102500731 | ConvractsforProgSve | 02204198 |  $497,637

2023 1102500731° - | Conlractsfor Prop Sve | 92204119 $497,637
‘L N R Subtotsl | F  $995,274

2023 | 102-500731 | Contactsfor Prog Sve | 92204117 ' $100,000
% - T ~ Subtotal $200,000 {°
- R - . Total $9,495,274
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| STATEOFNEWHAMPSHIRE = =~
. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES -
DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH

Lo A EMbincte - 139 PLEASANY STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301
Comalytomr G0X271954¢ 16000513343 Ext. 9344 '
y Fax: 603-275-430 * 'TOD Aceess: |-50D-T35-2064  wwrw,dbhaeh.gay
Katja S For . .
Dlregrar 1 i yis
| June 9,2021°
" His Excsllency; Governor Christopher T, Sununu - . .
and the Hanarable Council : : - ;
State House : N -, y o
Concord, New Hampshire 03301 .- _ L e

L, -

REGUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Dapanment of Heith and Human Sencés, Division for Behavioral Health,
10 enler inlo a contract with NAM! New Hampshire (VC#166630), Concord, NH, in the amount of

$4.105,274 for family mulus! support and suicide pravention services with the option to renew for

up to fout {4) additional years, effaciive upon Govemor and Counclt approval for the pariod from
July 1, 2021, through June 30, 2023. 100% General Funds. ) : B

) Funds are anlicipated to be svailable in in the follawing accounls for State Flscal Yeors
2022 and 2023, upon the avaliabilily and conlinued appraprialion of funds in Ihe fulure operating
budget, with the authority ta adjust budge! line llems within the price limitation and encumbrances
between state fiscal years lhrough the Budgel Office, if needed and justified. ) .

05-95-082:822010-41150000-102.500731' HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF, HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV OF, BUREAU OF MENTAL

. HEALTH SERVICES, FANILY MUTUAL BUPPORT SERVICES

IfEA.LTH SERVICES, CMH PROGRA_HI SUPPORT |

. | FlecalYear [ Account . o
2022 | 102-50073t1 | Conteacisfor Prog Sve | 92204117 TR 8100000 |, -

HUMAN SYCS DEPT OF; HHS:. BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV OF, BUREAU OF MENTAL

Stato. | Class! ~"Class Yitle 1 Job umber |  Total Amount

*The Deportrieal of Health ond Huwon Serdtes” Miszion iy fn join conmunitics and famitied
in providing vpportunllica fer citizens 16 echicve heolth oad independeace.

;:z.‘., v "
i O
&

*  08.95.002:92201041170000-302-500731 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND
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* - - EXPLANATION . o
. The purpose of this request is lo provide family mutual support, public educstion, and
. * suiclde prevention servicgs through suppont, education and advocacy for adulte and thelr lamilies
. stiacted by sarious mental ilness, @s wel as children and their familiey efecled by serious
. B etnotionat disturbances. )
T The Contractor wil provide sanvices to adults age 18 years of age end older with a Serlous

» . tental{liness (SML), and thelr families; chitdsen under age 18 yeors of age with Sertous Emotiona)

" populations; and the geriaral public, | - . g

R -

A0 2023. . '
. ' 7 . Thae Contreclor il provide peer-run suppdrt groups, educalion classes, Yrainings, and
< % pgvocacy opportunities for Individuals and families affected by mentatiiness throughout the state.
R They will also provido an arfay of iralning sessions on bast practices (or suicide pravention end
- post-intervention for individuals, famlly members, service providers, end the general public.
* _ Additional training sesslons on'crisls Intervention, suicide interventicn and peer leadership tralning

wil be provided. . . .

digtribute elecironic and printed malerials, wilh approval from the Deparimerit, on toplcs that

i . Disturbance (SED), and theif families; professiona stal members providing services to these

Approximately 11,000 individuals and famies will ba seryad from July 4, 2021 to June 30, -

The Contractor will also provide informiationto the public through web-based media, and-

I include family suppon-and edutalion programs and resources for survivors of a suicide loss,
i ) The Contractor will participate on the New Hampstire Suicide Pravantion Councli as @
o ~mpmber erganization, snd will serva es the fisca! sgent for $100,000 of designated stale general
P _lunds to support Implementation of the goals of thé sulcide prevention councll's strategic plan.
goa * ' Tne Department will monitor contracted services using the following: performance
g " measures: , , ! e Jow
s .« Thetctal numbgar of raining sesslions provi&e;_i during the pravious month. P .
; ‘ L s "The number of Individugls who participated in each iraining sesslan. ) tL
-5t v Individual and collactive rasuits of pre and pos! tests for each typg of tralning.
oo o Thenumber of conlacts made wilh stakekolders and the genaral public in proyiding

" mental health support and resoirces, and public sppaking engagements.

# s The number of \g.reb-basedtelactrofﬂq-posﬁng’s_ and rasoufcas disseminated each .
IS e l‘!loﬂfh. i X .
. o . .o The number of technical assislance hows spen! with education, support, ahd
i _ -leadership programs. - o T
: “The Depatment sslected the’ Gontractor (hiough @ competitive bid- process, using e
. Reguest for .Proposals (RFP) thal was posted on the Depardmanl's webslite from 33072021

through 4/2612021, The Deparimont received ona {1) response thal was raviswed and scorad by
2 tepm of qualified Individuals, The Scoring Shoel Is attached. .

" As referenced In Exhibit A, Revisions.\o Standard Agreement Provisions, Beciion 1,

) .- %Revisions to Form P-37, Genera Provisions, Subsection 1.1 of the attached contracl, the paries
‘have the option to extend the agreemenl for up 1o four (4) edditional years, conlingenl upon

v sallsfactory delivery of services, avallable funding, agreement of Ihe pariias, and Govarnor and

- ) Counci! approval, e o L
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Shou!d the Govempr and Cauncll not aulhouxe {his request, Individuals with severe and -
persistent ments! linesa, thelrfamilloa, and parents and familles of children with setious emollona)
disturbances may not have access to services that assist them to navigate the mental health
system. In addilen, families and professlenals may not have accass to training, of o suppont
group leadership and advacacy aetworks that provide asslsiance o pravant suicida, Th!s could
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Respectfully submitted,

Lori A. Shibinetis -
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. 3 . . FORM NUMBERP- J?(w.'rtlon umims
- § - " . e - -
. i . * . - pi1A
Subjm FamtlyMumaI Suppon Services (RFP-2022 DBH-01- FAMIL) .t s ;
1 Motice: THs sgreement and ol of its atinchments shall become pubhe vpon submistion 1o Governos and
. - Exccutive Cauncil for approval, -Any infarmation that i private. confidential of proprietacy musi ¥
- be ¢learly identiled (0 the apency and agreed 10 m h'rmng priof 10 signing the conlracl. v )
I - - =y A
& . ' . A(‘RLI:.ME!'\T - :
The State ol' N:w Hampshl!re ond the Contraetor hercby mutually agru is fellows: )
" > GENERAL PROVISIONS T gy ‘
) 1. IDENTIFICATION. N - - *
).} Srate Agency Name w * 1.2 Sime Agency Address . . o
. _New Hampshire Depaament of Health and Human Services 129 Pleasant Street - Ty "1
) » ) * « | Contord, NH 03301-3857.
) 1.3 ‘CoquaclorNamc J 1.4 Contractor Address .
NAMI New Hampshire 85 North State Sirect | E
" St Concord, NH.03301 .
: ’ 1.5 Coniractgr Phone ' 1.6 Acéoun) Number AT Compltiion Date ‘ 1% Price Limhation
. Numbcr : . e S “
- ‘ P4 05-095-092-922010-° Junc30, 202" 31,1952 .,
W (603)225 5359 1 41190000-102-500731  |* ;,_'
iy i - 035-095-092-92201 0. . I ’
W 1 41170000-102-500731 i ~
Lo Cemm:tlng o icer for Staie Ageircy 110 Slalc Agcnry Tc!cphcnc HNumber «
X Nathan . White, Dircctor ' wnmeen
’ -z o . 3 - f T P .
L ;] 141 Conirzsior Signature | . .12 Name¢ acd Title of Contractor Slgnatary
-~Dev¥parar: | o Kenneth Korton, LICSW
-+t . , kownadly M#M,ULSUJ Dale:6/8/2021 1 -Executive Director - o
' K] e Apeney Signature - =i | V.14 Nemc ond Tile of State Ageacy Signatory
Deeebigacd b3 . JKatja Fox .
Fos ,,-,. Da!c 6/8/202] v -
P de& ¢ 1 . pirector . i H
" pproval By lh: N.H. épunmeal of Adm:mstmion. Divigion of Personne! {lf applicnbile}
“ ni By: y Diccctar, On: -
. i 1 16 Approvpl by the Auorney General (Form. Subsam:c and Execution) £ fnpp"cnb!d e
' L~ vy ) .i’-FE )
- By: _C‘ 9‘2 o Fre On: 6/9/2021 LR OR N B
RN 1707 Appeovat By 1 & Govenos And Extculive Counch if wlph‘mb!é} .‘ -
. G&C hem number: N G&C Mcering Dot . < a
, A . . i
. ' Poge 1 of4 SO " L:' g
_ . - Contraclor Initials| ™
s, . o  DawS7872021
g 5 4 3 = - ., +
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1 SERVICES TO BE PF‘RFORMED The State of New
Hampshire, seting through 1he agenty identified in block’ 1.l
{("S1a1e"), engeges contractol  identified In block 1.}
{"Contraclor™) 10 perl'arm ond the Cantractor shall pzrform. the
work ar @ale of goods. or both, ideatificd and more panticulady
deseribed in (he sttuthed EXHIBIT B which is iatporaisd

. herein by reference (*Services)).

3. EFFECTIVE DATEICOMPLETION o]y &LRV[CFS

L3 Notmlhsmndms any, provision of 1his Agreement 10 the

contrary, and subject to dhe zppioval of the Goveraor dnd
Exceutive c.‘oumil of the State of New Hampshire, if spplicable,
this Agreenient, and all ebhgauuna of the penties hergundér, shall
become effective on the due the Govemor and Bxecutive
Counclt approve this Agrecment ex indicaled in dlock 1,87,
untess no suth approval is required, inwhich case the Agreement

shal) Become effesiive on the.date the Agreement is signed by .
“the Stale Agency as shown in block 1.13{"Eflective Date™. . -

3.2 I the Conlractor commences the Stevices prior 10 ‘b,
Effeclive Daic, oll Services performed By the Conirector prios to
the Effective Dase shall be peifarmed o the ok risk of the
Coniractor, and i the event that this Apreement dods not become
elfettive, the Siste £hall have o Tizkility to the Contracior,

incloding whthow Iumm:-n. any obligslion 1o pay the
Conraglor For any .cofts imcurred or Scevices performed.

Contraceor must compiete alf Services by the Completion Dare
specificd in block 1.1, :

4. CONDITIONAL h.\TURE OF ACREEMENT.

Notwithsupding ony grovisiun: of this Agreement 10 the
conlmry, oil obligations of the State bBescunder, including.
withput fimitation, the continuance of paymcats hereunder, aze’

* contingent upon the availobility and continued nppropnnum of
funds effecred by any siote or foders) begistative or exccuvtive

adtion that reduces, climinyes or otherwise modifies Ihe
appropriation or ovaitabiliny of funding for (s Agreement 2nd
the Seope for Serviees provided in EXHIBIT B, in whole or in
pam. In ao event 'shall the Siate be hisble for any poyments
hercunder in excess of such available sppeoprinied fundls. dnthe
evenl of o redutiion or terminttion of opproprinied funds, the.
State thall have the right 16 withhiold payment umil sech funds
become available, if ever, and shall have the hghi 1o 1educe or

‘tesmingte the Services under 1bls Agreement immediziely upon

‘piving the Contractor notice of such reduction or termlaniba.
The Stae shall not he requited L transfer funds from any.other
aceoun! or souree to the Account ideatified Tn blogk 1.6 in the

-event funds inthat Account ore redeced or unavailable:

5. CONTRACT PRIC ul'suCE Lmn TATION:
PAYMENT. ' y

3.1 The coméact pricc.mcthodof payment, and :c:mol‘paymml
we identilicd ond more. particulardy deseritied in EXHIDIT C
whith is incarporeicd herein by reference.

5.2 The paymeni by he State of the contract price shatl be yhe
only and the complrle relmbursement 1o the Comuacior Tor al)
expenses, of whaiever ndure ineurred by the Contractor In the
peeformance hereaf, -ond shall be the only-and the complere

L
¥

" ‘ Pauc2 of 4 "

¢
B .
. .

comaensation o the-Cohtractor for the Servicer The State shall

have no Hability to the Contreciar other than the contract price.. =

5.3 The Swne reserves dhe right 10 offs¢t {cdm ony amounts
otherwise payable La the Contrctor uader (his Agreement 1hose
liquidoted amobms requited or poamitted by N, H. RSA B:7
through RSA B0:7-¢ or any ciber provision of aw,

5.4 Nowelthsiending sny provision in this Agreement to the -

conirory, aad polwithstoniding unexpecied ciicymstances, in no
evend shall the Lota! of ali ppyments sutharized, oreflually made
hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8,

6. COMPLIANCE I'.!\'CON‘I'HAC’I‘OR WITH LAWS
AND RECULATIONS! EQUAL EMPLOVMENT
QPPORTUNITY,

6.1 In connectiv with the perfonnance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with sl applicable ststuted, laws,
regulsiions, and ordees of federnl, state, Tounty of rnumcnpal
autherities” which impose. any obligstion or duty upon the
Contractor, including. but not limiied to, civil fights and equa)
cmployment cppoaunily Jaws, o addition, il this Aprcement is

funded In any pant by montes afthe United Sianck. the Controcror”

shall comply with all federa) executlve onders, fules, regulations. |

and stewtes, and whth dny roles, regulations ond guidalines as the
Stalc of the United S1ates issue 10 implement these regulations,

The Contracior shall also comply with all applicable in'cu:ctua\ .

propeny laws,
6.2 During the lcrm of this Agreemany, the Comrmor shall noi
diseciminiue ogainst smployees or applicants for cmiployment

becouse of rece, color, rcl:guon creed, par, sex, handucap,scwal',_
" arienigtion, or nationzl ofigin and will take nfﬁnnauve ‘ctionto

grevens such diserimination &y
. 6.3, The Contractor agrees {o peemit the State or United Staics

aeceds 1o any ol ihe Comtracior’s books, tecords end socounis Jor
the purposc of axcenaining complinnce with el rules, scgulations
and orders. ond the covenanls. icrms nnd conditions of this

Agreemeat.

1. Pl' RSQNNEL.

.1 The Conteactoc shall ay its vwn expense provide sl personncl
seeestary to perform Ihe Services, The Contractor werennts that
all personnd engaged in the Services shall be qualified 1o

, petform the Services, and shall be propery lizensed and

othenwise sulhorized 10 do so under oll apphcah!c laws,
7.7 Unicss otfizrwise authorized in- wmmg. during the term of
this Agreement, and for v period f six (6) mombs afler the

* Completion Dardin block 1.7, the Contractor $hall not hire, 2nd

shall gt pernit ony subcuntezcter or other person, fiem or
corporation with whom [Uix engaged in o combingd cfion to
perfonm the Services to hire, ey person whois e Smc employce
or official, who is materially invalved in the procurement,
adminisiratiop o perfnrmnncc of this Agreement.  This
provision shall sunvive teamination of this Agreement,

7.3 The Conirseting ' Officer specificd in blotk: 1.9, of his or ker
successor, shall be the Stme's :cprez:mnm-c Inthe event ol any

dispute concerning the interpreiation of this Agrecmenl, e -

Conteacting Clicersthecision shal be final for the State.

»
s

= Contactor initis)
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. . submil 1o the Swe a Transitian Plan for services under the
Agseeiment, - g

N '
. i . e
) .

" B. FVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES. *

be fdentical 1o those of any Final Report deseribed In the sitnehed
EXHIDIT B.tn 20divon, at the Sine’s diseretian, the Contractor
shall, within 35 days of naulce of carly 1ermination, develop and

8.1 Any onc or more of the follawing acts or omissions of the . . . E . o A
Conyracior shall constipse an eventof default bereunder (“Event 19. DATAJACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITYY
e of Defaul™: Lo ) PRESERVATION. i R
BT feilure to perform the Seovices saiisfctorily ar on 10,1 As uied in this Agreemen, the word “dala™ shall meanall - e
. sehedute; - information and things developed or obtained during the “n
© @12 tslere Lo submit ony repon requised hercunder; andior peclormance of, or nequired or deyeloped by reawn of, this 73
£.1.3 fallure 1o perform any other covensnl. term of condition of Agreement, including. but not limited to, all studies, reports, b
this Agreement. . . fites. formuloe, surveys. maps, chas, sound rccordings, video 5y
) 8.2 Upon the occurrence-of any Evem of De faul, the Swte mdy recontings, pletorial reproduciions, drawlngs, vnalyses. graphic ’
) - take any 6a¢, or mare, or oli, of the following :mio{u:. . fepresentations, cOMpIIer peograms, compul of printouts. notes. v
8.2.1 give the Cantrdeior & witten notlee epecifying the Evemtofl - fefiers, memorands, poperd, and docurmcnts. gli whether B
Defavh and requiring it 10 be remedicd within, in the sbsenceof finished or vpfisished. . w
. 3 preatee of lewser specification of time, thinty {303 doy feont the 10.2 All data nnd nay properiy which has been reccived from 3
date af the notice; and il the Even of Defouli is not timely cured, the State of purchased with funds provided for thm purpose * apt
- tereing1e this Agreement, elfoclive two (2) days afergiving the . under this Agecemeal, shall be the propeny of the Stote.dnd . #
. Conurzcior notice of Igrmination; ) shali be returned 10 the Staze vpon demand oF upon termindtion
. 8.2.2 give th¢ Conraclor & wrillen notite specifying the Lvental  ofthis Agecement for any ceason, . ’ e
Defanh and suspending all poyments 0 be.made under thls 10.3 Confidcniiality of data shall be govérned by N.H. RSA +
=R "Agscement aad ordering tha the peation of the contraey price . chapler 91:A or other existing law. Disclosure of duta requires i
: which would athtrwise acerue to. the Contractor during the priat written spproval ol the Sinte, - . , i 0F
* period from Ihe date of such nolice untit such time 0 the State ) : :
- deiermings thal the Coniratior has cured the Event of Deliauh 1. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE, Inthe
shall never be paid 1o the Conteictor: _performancs of Whis Agreement the Conteatlor & in all Ieepeets | 4
g B2.3 give the Contcactor a writien notice spreifying the Event of an {ndependenl comraciar, ond is neither an agent nor an
Delaull ond s¢ off ageing eny other obligations the Sware may cmployce of the Sise. Neither the Contrzcier naf any of ity .
" owe10 the Contracior any damage's the State salfers by reasonof - officers, employees. agems o7 membees shall bave duthority to ', i
e any Evenl of Défaul; and/af : : bind the Stae of receive any benefits, workers® compensation or P,
, £.2.4 give the Contracior & written notice specilying the Evenlof oitwr emoluments provided by the S1te 1o its employees. LA
Defauli, tredt the Apreemenl as breached, (erminate the oo : . S
: Agreement and pursuc any of its remedies al law or in equity.or 12, ASSICNMENT/IDELEGATIONSUBCONTRACTS.
P bath. : ) .12.1 The Cantezclor shall noy assign, or otherwise tonsler any i
8.3. Na faiture by the S1ai¢ 1o eaforce pay provisionshercofafier  * interestin this Agreement without the prior writien notice, which .
" cony Event of Defbulishal) be deemed a waiver of ity rights with shali be provided 1o the Siae ot teasy fifieen (135).days priorto S
regard to ther Event of Deloult, or any subsequent Bvent of the pssignment, and a writfen conseat of the Stale. For purposes .-
Defavll. No cxpress failurc tocoforce iy Evemof Defauli shalk  of this parpraph, » Change of Control shall constiiic o
be deemed a Waiver of e right of the Staue 1o enforce cach and « assignmatt. “Change of Control" micons (8) aerger, S
. *&M of the provisions hercol upad any funher or'dther Event of consalidation, or 5 ransaction os serics of relpicd tansaclions in ',
1efauh o the pan of the Contratior. - which » fhird pany, together with his affifistcs, becames Ihe i
. diseer af fndircet owner of fifly percent (30%) or more of the : ’-‘-;‘
5 .« DVTERMINATION, ’ _ voting shares of simHoe equity ntecests, or combined voling .
9.0 Nowvithsisndide patograph 8. 1he State may, o its sole ~  power of the Conteaclor, of (b the sate of 2 or subsizatialiy ol
diserction, (erminalc the Agreement for any reavan, fawhole of af she n2setx of ihe Comurzetor. ’
. in pan. by thiny (30} days'writlen notiee.10 the Comatior thay 122 Nong of the Services shall be subeonirucred by the- :
- the State is excrvising ils option to terinimate The Apreement. Coniractoe withoul prior writien notice end congent of the State. "
9.2 1n the event of A 2aely lenninatian of 1his Agrocec for Tte State is califled to copies of ol Subcantisets thd sasignment .
Bny rcdson other than the complelion of ke Services, the agreemeas and shall noy be bound by any provisions contained e
Conlrzcior shall, 81 the Sime’s discrciion, deliver 10 the iA & subconteatt o an pxsignment egreement o.which it is nota ":‘,iﬂ
Comreiing Officer, nod later than flecn (1) doys ofierthe daic | pany. .. v B
of termination, & reporn {*Tesminatian Repon™) deseridiag in C .. . .o an,
; detail all Services performed, and the contmaet price carmud, to 13; INGEMNERFICATION. Unless athurwise exempled by taw. i
r and including the date of icemination. The foem, Subjeet mallez, the Contraclor shall indemnify and hold hamtess the Staic, it .
contenl, ond number of eopics 6f the Teemination Repon shall officers und employees, from angd againy any and o'l ctalms, i

Hiabilities pnd costs for any persoanl ipyiiry or prepeny damoges,
pat¢nt or copyright inftingemenl, o olhet cloims nssened agding
the State, its officess ar employecs, which arkse out of (or which

.may be claimed 10 orisc oul o) (he deis of gmission of the xi

L y . Pagedof 4 : 1 Bﬁ E
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7.
* "

" Contractor, or subcontrzttars, iccleding bui not fimited to the

negligence, rccklcu of Jntentional sonduet. The Siale shall ant
be liablc for bny cosis incurred by the Conlraclor arising under
ihis paragraph 1 3. Naiwithsianding the-forcgolag. nothing herein

- cornined shall be degmed 10 consthwte 3 waliver of the sovercign

immynity of the State, which immunity is hereby reseeved iodhe

. Swe. This covenant in paagraph 13 shall sunvive the

teaminztipn of (his Agreement.

14, INSURANCE.
t4.1 The Conlracior shall, ll s $dlc ‘expense, obiain and

continuonsly mainiain An  force, and shall r:qutrc ony

subcontracior o7 exsignee 1o obmn snd mainiain in force, uu.-
following Tnsurance:
14.1.1 commercial genceal linbitity + tns.urmce againy pli clam:s

. of bodily tnjury, death or propeny domage, In smouas of an

less than 5$1,000000 per occwrmence and 1000000 spgregate
or excess; and

" 14.5.2 speciai eavse of Ings coverage form covering all propeny

subject to subparagraph 0.2 beecin, in an emoum ot lexs |Run
$0% of the whole Ieplpcement vaolue.of the propenty,

14.2 The policics described in subparagraph 4.1 hetein shall be
on policy forms und codorscments approved for use in the Siate
of New Hampshice by the N.W. Depaniment af Insorance, and
isqued by insurers licensed in the State of New Humpshire, -
t4.3 The Contraclor shal) fumish to the Contracting Officer;
ideniifiad in blotk 1.5, of bis or hee sucecssor, a centificate(s) o
insurance for all insurance required ueder this Apeeemeal.

Centraclorshallalso furmishto the Contzacting OMicer identified -

in black 1.9, or his o5 her suceessor, eenificate(s) of insuronce
for all renewal(s) of insurance required under his Agteementio
latee than ten (10) days prior to the cxpiration date of tach
insynance policy.  The eenificaic(s) of insvrante and any
vencwalsthercol shall be atteched and are incarporated berein by ©
scfersmee,

- 15 \\’ORKERS COMPENSATION,

15.1 By sighing this agreemény, the Commetor ngrccs centifics
ind warrants that 1he Casleacior is in complianée with o exemp
from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chap:cr 281-A [Ilorkers”
Com;:erasaf!ou .

15.2 Tothe ¢xient the Contragier is subject [0 the requiremens -

of N.H, RSA chapier 28)-A. Contracior shall mainisin, acd

require Any- Subcontracior of nmgn:c {o sceure and maoialain.
pyment of Workers'. Compersation in connection with
setivitics which the person proposes o underteke pursuant 1o this
Agreement, The Conlractor shall fumishihe Conracting Officer
identified [nblock 1.9, or ki or her suecessor. proof of Workers®
Campeasation in the manner deseribed in N.H. RSA chapter
281-A ond any npphicable renewal{s) thereof, which shall be
olieched ond are Incorparated heeein by relercnce, The Sixte
shall aol be sespomsible for payment of any Workers'
Compensation premiums or for any other claim or bengh Tor
Contracior, or any subconiracior or employee of Contractor,
which might arise onder apph:ablc Suate of New Hampshire

Warkers' “Compeasation laws v conneetion with ihe s

peifumance of 1he Services under this Agecemént.
L

K1) b

Pagedof4 . A

ke

" 16. NOTICE. Any netite by & parly heeeto o the other pany

shall be deemed 1o have been duly delivered of glven o1 the time
of mailing by cedificd mail, postage prepaid, in  Unhed Stales
*Pogt Office nddressed 1o the pantics ol the addeesses given In
blocks 1.2 rad 1,4, heeein, i
12. AMENDMENT. Thus Agrccmcnl rnay be smended, walved
or dlschnrgcd only by'en ingiiument i writing signed by the
“partics heraio 20d only affer approsel of sich pmendment,
waiver of dischaige by the Goveraor and Exectlve Councll of
the Siace of New Hampshire unless o such opproval ix requiced.
u:_ldcr the circumstances pursuant to Staic law, rule or policy.

18. CHOICE OF-LAW AND FORUM. This Agrecmeat shall
b goveened, interpeeted” nnd consirucd in pecordance with the
lows of the Swe of New Hampshire, and is binding vpen tnd
inures to the benefi} of the pantics and their respeerive suceessors
and assipns. The wording used in 1his Agroement s the wording
chosen by the panies 1o express cheir mutwal intem, 2nd no e
af construction shal be applicd againn or in (avor of any pany.
Any actions adising out of this Agreement shall be brought and
mainitined in bew Hampshite Siperior Count which shall have
cxclusive jurisdiciion theceof.

9. CO\HJCTh\G TERMS, In. the event of 3 coaflict .
beiween the torms of this P37 form, (as modified in EXHIBIT
A) andfor anechments and amendmeiit thereo!, the teems of the
P-37 {as modified {n EXEUBIT A) shalt control.

20. THIRD PARTILES. The panics hereio de nol intend to
benefit ony thied panics and this Agreement shatl noc be

com‘mxd 10 confer ray such beneR, . ..

- 21. HEAD)NGS The beadings shroughout ibe Agreement are

for ecfercace purposcs only. and the words codtained therein

. shall inho weny be held to explain, modify, amplify or uid in (he

interpretation, condliuciion or meaning of the. provisions of this
-Agrecmenl, . .

-22, SPECIAL FROVISIONS. Additional or ‘modlfying
peovisions set fodh in the attacked EXHIBIT A are Incorporated
herein hy refeecoce. )

23 Sl-.\ ERARILITY. In the event any of ihe provisions of this

Agrecment zee held by a coun of competenr jurisdiction to be

contrary 10 any stte or federa! law, the rempining provisions of

this Agreement will cemain in fll force ond cfTect.

24, ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, swhich inay be

exgeuted in a number of counterparts, each of which shall be -

diemed an origingl, constiiuies \be entie ggrecment and

undersianding between 1he panices, end supersedes all prior

;gmm«m and undeestendings with cespeci 1o lhc su!ucct nanes
ereof

L
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Sewlces
Fal'nlly Mutuai Support Services C . o
® ' -EXHIBIT A e

. B *

_Revisions to Standard Agreement Provisions - © ..

1, Revis!ons to Form P-37, General Provisions * .4

s R P B Paragraph 3, Effective. Dale{Cnmpieuon of Servlces is. amended by adding
Y 3 Subparagraph 3.3 as follows; - "
33. The parlias may extend the Agresment for up to !our {4) additional years
. ) from the Completion Date, contingent upon satisfactory delivery "af”
services, avallable funding, agreement of the parties, and approval of the
Govetnor and Executive Council.

i} 1.2. Paragraph 12, AssagnmenUDelegallmeuboontracls ns amended by adding
subparagraph 12.3 as foliows: :

.o - ; 123 Subconlractors are sub}ecl lo the same contraclual condslions as the
Conlractor. and the Contracior is responsidle 10 ensure’ subcontracior
campl:ance with those condilions. The Contraclor shall have written

. and how correclive aclion shall be managed If the subconlraclor’s
. c s pedformance s ‘ Inadequate, The Contraclor shall manage the
Hi ) - subcontraclor's performance on an 6ngoing basts and take corrective

Ly

a list of all subcontractars provided for under this Agreement and notify
. _ the Stale of any inadequate subconlractor performance.

»

Lo

FLA ’ b
L . ‘ | ] . "
RFP-2022-DOHONFAMILOY s HAMI ey Hompshlrs -~ Contractor gt 20
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! - agreements with 8ll subconltractars, specilying the work to be performed

aclion 85 necessary. The Contracior shall anaually provide the Slate with -
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New Hampshare Department of Health and Human Serwces -t
Family Mutual Suppnrt Services ‘

. ER a3 . EXHIBlT B ) ~ : ‘;5. * o . - .
» - T 7 B '. ,"_.'. . .'é
. = : .
. Scope of Semce's . .,
g 1. Stalemem of Work ) . ‘ i
) ; 1.1. The.Conlraclor.shall provide services in lhls Agreemenl to adults age 18 years' . o
* # . ol afe and alder with a Serous Menta! liiness (SMI), and thelr families; children s
s " :  under age 18 years of age with Serious Emotional Disturbance (SEQ), and-their O
s . families; professional staff members prowdmg services to these populalions B
) and the génetal public. -
e . t.2. The Conlraclor shall pmwde the services described below In person, or wrtualiy IR ,1
“ *s using’ leleconferencing or dislance communication \echnology due to N
. restrictions for COVID-19 safety protocols, if applicable. All services delwered e 't
virlually must be approved in advance by the Depanment. o
o G v 13, The Contracior shall ensure services are avallable and provided slatewide. Ll i
i 1.4, - For the:pusposes of this agreement, 8ll references to days shall mean calendar
gays, "
" Edueation, Training, end Support Groups - kY
1'.5:,,_ The Contraclor shall provide ane-on-one family supporl programming, Tor a f
) minimum of one hundred twenty five (125} individuals annually (approximately : o
. sixty-five (65) adults, thirty-five (35} older adults and twenty-fve {25} chnldren) _ .
. which mc!udes bulis nol limiled to: g
- - “z 154, Individualized family sipport by an individual with fived experience who Li=
. can empathize wilh the challenges and needs of the families and 12
o careglvers seeking support and hnk them with resources ) % g
P 1,5.2. Age appropriate supporl and educauon to famifies across the life span % e _
cyp B * $0 they may iearn and develop skills 1o , “ ' S
v oah . = £, + - ¥ . e R
, - L&:2.1, Navigate the mental health system; "-i- .
| 1.5.2.2. Manage the stressors thal families affected by mental liness ~ + & ¢
2 experience; ° .
v 1.5.2.3. Share concemns:: o , rse
_ 1.5.2.4. Develop coping skifls; ok T .o W
RS ' 1.525. Gain knowledge; r ‘ e * .
w " 1,5.2.6. Learn aboul community resources; and v *
h 1.5.2.7.  Provide famlly members opportuniligs to: 5 : -
W PR RAR Gain confidence; - “u
s "15.2.7.2. "Leam leadership skills, and -
% 1.5.2.7.3. Move loward advocacy in order to assume aclive .
N : ‘. roles on state and lotel boards and oomml 564 thal “’
RFP-2022.00H-01-FAULO1 R Now Hamprtive ' Conaciar i "' . 4
B0 . Poga Vol 17 T Dofs -—-—E}-n :
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Famlly Mutual Support Services T,
EXHIBITB « .

I’
-

+ ._ 4 -
X £ ur o
Y

. - focus on mental health related lssies ant-participate
in the promotion of the 10-Year Mental Health Plan.

* 1.6. The Conlractor shall prowde two (2) web-based suppor! groups, Caregwers of

ol ‘;'5'

Children Suppoit Group and Family and Eriends of Adulls Support Group, to

) annually serve a minimum of one hundred and twenty (120) familieg/caregivars
of children and adolescents with severe emotional disorders, and r famifies and
i caregivers of adults and older adults wilh mental slrness moderated by the

Contractor’s staff, to: 2 .

1.6:1. Provide parlicipanls with the. oppnnunily to be parl of 2 supportwe
’ community when they are unable to physucaliy atiend other support

wr

1, fgroups;and - - . a
‘ 1.6.2. "Make ‘peer suppon, education and resources available lo Indmduals
families, and providers. "

1.7.- The Contraclor shall provide statewide educalion and lramlng on farmty mutual .

supporl programs, which includes, bul is not limited to:

N . fadllitators, for @ minimum of sevenly-five (75) participants annually who
have an adult family member with a mental ilness, lo Increase
knowledge and skills thet will enable padticipants lo!

171 Underslandmenta! illness; . . -

1.7.1,2.  Manage personal slressors;”
1.7.1.3. | £ngage in and support the lrealmenl and recovery procass of

P i " family members; and
L 1.7.1.4. . Advocate for timely and appropriate services.
M T 472 Trainmg up to four (4} new teachers each year with re-ira:n!ng pmwded
) w, a via'quarterly in-service and support opportunities for up to tweniy (20)
' ' teachiers. '

1.8. The Contractor shall provide Side by Side {SbS) curriculum; up to ten (10)

‘wilh mental iliness, 1 assisl participants with:

1.8.1. Undersianding mental liness’ ln combination with olher age-related
issues.

- 182, Accesslng'suppons that assist with being more eﬂ'écﬁva and -

1.8.3. Empnwermg older aduits with mental iliness lo take a more alive ro!e
In their care plan. .

AFP-2022-DBH-OV-FAMIL-0Y RAMI Nowr Hampmm

840 Paga 2 ol3?

5

=

1.7.1. Family to Family andfor Famlly & Friends educallon classes by trained °

moduies, for a minimum one hundred {100} participants who have an older aduil R
family member, or for peers, and paraprofessionals who work with otder adul:s"
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. _; 194, Leara from and support each olher.
" 1.92. Share the challenges and successes of coping with tents) ihness; .. -
1.9.3. Qblain comprehensive infarmation regargmg.

&

T : . 1.03.1.  Howloaccess mental heallhservicas and avaliabloresources; | ¥
T T 1.9.3.2. Improvemenis lo New Hampshiro's Mental Heallh System; and
. s 1.9.3.3. Howto engage in sysiem advocacy. e 2
1,10, The Contraclor shall provide a minimum of one (1) Nalional Alfiance on Mental ' f:,
finess (NAMI)} Peerlo-Peer Educalion Program for up to fifteen- (15) . "
participants, which must include, bul is nol Iumted to: " o
1.10.1. Crealing a personalized relapse prevention plan; . '
' * ' 1.10.2. Leam how lointerac! with health care providers; B v
) s 1.10.3. Develop confidence for making decisions and reducing stress:
B v 1.10.4. Stay up-to-date on mental heatth research; .;;; T
ot 1.10.5. Understand the impact of sympioms on theit life; and v .
v, “. 4,10.6. Access praclical resources on how to maintain (helr joumey toward :
) : recovery. . a2
) 1.11. The- Conlraclor shall expand Its peer support services by offering )
B, " . f{acilalorfleadership training for individuals in recovery. The Contraclor shall s
\rain; . N - ; R
1.11.3. Two (2) new NAMI Pger-to-Peer leachers and 3
N 1.11.2. Two{2) new NAMI Connection fadilitators annually. £
W, —_ . . L ) ]
L 1.12. The Conlractor shall provlde youth and young adull resources and information -t
on social media, and al minimum one (1) websile, which must include butis not i
timited {o: B .
1.12.1. A.youth |aadersh|p interactive social nelworking websité faciltatéd by .
young adulls with emotional disaréiers, crealed for and by youth ages- =
fourteen (14) thfough twenty-cne (21} who are aflected by emotional <
G . disorders and/or menial ilness and lranstlicning to aduuhood which !
‘ " mustinclude, but is not limited to: ' ty
i _ 11211 Providlng a place where youlh and young adults are: ' ”'
- 5 -~ " 1.42.4.1.1. Able o suppart each olher by sharing ideas; and P
R 1.12.1.1.2. Able to disciss concems and queslnons about R
- planning for the fulure. . o .:i
1.42.2. Infomration about epportunities available {o youlh and young adults to ’
i get lnvolved to help create & better menlal health syslem - .

RFP.202208HDV FAMILD HAME Now Hampshlro . Contraster u-.n_'j
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» . - 1.13.3. Providing space for individuals to practice teliing their personal storigs
: within 3 learning and safe environment; . %
i - 1.13.4. Engaging new speakers from diverse backgrof.mds- and ’
71138, Coordinating speaking engagemenls for trained speakers wath -a broad
array of audiences. - (N .
: 1.14, The Conlractor shall provide Life !n!errup.red (LI) presenter trammg o a
minimum of four (4) new presenters, annually and re-lraining for a minimum of
e L. five (5) existing presenters annually. L1.family speaker tralning teaches public
> speaking and presentation techniques to assisl fami!y members.of any age who
have a loved one wilh @ mental illness andlor’ ser:ous emolignal dssorder to
' devetop presentations that include:
. " 1,34.1. Their famlily recovary story; v . Mt
s e "= "1:34.2. Specific faots alicut menfal heallh; and .
P 1.14.3. Impoﬂanl anh-shgma messaging.
5 . ™ 1.15. The Contractor shall provide at leas! twelve (12) volunteer 1ac:htated sipport
B ™ . groups annually by providing:
' P W
~ 1151, Averiugfor group meelings; " : . r
PR 1.15.2. Amechanfsi to track participation and evaluation:: ™%
: e 1.16.3. Ongoing model-specific-quanterly re- Arainingfin-service opportunities, for
o ' . " & roinimum of ten {10) fagilitators annually in order {o:
‘ 1.153.1. Refresh skills s .
. w2 % 41532 .Shareleamsd expstiences; and
o 1.15.3.3. Communicale up-to-dale information on current policy topics -
; 0 ) and oiher relevam informalion to share with other facilitalors =~ =
and _individuals atlenging family suppoft programming
o statewide.
S -1.15.4, Tmlnmg for four (4) new support group Ieaders annually,
LoE Program Support and information Dissemination )
‘ 24 1.16. The Conlractor shall provide I's Your Move Public Policy Leadership Trainmg
fora mmimum of twenly (20) parhccpanls annually, to assist mdmdual ._,st
& "t FFP2022.08HO1 FAMILOY Nmuuwumpmm v e il

e
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Tl o 1. 13 Tha Contractof shall provide in Our Own Voice (Io0V) presenter lralntng, foa

- minimum of eight (8) individuals annually. 100V shall assistindividuals with llved
: - gxperience to gain’ confidence, and empower them 1o deliver lhear personal
B recovery story by: .. e

1.13.1. Providing the tools fo write compellmg personal recovely stories;

1.13.2. Agssisling pan-cnpanls with anhanging thelr pubhc spaaktng skills; .

™
-
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o - ... - EXMBITE & Coe

e 4.16.1; .Develop efféctive.cohmunicalion, messaging skills, and sdvocacy skills;

1.16.2. Understand siate government, the ‘10-Year Mental Health Plan, the '~
Children's Syslem of Care, and current legislahon reletive to mental d
health end sulcide prevention; ) 3

e . N L

" e 1,163, Increase their knowledge of current mental health pohcies Lo

1.16.4. Become advocates for mental health issues, and .to educate key : i
! stakeholders and Legistators aboul the importance of mental health ¥
' < lssues across:the fifespan; and o :

e

W T . 1.16.5 Partadpate on policy commﬂtees and other opportunities in policy - . a,
T dévelopment. ol

. ) 5 1.17. The Conlracier shall promote and shareinformation about opportunities lo serve
" on state and local boards and committees Lhat focus on mental health rélated
issues with trained teachers, (acilitators, and presenters statewide. . . .

“ 1,18, The Coniractor shall provide a minimum of eighleen hundred (1800} hours of PR
- i technical assistance anntially to educalion, support and leaderskip pro;;rams
v . statewide; which must include butis not limited to: . <F t

Bow 1.18.1, Communicating wilh traingd leaders, voiumeers. teachers, presenlers P
and advocales to support them in their Ieadershlp rolas:

' 1'.18.2 Addressmg ‘cancems of trained leaders leachers and presanlers in .
. ‘ . order 1o solve problems. . -

5 1.18.3 Prowdlng currenl mental health updales and resources at quarterty in-
service-meetings with teachers, facifilators, l¢aders, and presenlers. 3

e T 1.18,.4 Making opportunities available far famiiies to participale in statewide H3 -
vy L . qQuality improvement iniflatives. . . o

-

1.19. The Contractor shall serve as-a repository for mformalnon and resoufces L
o tistributing electronic and printed materials regardmg mental hgalth, w‘nlch musl s
include, but Is'not limited lo: R
1.19.1. Accepl:ng and responding to a mummum of one thousand {1,000} phone, -
e-mail, social media messaging, and/or in- persou mquirles annualiy.

1,10.2. Distibuting a mln!mum of fificen thousand" (15 000} educational
materials anaually to individuals, family members, pmvlders and
Wy organizations. Materlals will include: EXy )

1.18.2.1. Resources in both English and Spanish to Indnndua1s family * - o

‘members, health care providers and other professionals

B - Including schonls pubhc safely, haalth care organizations, and
' a7 mars,

1.19.2.2. Evidence-based materials for individuals and (amily support
and educahon programs; and ¢ v
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"8

. 11623, Resources for suicide prevenhon and smrwors of a suicide
loss. i
. 1.19.3. Mainlaining a public awareness and resource websne with conlen! !hal
' incudes, bul is nol limited lo:

1.19.3.1. Accurafe and current resources for mental health ini‘ormatio'n.
1.19.3.2. Current oﬁenngs and schedules for slalewide famnty Suppont
programmmg. -
1.16.3.3 Famlly suppor group Informabon and schedules
1.19.34. Tesbmony ang lellers thal respond fo current leglslahon. uf
, ' applicable; "
» 1.19.3.5. New Hampshire's 10-Year Mamal Heaith Plan; X

i 1.19.36. Socnai networking opporlumues for teens and young adulls;
- « and e

G . i
. . 1.19.3.?. A complete listing of Co_mmuuity Mental Health Centers and
B : " Peer Support Agencies, inclusive of conlact information.

1.20. The. Contractor shall provide information through web-based' media, Including
Video, Facebook, and Twiller, hal must include, butls not limited to;  °

P < .20.1. Pubttshing links lo a minimum of fifteen (15} educauonal weblnars andfor )

. . ~videos relsvant to:
“gm - ' 1.20.1.1, Family educalion and suppost;
A 1.20.1.2.” Suicide prevention; -
| 1.20.1.3. Supporis to those bereaved by sulcide;

1.20.1,5. Sligma reduction. R
1 .20.2. Other lopics of interes! lo families and mdmduals )

Community Edggstion Stigma Reduction and Public Sgeaktng

k4 1.21. The Gonlractor shail provlde a minimum of three (3) educational presenlahbns
2 far famitigs andfor caregivers affected by mental liness and persons with rnenlal
- s+ . iness on topics thalinglude, bulere not limited t0:  ~ von o
s+ 73,211, " Advocacy and current policy updatés. . ﬁf
1.21.2. Menial heailh resources and treatments,
1.21.3. Coping skills end sligma.

" 1.21.4. Working with the Office of Consumer and Family Affairs (OCFA), within '
© - theNew Hampshire Department of Health and Human Servaces Bureau

. RFP-QO?Z-DBN-Ol-FM-IJL-01 HAND B Hompshicy
8-1.0 ' Pagedol 1y

i

; 1.20.14. New Hampshife's 10-Year Menlal Heslth Plan; and. * ...
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A 'y H

of Mental' Heallh. Semoes, . 1o develop presenlat:ons focused on

' . persons with mental illness.

1.22. -The Conlractor shall provide an annual educaﬁorial conference for individuals,
transilional age youth, families, prowdars end interested members of lhe public

thal mustinclide: - .
1.22.1. Mental health topics and issues for all age groups;

N

i 22.2. Current and emerging evider}ce'based praclices;

* i . 1.22.3. A description of the Newr Hampshxre mental heaith system and 10-Year
- Mental Health Pldn; and '
. 1 224 “Key stakeholders and family members on the Conference Pianning
" d - Commiltee dunng !he planning slages i
! 1.23. The Contracior shall provlde educational services and activilies for the genefa!
“public, including, but not limited to; o
. 1. 231 A minimym of lwelve (12) snli-stigma messages and responses in

vi
e

response to public statements that are prejudicial and discriminatory via
; . Use of .newspaper, radio, lelevision end social media sources. The
e - Contractor shall'develop & plan thal includes, but is not fimited to:

Y}

1.23.1.1. Cémmunity"awarenégs éwanté._ '
e, 1.23.1.2. Observance of Mental liness Awareness Week.

1.231.3. qulabora_ling'wﬂh agencies, schools, communjty mental
e . © « ~health centers, communily providers, and New Hampstire

S - . Hospilal to provide activilies and events.

' g

T : 3|.2_3.1.4. Web-based tools In order to promote positive images
. associated with mental lliness Including easlly accessible
' . - Information or links to Infocmiallon about safe messaging.

& 1.23.2. A minimum of th;rly (30) In Our Qwn Volice {IDOV) Presentalions of
personal stories, lo help reduce the shgma of menial dinass, for a

' O " minimum of eight hundred (800} indivigitals from targeled audiences
that inciude, bul are not limited to;

-V . 1 23.2.1. Menta!l- health and substance use drsorder peer suppod
centers. . .

el iy L
e o

” “ 1.23.2.2. Mental health and healthcare prowders - .o

. 1.23.2.3. Colleges. :

- ‘ 1.23.2.4. Law enforcement.:
1.23.2.5, Department mililary/civilian commﬂlees :
1.23.2.6. Educalors/schoals. .
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o g _

-1.23.2.?. Othet vendors and cdﬂébo}alors. as approbria_te.

1.233,

'1.234.

[

A minimum of len (10) Life Interrupled” (L§) Presentations, for a mintmum

of ene hundred end fifly (150) family members of .any age who have’a
lovad ona with a mental illness andfor serious emotional disorder gain
canfidencé through inslruction on public speaking and presentation
techniques in order ta develap presentaliéns that include:

1.23.3.1. Speaking aboul thair own experiences.

12332, Address méntal healih stigma.

1.23.3.3. Educale communities aboul menlal ilingss recovery.
1.23.3.4. How menta! lliness impacls family members.
1.23.3.5. Resources avaitable 1o family members.

A mlmmum of ten (10) presentations for a minimum of two hundred and
fifty (250) indiividugls of the ‘general public annually on a variely of lopics
rélaled to promoting awareness aboul ireatment and recovery of seripus
mentat lliness (SMI) and serlous emotiona! disorders (SED), including:

1.23.4.1. Dispiaying and dlsseminatmg informalion aboul mental illness:
at conferences, health fairs and other evenls thal are designed -
_for specific, targeled audiences;

- 1.23.4:2. Ensuring slali members have compleled Dwersily and Cutlural

Competence ¥7alning as approved by the Departiment; and

1.23.4,3. Ensuring stigma reductionl messaging is a componen! of. all
_ public.presentations.

Suicide Prevenlioh PO . -

.1.24. The Contractor shall prov]de information regardlng sulccda. Tisk faclors,
proteclive faclors -and. warning signs to individuals, family members, service
providers, and the general public to increase lheir abilily to recognize at-risk
individuals and connggt them 1o qualified -heallh professionals through the
Conlraclor's NAML NH websile, sacial media, presenlahons and the lnformallon
.and Resource lme

1 25 The Contractor shaH assemble and distribute a minimum of three hundred {3009
_ tesource packets for next of kin, with approval from the Depaﬂmenl. thal. must

N

Include:
1.25.1.
1.25.2,
1.25.3.
1.25.4.

-

o

lnro:mahon and best prachces for managing grief from a suicsde loss
Waning signs of suicidal feelings; '
Methods for reducing risk of suicide, sfigma, and :soia!lon

Toolsto increase help-seeking behavior, and
tt

o3
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P

A

. 1258,

education programs.

126 The Contractor shalt provide suicid@ prevenlion and intervention 1rarnmg

' through: - R

- 1.26,1.

Annuaﬂy‘ 8 minlmum of four (4) educ.auon and awareness events that
targel individuats with SMYSED and thelr family members, In order to

increase awargnass of suitide as a public health’ issue through -
- collaboralion ‘wilh public and private organizatians, coalilions, slale

bureaus, individuals wilh lived experienca, family organizalions, .and

. cofmunity mental health centers. Evenls must be designed lo transrer

knowledge regarding: .o

4

L

-
it
‘u

it
au

RFP.2022-06H-01-FAMIL-0Y

BAD

il 1.26.1.1. Suicide;

" 1.26.1.2. Risk factors;

".1.26.14. The ablity to recognize al-risk individuals;

e

1z62

[x3

1263

1.26.1 3. Proteciive factors and warning-signs;

1.26.1.5. Connectling al-risk :ndlwdua!s o qual:f ed health profess!onaIS'
and o .-

1.26.1.6." At Jeast ane {1) of these events ‘must be delivered during .

Nationa! Suicide Prevention Month in Seplember,

A minimum of two {2} tralning opportunities for key service providers,
annually, which must include.but Is not limiled to:

1.26.2.1. BasiPraclice protoeols that address how key service prowders
should respond to a suicide Incidant.’ R '

4.26.2.2. Integraling prowder-specf‘ c-roles with olher providers to
' ensure gaps are c!osed resulnng in a coordinated commumly
response. : . .

1.26.2.3. Promoting early reoagmucn of mental iliness, substance abuse
disorder, and warning signs for suiclde.

1.26.2:4. _Reducmg sligmatizing atlifudes. R

- L) -

..‘g'

' 4.26.25. Promaling help seeking, S
*4.26.2.6. Improving rela{i'onships between key service providers ahd-the

sevice delivery system.

The Contractor shall provide a'minimum of 1hlrly {30) hours annuaHy of
technical assistance and conference calls to support volunteer suicide
intervendion and pravention trainers who Arain in thelr local regions t6
support the volunieer pool of trainars and ensure ' they have updaled
tralning informahon s
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: - ¥ 27 The Contractor shali prowde annuslly a minimum ol one (1) Connecl G '
Postvention training, for up lo thirty (30) individuals, which must Include. is nol . i
hmited lo: .
% 1274, Best prachce protocols far key services prowders in orderto: - :
1.27.1.1. Reduce the risk 6f conlagion. - . PO
o ) 1.2?.1._2 Provide informalion about waming sfgns fm suicide In orderto -i
' . * Increase help seeking behavior and sensiljvily.
.-";;.:e R 1:27.1,3. Increase the cullura) respansweness of service providers lo
) Yk those beraavad by suicide. w3
: #  +1.27.1.4. Provide current science-basad informationfbest pracl:ces on: E
. F . 1.27.1.4.1. Grief, TR

Lo . i .-
1 ] -

1:27.1.4.2. Suicide loss;
1.27.9.4.3. Resaurces; and
i $.27.1.4.9. Conneclian to survivors of sulcide loss nelwork

1.28. The Conlraczor shall provide a minimum of fifty (50) bours annuglly respondang
lo suicide-incidents by providing consultation and technical assistance to.guide’
key service’ providers and community members in the use of best practice

5
m-

. . prolocols implemented aflar a gulgide death in order lo promaote healing. N

1.20. The Contractor shall provide a minimum of fwenly {20) hours of suppon and T
i . technical assistance to the Survivors of Suicide Loss Networks {SOSL) thal® T

. . include, bul are not limlied 19}

i . 1.29.1, Support, helpfu! resources and conneclion 10 other famities 'who have ke

» N lost a family member to suicide. , i

: ) '1.29.2 Suppont ‘and fechnical assistance lo Survivor of Suwede Loss Support ,
B " Group facilitators, including, assistance with screefing individuatswho  + o 24,
are interested in allending groups and malntaming appropnale mesting: -

i iocations. !
P © » 1,203. Support & minimum of six (6} Survivurs of Smmde Lcss Suppoﬂ Groups )

. . '(SOLS) annually. w oo o :,

_ 1.20.4. - Provide a Survivor Nawslelter that is distributed electromcally slolewide, 7+ T

“ s _ lo & minimum of five thousand (5,000) individuals, in order to educate =
S % semvice providers, the public, and those alected by suicide regarding: . -

1.20.4.1. The impact of suicide on families and communlties. :

o ' 1.20.4.2. Avallable resources and suppons. . ¥
" % 1,294.3. Reducing ihe feelings of isolation and shame., = ‘» ; g.
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e .

-

1.29.5. Coordination of, a minimum of Six (6} Survivor Voices presentations

1.28.7.

-

annually, for up'to thirly (30) in-person panticipants, or up to seventy {70}
vitual participants, with the -Suicide Loss Survivor Speakers' Bureau,
tha! provides ‘technical assistance, stalewide, ta lra:ned speakars.
" including but not fimited lo:

1.28.5.1, Locating presentation siles.

"4.28.5.2.- Distribulion of auﬁsence materials, Including a program

evaluation.

1.28.6. Survivor Volces spepkers re-trgining, for up to ten (10) speakers

I

kXN
o

annually, by providing updates on currenl research trends In suldide i

.prevenlron and safe communication, while providing opporiunilies’ to
process challanges and siigmas encounlered as well as meihods 1o
adoress those challenges. and sligmas.

A minimum of rﬂy (50 } hours, annually, of Indawdual Surwvor Suppori
* that: w

.~ 1.28.7.1. Provides individual support lo survivors of suiclde loss in order

.to "connect Irem wilh ‘support groups snd olher surwvor
4 resources .

1'.29.7.2 Asslsts sutvivors in - orgadizing and coordmatmg mutual
suppart and activities that promote awareness about mental
_illness, suicide prevention, reducing the risk and sligma, as

. -well as promole heating and help seaking for participants.

1.29.7-.3 Provides trained: speakers who have survwed an altempted
suicide.

",

1,30. The Contrac!or shall padticipate’ on Ihe New Hampshire Surcrde Prevention. -
Council as 8 member arganization, The Contractor will serve as the fiscal agenl
for $100,000 of designated state general funds lo support implemenilation of the

goals of the suiclde prevention council's sirategic plan. The Contractor shall
work with the Sukide Prevention Council's leadership commlltee 15:
1.30:1. Prioritize spending recommendations; v
1.3072. Vote on an annual budget and spendmg plan; . .
e 1.30.3. Bring a proposal forward to tha Depariment for approvat; anﬁ :
h Submit requesls lo the Department to carry.over funds lrom one fiscal

1.30.4,

-year to the nexl, as pecessary.

- Administralive Reqguirements

1.31. The Contractor shall accep! the Depanmenl’s approved consultaltcn. lechn!cél
-assistance, trelning, and supporl as (dentified and specified by the Department
. Tesulling from audit recommendalions to fultil al requrremanlsgﬂj, Ahis
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I Agreement '

1. 32 Tha Conltractor shall mamlaln 5 Board of Drrectors which musi have a mlnlmum
of nina {9) voting members wilh expenence in the-mental haallh syslem, and:

A ) 32 1. The Bodrd of Directors will consisl of Individuals whom seif-:denufy as
having mental health lived expenence. or .

1.32.2. identify as family members of individuals wilh severe men!al lllness,
severe and persistent mental liness, early sesious-mental illness, first
. episode psychosls andlor sévere emolional dlslurbance

. . 133 The Contraclor shafl maintain records of Board of Director membership for

i o purposes of validalion of annwal board elections and to suppon efficlent and
. reguiar communications with membershlp regarding Contractor activities. The

Co ntractor shall: - :

1 33 1. Ensure the racords are provided to the Depanmenl upon request,
1332 Mainfain minutes of Board meetings (hat include; bul are hol Iurmteg lo:
oo 1.33.2.1. Topics discussed. .

. T 13322 Aclibn steps and voles.
1.33.2.3. The ﬁmonlhiy review of the age_ncfﬁnancial ‘status,

= . - - 1.33.3. Have a documented orientalion process and manual for Directors of the
R - Board, which must be'provided 1o the Department upon request.

2 g 1.334. Provide annua! training relaled o the rolas and responsibilities of the
LIS > Board o! Directors, to include fiduciary responsubilmes.

1.34. The Conlractor shali maintain an accounting manual spegific o the organizafion
,which inclides, but'ls not limited to: :

N . \ -

1 34.1. Cash managamenl fo'include ciish recelpts, cash disbursemenls, and

e,
L]

*

-
‘l

_ pelly cash. ‘ s
. ' " 1.34.2. Accounts Payable and Accounts Recewabie Procedures
: 1.34.3. Payroliand fixed assels. - -, .
1.34.4. Intemal Control-Procedures. @ i
_ . 1.34.5. Expense reimbursement and Advance Policy. , T
- o 1.35. Prior 1o making an offér of employment or for volunteer work, the Contractor
* * . shall, after abtalning signed and notarized authorization from the person or
. persons forwhom information is being soughl C . i
i 1.35.1, Obtain and verify al least two {2) refetences for the person; e
; . T 1% ’ ps
. RFP-zozz'DBl!Oi-FAMIL-Oi . V. AR NowrHampshirg Conlroctor Lnitin! E:N
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" F:0;

history of:
© 1.35,3.1,

Felony conviclion; or

1.35.3.2. Any misdemeanor conviction invalving:

1.35.3,3. Physical o;sexual assaull, -
e " '1.35.3.4. Violence,

i 1.35..5. Exploitation;

13538, Child pornography,;
i 1.35.3.7.. Threatening of reckless conduct;
Y. . 1.3538 Thelt. -

e ]

R ]

-1.35.3.9. Driving under the influence of drugs or alcohol or
_1.35.3.'10.Any ather conduct that represents ewdence of behavior that

could endanger the wellsbeing ol-a consumer: -and

al‘:

Ll 1135 2 Submit the person's name for review agamst the bureau or elderly and
adult services (BEAS) state regiskry maintalned pursvant 1o RSA-161-

1 353 Complete a ¢ripninal records check fo ensure thal the person has no

1.36. Unless approved by the Department, the Conlractor shall not hire any individual, -

or approve any Individual 10 ‘gcl ag 8 volunleer, if:

1.364. Theindividual's nameIs on the BEAS slate regls!fy
1.36.2. The lnduwduai has a record of a ielony canviclion: or.
1.36.3. Theindividual has a record of any m:sdemeanors specified In Paragraph

1 35 3. e &
2. Exhibits [ncorporated ay

g
T

g 0"

2.1, The. Contraclor shall use and disclose Protected Heallh informalion In
compliance with the Standards for Privacy 'of Individually Identifisblé Health

executed by the parties,

Informalion (Privacy Rule) (45 CFR Parts 160 and 164) under the Heallh’
Insucance Periability and Accountability Act (BIPAA) of 1986, and in accordance
with the allached Exhibit I, Busiriess Associate Agreament which has been

2.2, The Contraclor shall manage ail oonhdenhal data relaled lo 1his Agreen]enl in

. accordance with the lerms of -Exhiibit K, DHHS lnformahon Securily

Requirements.”

2.3. The Contractor shall comply wath all Exhlblls D through K, wh|ch are auached

. herelo and incorporated by reference herein
3. Raporllng Requ!rements

- £} A
lﬁ:ﬁ.w How Hampshlie
810 N 4 Pege 530117

)

e

-

¥
F

;'i':

:

3

021

"ot T
. ~n3
Comractmlme LN "
D d

o 2y
gy



DocuSign Envalope I0); EF3235AD-FODF-4679.8 166-BE0B15674471
" i

DocuSign Envalope 1D: C14FB175-12FE-4130-0763-CO1G0F1 1EAAE

DoouSign Envelops 10: SFOIBERE-EFBA-43E1-8965-805500812088
DocuSign Enviloge I0; FEDO mum' 1c-¢m-asn.aasaceseasrn.

., 1 New Hampshlre Department of Heaith ang Human Servlces

“ay Famtly Mutual 5upport Services

R ';‘7'
‘ T, o .t
¥ e
i1

I EXHlBIT 8

W
Vel

Y

(30) days siter the'end of each quarler.

F a4,

* L

=y = saurces.

3. 1 2 Quartedly statistical reporls must mclude

Ay

Ouanerty financial reporls musl include:
3104 A Corporale Balance Shest. '
*. 3.1.1.2. Anincome Statement using thé acceual melhod of accountlng

s 3113 A Budgei d0-Actual Revenue and Expense repori (Form A)
using.the cash nethod of accounting.

'3.1:1,4. Tolal, révenue and expendituras, mcludmg funds from all

-

.,
'
.
b

3 1. Tha Contractar shall submii quaﬂeriy financtal and slahsuca[ reports wilhin lhirty

'4

"3.1.21. Dala siatistical reports’ based on crileria approved hy lhe

R N . Department. ¢,
3.2. The Contraciér shall provide the Department with a momh%y programmmg
"~ calendar of scheduled avenls, trdinings and programmmg for the upcoming.

. ) month by the end of the.prior month, .: .

tn #i . month.

*

3.33. _ The number of individuals who paniclpated in each training sgssion
3.34. Individual and colleclive resulls ot pre and post tesls for each iype of

. . ) trelning. .

engagements, ,

[

e

» 33 The Conlractor shafl provide the Deparimen wnh a monthiy programmmg report
that includes, butis no! limited to:

3.3.1. ‘Adescription {or each training sessmn provided for the pravious monlh
-33.2.  The tolal number of training ‘sessions prov:ded durmg the previous

LA ) ' 3.3.5. * The number of contacls made with stakeholdéss and the generat publlc
. in providing mehtal health suppor and resouroes and public speakmg

© 336, The -number of web- based!elaclromc postmgs and resouroes
disseminated in the. month. -

Con 3.37. Thenufberof lechnicatassistance hours spanlt with education, ‘support,
o and leadership programs,

338 Atisl of.suicide prevention aclivities completed and numbers reached
" with-the suicide prevention.councit activities clearly identified.

o

. 3.4, The Conlraclor shall conduct pre- and posl-lests for trainings, and report fesulls
based on criterla approved by the Department, to determine effectiveness of

serwces In parlicipant $kills, knowledge and conrdence The Contractor shall:

G,
: 02t

Lo
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3 EXHIB]T, B

K
o )

" 4.1.. The Depariment will monitor periormanoe of the Contraclor by revaemng

" 4.3,

34.1.

EN T ' r

Conduci pre- and’ posHesls for tralnnng sessions longer than'three (3)

hours.
3.4.2. Conduc! post surveys for training sessrons!presenlabons less than three
(3) hours . - N
3.4.3. Conduci semi-annual follow-up survey with tndw:duals who contact the
... . Conlractor's NAMI Information and Resource program.
Performance Measures . : .

4.2,

4:_4!

5.1.

¥

monthly reports as described in Subsection 3.3.

The Coniractos shall actively and regulady collaborate wnh the Depar!menl fo
enhance coniract managemenl, improve resuits, and adjust program delwery

and pohcy based on successful gulcomes. . . ¢ A

»

5.2. Federal Civil Righls'Laws Compliance: Cullufally and ngmsllcally Appropnale .
Programs and Services’ )

521

The Contractor may: be required to provide olher key data and melrics to the
Depariment, inclutiing cllent-leve! demographic, performance, and service data,

Wherse applicable,. the Contractor shall collecl and share data with the .
Department in.a format specified by the Departmenl g

. Additlonal Terms .
Impatts Resul!mg from Couwrt Orders or Leg:slahve Changes
"5A4.1.

Fa

The' Conlractor agrees thal, fo lhe extent fulure slate or federal

legistation or caun ordérs may have an impact on the Services described

herein, the State has the righ! to modify Service priorities and
expeniditure requirements under this Agreement S0 as to achieve
compliance therewiih, .

.
-

The Contractor shall submit within len {10) 'days of the Agreemeal

Effective Dale, a delailed description of the communication access and
language assistance services lo be provided to ensure meaningful
access to programs andlor services 10 individuals with limiled English

proficiency; individuals who are deaf or have hearing loss; individuals

who are. blind or have low vision; &nd Individuals who have speech
chaltenges. o

. wh
i g
[l ..

5.3. Credlls and Gopyright Ownership ~

RFPONDBHOLFAMLOY

PP

810

531

All documents, nolices, press releases research reporis and other
materials prepared during o resulling from the performance of the
services of the Agreement shall include the following statement, “The
preparation of Ihis (report, document eto) was financed under an

NAMD New Hampshite
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) EXHIBITE | -

k¥
f
Ul \

Human' Serwces. with funds prowded in_part by lhe State of New

L Hampshlre andfor such other funding sources as were avallable or

53.2.

- 533,

-hia
M

534,

6. Records

. 53.3.2. Resource directories. LY .

required, 2.9 the Uniled States Deparlment of Health and Human
Servlces . # i

All materials produced. or purchased under the Agreemen! shall have
prior approval from the Depariment before pnrmng. production,
distribution or use. -~

The Departmenl shall retain copynghi ownetship forany and all originial,
materials produced inciuding, but not I:miled to:

53.3.1. Brochures,

53.3.3. 'Protocols ot guzdelmes o
£334. Poslers,
5.3.3.5. Reporls,

The Conttactor shall not repro-duce any malerials produced under the
Agresmenl withoul prior writlen approval from the Depantment.

gl

%A 3

L

6.1, The Contractor shall keep records that include, but are not limited to: ~ .+

6.1.1.

Books, records, documents end, other electronic or physical dale
evidencing and reﬁechng all-costs and olher expenses incurred by the

- Contractor in the performance of the Conlract, and all income receivéd

or collected by ¢ the Contraclor.  ° N i

Al records must be maintairied In accordance with accounling
procedures and practfoes which sufiiciently and properly reflect all such

costs and expenses, and which are acceplable to the Depériment,and .

16 include, without limitation, :all ledgers, books, records, and original
_ evidence of cosis such es purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers,

" requisitions for maleridls, inventories, valuations of in-kind conlribulions,

fabor time cards, payrolls, and ather recoids requesled or required by

- _the Dapartment,

6.2, Durlng lhe term of this Agreement and the period for relention hereunder. the

' » Department, the United States Department 6f Health and Human Servicas, and
- any of .their designated represenlalives shall have access to sl repanis and
records maintained pursuant to the Agreemenlt for purposes of audi,
exaniination, excerpls and lranscripts. Upon the purchase by the Department of

1hé maximum number of units provided for in the Agraement and upon paymen! .

ol the price fimitation hereunder, the Agreement and all the obligations of the

panjas hereunder (excepl such oblxgations as, by the le:ms of the Agreernenl

: RFP 2022-DBH-DY FAM&-O! -

31.0

NAMI NowHompstice
< Pags 8ol

L
ST

N N
P

3



DociSign Envetope [D: EF323§AD-F9DF—4879-31 EB-BSCB156744T1

.
v . . . . . 1 ) . g
OpcuSign Envalope ID: C14FB175-12FE4130:6783-CO1CQF 11E4AE : Y
: DocuSign Envelopt D: S701BEFE-EFB4-4351-6963-8055C 0212088 .
. OpeuSign Envelopd (L ans:ro&1c4sm-asmasacesawo . .
iy o, s e g .. LM ‘
. = © New Hampshire Department of Heauh and Human Sewices . )
w . Family Mutual Support Services - ) %,
. . L .o EXHIBIT B ; R .
3 N - b ::‘ =_".;;“ N - , ." !ﬁ b}
are to be performed after the end of the term of 1his Agreement and/or survlve
¢ * the tenmination of the Agreement) shall terminate, provided however, that i,
, PR upon review of the Final Expenditure Report Ihe Bepartment shall disallow any
g . expenses ciaimad by the Contractor as ¢osts ‘hereunder the Depariment shall
e : retaln the right, al'its discrelion, to-deduct the amount of such expenses as are
. disallowed or (o recover such sums from the Contraclar. .
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<
i

»5

s the approved line item, @s speal‘ ied in Exh-bus C-1, Budget through Exhibit C-
"2, Budgel. "

'lznfe"ii_ﬁ.; ’ ) j T
. ' Paymen arms
. ’ £

This Agreement is funded by 100% General funds

Paymenl shall be on a cosl reimbursement basls for actual expenditures
incurred In the fulfiitment of this Agreement, and shall be In actordance with

The Gontractor shall submil-aninvoice In a farm sausfaciory to the Departman!
by the fifteenth (15th) working day of he following month, which identifies and
requests reimbursement for auithorized expenses incurred in the prior month,
The Conlractor shall ensuse the invoice i3 completed, dated and returned lothe
Depadment in order to inifiale payment.

4. In heu of hard copies, all.invoices may be assigned an- e!ecironic signature and
. emailed to dhhs dbhmvmcesmhs@dhhs nh. gov or invoices may be maxled to:

10

RFP-2072-05H-01-FAMIL

C-.l_.?

Fmancual Manager v, oo
Department of Health an¢ Human Services
129 Pleasant Street i ’

Conourd NH 03301
The Departmenl shatt make. payment to the Conlractor within thirty (30) days

of receipt of each Invoice, subsequent to approval of the submilled invoice and.

il sufficienl funds are available, subjecl (o Paragraph 4 of the General °

Provisions Form Number P-37 of this Agreement.

*The {final invoice shall be due to the Department no later than forty (40) days

after thé conlract complelion dals speclfed in Form P-37, General Prows:ons
Block 1.7 Completion Date. .

The Conlractor must provide the setvices Jn Exhibit 8, Scope of Serviges, In
compliance with funding requirements.

The Contractor agrees lhat funding under this Agreemenl may be withheld, in.
‘whole or in part In the event of non-compliance wnh the terms and condilions

of Exhibil B, Scope of Semces
Notv.rzlhslandmg anyth:qg lo the conlrary herein, the Cdnlraclor agrees that

funding under this agreement may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event ” .

of non-compliance with any Federal or Slate law, rule of requiation apglicable

to the senvices DrOvidEd or If the.sald services or products have nol been- *

salisfaclorily compleled m accordance wilh lhe terms and condilions of this
agreement, . e

Notwithstanding Paragraph 17 of the General Provisions Form £-37, changes
limited to adjusling amounts within the. pricé limitalion-.and agjusling
encumbrances between Stale Fiseal Years and budget class lings through the

Budget Office may be mide by written agreemanl of both padres. wnhoui

NAM Naw Hempshke Coniractot Inﬂlal!.- i
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New Hampshlre Department of Health end Human Services .

Farmly Mutua) Support Services - .
i EKHIBIT C 5
obtaumng approval of the Governor and ‘Execulive Council, if needed and
= justified. SE 5 .
11, Audits ' 3 T _
111, "The Contractor must email an  ennusl’  audit o

mghasa s morin@dhhs.ah.qov if any of {he folowing conditions exist:
1.1, Condllon A - The Contractor expended $750,000 or more in
_ federal funds recaived as a subrecipient pursuantto 2 CFR Part
« 200, during the most recently completed fiscal year.

11.4.2. Condition B - The Cantractor Is subject to audit pursuant to the
- requirements of NH RSA 7:28, [ii-b, perlaining to charilable
organiza!ion‘s recelving support of $1,000,000 or more.

-11.1.3. Condition C - The Contractor is a public company and required

11.2.

11.4.

by Securily and Exchange Commission (SEC}) regulahcns to
submit an annuat financial audil. i

- { Condition A exlsls the Conlraclor shall submit an annual single audit

perfrmed by an independent. Certified Public Accountan {(CPA) 1o ther

Depanmenl within 120 days alter the close of the Conlractor's fiscal
. year, conducled in accordance wilh the requirements of 2 CFR Part

-

200; Subpart F of the Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost- - .

Pnnclples and Audit Requirements for Federal awards,

if Condilion” B or Cond:lcun C exists, the Contraclor shall submit an
annual financlal audil performed by an- independent CPA within 120
days after the close of the Conlractor s fiscal year, : i

" In addillon to, and nol in any way in limitation of obYgations of the
* Conlracl, it is understood and agreed by the Contractor that the
Contractor shall be held liable for sny siate of faderal audit exceptions °
and shall return to the Department all psyments made under the
Contract to which exceplion has been taken, or wh;ch have been

d:sallowed because of such, an exception.

i
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oy ' CER (FICATION REGARDING D Ué-FREE WOR PLACE NTS
The Vendo: identificd in 5ect:on 1.3 of the Géneral Provisions, agrnes o compiy wilh the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Fiee Workplach Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title ¥, Sublitle D; 41
U.5.C. 701 el s€q.). and further agrees 1o hove the Conlractor's representative, a3 :denhf:ad in Sections

1.11 and 1.12 of the Genera) Provisions execule the Jatiowing Centification:
. ALTERNATIVE!. FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

us DEPARTM ENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES CONTRACTORS i
US DEPARTHMENT OF EOUCATION : CONTRACTORS
us DEPARTMENT QF AGRICULTURE CONTRACTORS

& This cemrwa‘hon ts required by the regulations Implémenting Sections 5153-5160 of the Brug-Feee
_ Workplace Act of 1988 [Pub. L, 100 650, Title V, Subtite D; 41 U.S.L, 701 el seq.). The Januory 34,
" 1989 rgqulations were emended and published as Pait [l of the May 25, 1990 Federal Register {pages
21661-2169%),.and require cenification by gtanlzes (and by Inférence, sub-praniees and sub-
“contractors), priar to avwaid, that thay wil matniain a drug-lree workplage,” Section 3017.630(c) of the:
regulation provides thal a graalee (and by Infetente, sub-grantees ond sub-contractors)thal is a Slale
' may elect to make one cedification to (he Oepartment in each lederal liscal year In fiew of cerificates for
' eath.grani during lhe federal fiscal yaar coveced by the cerification, The cenificate sel out. belowis a
materia) reprosentation of fact upon which refiance Is placed when the 8gonty Bwa tds (he granl, Felse’ *
’ cerilication or violation of the cerlificalion shall be glounds for suspension of paymenls SUSPENSION pr’
- termination of gran!s, or government wlde suspansion of debarment, Confraciors using this ferm shauld
v senditte: .
Commissioner - .
NH Deparment of Health and Human, Semces 4 i
128 Pleasant Slreet, T, .
Concérd, NH 033016505 . " :
) 4. The grantee ¢ certtf' a6 thal il il of will conlifive lo pmwde a d:ug dfree wofkplace by: wp ¥
L 4 1.1,
. dispensing, possession of use of a controlled substance Is prohibiled in the grantée’s
w0 workolace and specifying the actions thal will be taken sgeinst employees for violalion of such’
prehibltion;
1.2, Eslablishing af ongoing drug oo awareness progrem lo tnfarm empl«oyces about:
1.2.%.- The ﬂar\gefs of-drug abuse in the vrorkplace:
- . 1.2.2.- Thé grantee's policy of maintaining o drug-free workplace,
_ 1.2.3.  Anyavailable drug counseling, rehabilitalion, and employee assislance programs; and
o 1.2.4, The pensllies thal-may be iImposed upon employecs for drug ebuse wolahons
PR . eesulding in the workplace;
. Makmg 1t 2 requirement that eath employee lo be engagedin the perfcsrmanr.e o! the g:ﬂnt be
i given a:.copy of the slatemenl required by paragraph {a);
Nolitylng the employee in the slalemenl required by paragraph () Ihat, as 8 condi&lon of
employment unde’ Lhe gronl, the employee wil ’
s ) R U 141, Abide by lhe lerms of the stalement; and £
5 142, Nolify the emplnyer in wriling-of his br her conviction fora violaticn of @ criminsl drug.
: . flatule acourringin the workplacee ao lalarlhan fivo calendar days after such
' i conviglion;
Notifylng {ha agancy In wiiting, wilhin ten calendas days eller receiving nnhce undet
subparagtaph 1,4,2.lrom an employee of othenvise raceiving aclual nolice of such conviglion,
Ermployars of coavicled employges nvsi provide nolice; including position lille, 10 every grant

" ' ; ;
rKr Iritialy e
Dawe

e - Bxnli D = Cerilication repatding Drug Frtc
R Wokplacg Requiigmeants
. - Page 1612

-

=

Publishing a slatement namying employaes that the urlavdul manulaclure, dislr:buhon v

-

A

ofiider on whose granl aciivity the conv!cied emphyee was workmg unless the Federai egsncy oy

et
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. Now Hampshue Deparimam of Hoalih and Human Sesvices -
] ; o Exhibit D _
| ’ '+ hes desbgnmcd a cestial point fur the receipl of such natices. Nelice shal !ncluda the
" identilication aurber(s) of aath alfected grani: 2
1.6, - Yaking ene of the following aclions, wilhin 30 calendar days of receiving. mnca under yy
subpatagraph 1.4.2, wilh raspect to any employea who is 50 conviclad ¥ A
KRR XA P Tnklng appropriple peigonnal action againsl such sn employee. up o and Includ‘ ing ‘ £ogr
o ke termination, consistent with tha mqwremcms of the Rehatiililation Act-of 1973, 85
FE ] amended; ¢ .
o ' T 1.6.2. Requl:hg such employee lo poricipate satisteciosly in o drug sbuse assisiance or - 1
S tehabiidation program apptoved lot such purposes by a Federal, Slate, oriccal haalih, L
- - taw enlorcomen, o olher agpropriate agency:
. .17 Making & good faith effort to conlinue o maintain a drug- frea workplace thtough
. - g3 implemantalion of paragaphs 1.1.1.2,1.3. 1.4, 1.5.9nd 1.6,
o 2. The granlee may inser! intha space provided below (he sﬁe(s) for the puarformance of work done in Y
. conneclion wih the spec?fc granl § o
.4: . t i '."\.:i. ';:
-t .. = Placeol Perlormance fslreel wdress ¢ity, counly, slale, zip code) (sl each localmn) P o
e 3E = T, L e
. . _ Check B If there are workplaces on file thal ate nol identifiod here. -
¥ 2" ¢ B . - . ! ' v i
._»:" - . . - ch " N . - - o . ) .:.;"
n . S s ornome _ LR ,
. oo ) ir peetopen - b
3 . 1 " ey
i, , 6/872021 R buntisdl Moo, U(,Sw i .
v - Dawe ik Nome: ReANGLh Korton, LiCsw ., - . e
Lo , Te: gyacutive Diceccor . P
B # W . ia . R
?;,,_ - & .1;;:;:' u o
- * Afp » o * .'%«.‘
- . ut ' - - ! ‘:L . B ) .g‘a‘
t J . ] 2y . - .
. " .k ¥ m"‘f ’ )
: S
* o N ! - i ¥ .
- *.‘3:- Bt y o ': / . . :.:":- E
T v e 5 * i ‘
s »'»'* Lo i, ) * ‘
< - . B : oy LY
e ExNBh '~ Genlication cegarding Ding Fiee Vendor :nmau(-;______ E
Worplaie Requirenwnts = 5 /812021
Cuipsmet) Page2el2 &L . : ;;,
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Naw Hampshire Deparlmenl of Health and Human Services ‘
Exhiblt E “‘

wWor
.

- CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYVING ; .o

TheVendor identified in Section 1.3 of the Genecal Provisions-agrees lo comply with the provnswns of
Seclion 319 of Public Law 101-121, Govenmen! wide Guidance for New Reslietions on Lobbying, and
31U.5.C. 1352, and hurther agrees to have the Conlraclor's reprospintalive, 83 idonluﬁad in Seclions 1. I
and 1,12 of the Gonnral Provnsbns cxecule the fo!lomng Cenificalion: ;

US DEPARTMENT OF HERLTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - LCONTI RACTORS " *
‘US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS P e
US DEPARTMENT _OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTOR-S :

P:ograms (indicsle applicable program covered):
*Tempésary Assistance to Needy Familes under Title IV-A

*Chitd Support Enlorcemanl Program under Tille IV.D - 2
*Social Senvicas Block Grant Program under Title XX . ‘ e
*Medicald Program utider Tile XX - Ao
*Community Services Block Gran! under YiUe vl — d !

*Chilg Case Development Block Grant unc}er Tine v, T

- 3

- .

»

‘The unumlgned cenmcs. lothe bes! ol has o her knewledge and behai that:

1. NoFegesal | appropriated tunts have beenpaid of will be paid by or on beha!f o! the undessigned, o
‘any person lor influencing or altempling lo influente an ollicer oremployee of eny ngency, a Member
of Gongress, an officer or emplayee of Congress, or-on ernployee of o Member of Congress in

. cannection with tha awarding ol sy Federal conlragt, continuation, senawsl, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contrady, grant loan, o coopera!we agraemen (and by speclfic mention
sub-granlee ar sub-comractu)

.
3
'-

2, -l any lunds other'than Federal approprialed funds h:—.ws been paid of vill be paid.to any personifor <
{nfuenclng o1 allarmplingo Influence an olficer or employee of any agency. 2 Mamber of Congless.
an officer of emplayes ol Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congres’s in cannection with 1his
Federel conlrac, geant, loan, of cooperative agreement {(and by specific mention sub.grantee of sub-
contreclor), the undersigned shali complete and submil Standard Form LLL, (Disdosure Form.to
Repod Lobbylng, in sccordance with its instructiens, nllached and |denhlied ns Standard Exhitlt E-l)

‘Yhe underségned shal require thal the language of this cemlicalmn be fnc!udnd In the award
document for sub-swatds at afl tigrs {including subcéniratls, sub-grants, ang coniracts under granls, «
taans, and cooperative agraements) end thatall suh eecipients shall cerhfy and disclose accordingly,

ThJS caftification ts & malednl tepresentalion ol fact upon vitikth rationcs was ploced \vhan this transselion |
was made or eplered into, Submission of Ihis centificetion Is a pretequisite for making of antering into this. -
transaction imposed by Seclion 1352, Title-31, U.8. Codd. Any parson wha fails lo file the sequired

cenification shall be subjectto a civil penally ok not less than $10,000 and not morg man $100,000 for .

eech such Ia(lure

;
Vendor Name:

:

o

-

¥

>

w 0 . ”

6/8/2071
"t_)ate

i

. : S
f'fi“\:ﬁ?.
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Title: Executive Cirector
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S panicipant may but is not requlred lo, check the Nonprocuremanit List {of ex¢luded padies).
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- : GERTIFICAT(ON REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION L
- - . v AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MAYTERS feo.

TR

-

) The Contracior ldcntlﬁed In SEcllon 1.3 0f the Genera) Provisions agrees to comp#y with the provisions pf . ,
P Execulive Olfice of the Prasident, Exccutive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Pari 76 regarding Dibamment, A
. Suspension, and Other’ Responsibility Matters. and usther agrees lo have the Conlractor's -
* tepresenialive, as identifiad in Sections 1.1 and 112 of the General Provision's execute ihe following
. Centification: - PR . '
!NSTRUGTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION .
1. "By signing and submilfing Ihis proposal teontract), lhe prospeclwe primary panicipant s prwrdlng the
cerlification sel out below,

. LX)
- £y

e
e

R

2. The Inabitily ol & peraon lo provkie (he cadification required balow will not necessarlly result in dental o
ar. o} panticipalion in this covared traasatlion. U necessary, the prospecliva panicipant shall submil an ’
t *  explanatlon of why [t canno! provide the cenification, The cedification or explanalish wilbe | N .
4 " considered in conneclion with the NH Depariment of Health and Human Senvices' (DHHS) . - ",
delermination whelher to enter into Ihis transactian, Howaver, fallure of the prospactive primaty . B,
participant to furnish 8 cerifi cauon of an- exp!anaim shall dasquahw such pe:son trom participation in
. this !:anssclion B} .

3. The certiication In this clavse is B matedal representatlon of fact upon Whith rebance was p!aced . .
whan DHHS determined to enter Into 1his kansaction, |l it is later deteiminéd thal the prospective ¥ o

) primary participant knowingly rendered’8n erroneaus certificallan, it addition to other remedias

. availabla to Ihe Federa) Governmen!, DHHS may lerminale. this ransaction for causs or defabil . ot 4,

i 4. The prospeciive primary parlicipant shall provide immediate wrilten nolice Lo the DHHS agency lo B "
: +  whom this progosal {conlract) is submitted it al.any time the prospeclive primary participant learns
= - thal its cerilitation was orransous when submilted of has become efroneous by regson of changed B
' dreimstanices. . . SRR
5. Tha terms “covered lransaclion,” *debaired,’ "suspended, "'mahgn:le *“lower tier coverad . =
v » Irangaclion,” "participan),” "parson,” *primary cOvered transaction,” “principat,® 'pmposal " and !
y . “voluntarly excluded,” as used in Ihis clause, have the mganings set oulin (he Definlligns and . :
) S Coverage sectlons of the fulés amp!emenung Execullve Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76, See the T
+d a!qached delinliions, o @ ¥ L
~ 6 The prospeciive primary pammpanl agrees by submilting this proposal {contracl) lha!, should thé 4 2
- propased covered transaction be eatered into, it shaf) nol knowingly enter into any ower lier covered < 4
ttansaclion with a person who s debarced, suspendad, declared ineligible, o voluntarily excluted
rfom panlc!pauun In this mvcred transaction, unless authodzed by DHHS.

7. The pfospecbva prlrnaly pamc{panl lurther agreas by sobmnlung this proposal ma‘i itwilinclude the
chuse lided “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Incligidliity and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier.Covered Transattions,” provided by DHHS, withoit modilication, In ofi lower tier covered
lransacuons and in all solicliations for lower tiet covered liandactions. . ’ E

8. Apericipantin a covered (tansaciion may rely upon a certificalion of a prospective pad:upant ina :

v " lower lier covered transaclion that itis nol debarred, suspended, inefigible, or lnvolunlarily excluded .

Irom the covered lransaction) unlass it knows (het the cedificationis erroneous. A pariicipant may e e

W 7 . decide tha method and requency by which il detesines the ellgibilty of s principals. Each ) .

. 9. Hothing oonlamed in the IOregomg shall be conslrued to require eslablishment of & system of reco:ds v
In order 1o render In good fallh the.certificalion requited by this clsuse. The knowledge sndf 1!

: * Exhitil F ~ Cerificalion Regaiding Debgiment, Suspension r.:wurader lnita%

e " And Oiser Rasponsiiiy Maliea W o i
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" Information of & peicipanl s not raquired to ext:eed thal which is normally possessed by B p:udent
pesson In the ordinary eourse of business deailngs. t %
£ 10, Except for ransactions sulhorized under paragraph 6 of these instuctions, Il & parl:apam ing
* povered transaclon knowingly emars into a fower tier covered trangaclion with a person who is
suapended, dobamred, ineligible, oruolun!ar’dy extluded lrom pafﬂclpallon I this transaction, in
, W addition 1o other remedias availabie to the Federal govemment, DHHS may tarminale this transaction "
o, for cause of default . .
PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS . i Do.
. . W, The prospective primary parlicipant certifies to the best at lts nnowiedge and bellef, mat it endits -
' principals: -
- : 11.1, are nol presently debarred, suspended, proposed far debarmem declared Inehgible or
-yoluniadly excluded fram covered rgasdctions by any Federal depariment or agency; .
. _+11.2, have not within a three-year perfod preceding this proposal (conlsact) been convicled ol orhad
@ civil judgment rendeied against them for commission of fraud or 8 cdminal offense Jn
*eonneclion with oblalning; aitampting'to oblalnsor performing a public {Fedara), Stale of focal)
transaction or a contrect under a public ransaction; violation of Federsl or Slate snlitust
statutes ar coinmission of embezziement, theh, forgery, brivery, falsification of uemrucﬂon of
s records, making false stalements, o recehving stdlen propedy; |
! 11.3. are not presently Ingicled for olherwise caminally or civilly charged by 3 governmental enmy
. (Federal, Stale or local} with commisgion of any of the oH2nses enumgraled in paragraph (l}ib)
I of this certifizalion; end
11:4. have nol within & trec-year period preceding this spplicaion/proposal had ane o more public
- Uansacliong (Federal, Stale or local) terminated for cause o default .

,‘ »

a

.

12, Whefe the progpectivé pnmary panlmpanl Is unable to cedily to any of the slalemenls inthis
cemﬁcahon such waspect.rve parlicipani shall sttach an explana&lcn lo this praposal (contract).
i ' LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
13, By slyning and submdling 15 kower lier proposat {vonlracy), the prOSpac!nre lower ler par!:dpanL as .
Fim defingd in 45 GFR Par 76, cedifies lo the besl of ilg knowledge and belief that it and ils pringipals;
13.1. ere Aot presenly Gobarred, suspended, propesed for debarment, declared Ineligible, or
' woluntadly éxcluded from pamclpauan In ihis transoction by.sny fzderat deparimenl or Bgency,
. 13.2. where the prospective lower lie¢ participant Is unabie lo'cedtify lo any of the sbove, such
‘ . © prospective participen shall sliach an explanalion 1o this proposal (convraet), . -

Tadp
Lim

14. The prospec\:ve lower tier participant furthes 2greas by submilting this propoasal {contrdet) that it wil
{nclude s clause enliled “Cenification Reganding Oebacment, Suspansion, lnellgnbmly, and :
veluntary: Exclusion - Lower Tler Covered Transaclons,” without modification in aif lower ﬂer oovered
+ ransactions and In all selichalions for lower tier covered ronsactiony, A

he [

w

@R
Jan
e

Contraglor Name: - : -

Dacy Mgasd wps

i . __efafzon - Q e Moo, ULSUJ 5 .
Dale | ' e ih Norton, LICSW  °

. Ti - fory,
. Mo erecuti ve Director ' :

. N . W R
¥ W Hd ; . ) . 5 -
| [ -
HA ' Exwit F - Confication Regmding Debarmeny, Suspension Conltacior iniie
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a . Exhibit G .

. - The Con!raclor {deniified In Section 1.3 o he General Provisions agrees By signalure of the Conlracioe's

-

k4

.

DocaSipn Envdm [i¢] F?DO‘I!TD-BHC-ISIA-AS)H&SACESBE]FO _( . 4

Hew Hampsmm Departmont of Huauh and Human Servicos .

Bvroy

CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WiT. {IREMENTS PERTAINING TO

- FEDERAL NONGISCRIMINATION, EQUAL TREATMENT OF FATH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND - . o
' . WhHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS - . ¥

%4

representative os identified in Sections 1.11 nnd 1126l the Genera! vans:ons (0 execule Ihe foliowlng - R
certificalion: - . . : " e

" Conlracter will oomply, and wlﬂ fequire any subgrantees or subconiractors to comply, with any appiiwblu oy
’ fedea) nondiscrimination (equiraménls, which may include: . .

- the Omnibug Crime Control end Safe Streels Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3?89d) wh:ch prohlbns '
reciplents of federal funding under this slalule from discriminating, elther In employment practices o¢ i it
the delivery of arnvices or benefits, on the basis of race, cokor, religlon, nationa) origin, and sex. The Acl

raquires certain reclpienis to produce an Equiit Emphymenl Qppotlunity Plan;

H

ey -

) -the Juvenlle Justice Definquency Provention Actof 2002 (42 U.5.C. Sectlon 5672(b)) which adopts by T
"7 relerence, the clvid rights ghligalions of the Sale Sifeets Act, Recipienls of federgl funding under this
“ slahse.are prohitiled from disciminaling, eitherin emp!oyment pracuoes or in the delivery of services. or o
;:; benelils, on the hasls of race, color, religion, nalional origin, and sex.” The Act Includes Equal : 5
Ernployment Opporunity Plan requiremenls : . o

- the Givll Rights Act of 1954 {42 U.S.C, Stetion 20004, which prohibits recipients-of federal financlal
= assigtance from discriminating on thé basis ol race, color, or nalional origin in'any.program ar activity);

. -the Rehabiilatian Act of 1873 {29 U.5.C, Sectlon 7843, which prohibiis.recipieals of Federal financie) ' s
assistance fiem diseriminating on the basis of disabikty, in regard Io emp!oymem and the de!tvery ol .t
w services o henerls in any program or activily. . - i wa,

- tha Americans with Digabilities Act of 1990 (42 V). S.C Sections 12131-34). which prohib:zs .
s . distrindnalion and ensures equat Oppoﬂunlty for persons with disabllities in employment. State and foca), 0

* governmen! services, public accommodalions, commercial tacifilies, and transportation; i
- Ine Education Amendmenls of 1872 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681, 1663, 1685-86), which prohfuiis S
disesimination on the basis of sex in federally assistad education progtams; o o5
- lha Age Dlscummatmn ALt 01 1975 (42 U.5.C. Settions 305-07), which prohitits dls»cdmmalhn onthe - k’i’j
;_‘. basis of age in progiams of aclivitias recelving Feders! financia) assistance. 1 does not include e T
employment diserimination; -
T .28¢.F.Ropl 31 (U.5. Departrnent ofJusgtice Regulations - OJIDP Grank Programs) 28(: F R.pt. 42 &
. (USs. Department of Justice Regulations ~ Nondiscriminalion; Equa! Employment Opportunily; Polkies - '
and Procedurés), Executive Otder No. 13270 {egual protection of thelaws for failh-based and community -

orgamzahons) Executive Order No. 13559, which provide lundameéntal pflnmpies and pohcy -making
*  titeria for paringrshlps with felih-based and ne!ghhomood arganpizalions; -

. -29CER. pt3B (u S. Depanimenl of Justice Regulations - Equal Treaiment for Faﬂh Based -

o Organizations). and Whisfleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 end The Natisaa) Delense Autharizalion
Ac) {(NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112239, ensciet January 2, 2013) the Pilot ?mgram for
Erhancemanl of Conlrac! Employee Whistisblowar Proteciions, which protects empldyces agalnst
teptisal for certain whistle blowing aciivities in connection with federal granis. and conyracls.

e

g

' Thecerificate Sel oyt below s @ materal representation of lacl upon which refiance [s placed when the - - '
s agency awards the grant. False cenifi cation or vivlation of the cerlification shall be grounds for
suspension of paymanls, suspension or {ermination of grants, o govemmant wide suspension of

TR
P =t

*a

debarment. % ) T i B
~D3 o~ (3
» . L] - r - L I
- . e - M %
. T o WL
Conlaactor taltats o | B =
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w4 . Inthe event o Federal or State court or Federador State adminisirative agency makes o finding of s -
diseriminalion afier a due process heaing on the graunds of race, color, refigion, nalionai origin, or sex A
- agains! a reciplent of (unds, the recipiant wii forward a copy of the finding to.the Office lor Civil Rights, to N
. the applicable canlraciing agency or division wilhiv the Depardment of Heaith and-Human Services, and . e
§ - to the Depaniment of Health ang Human Services Ofice ol the Ombudsman, :
- * ‘ + ) ' )
' ¥ \ ., s
: N The.Contraclof identlicd In Section 1.3 of the Generp! Pravisions sgrees by signature of the Contractar's
5 ., tepresentative as Wentified in Sections 1,11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, lo exeedle the following ..
‘cenification: | o . . , T
i ) * . ) ) ' - ’ e
- “ I. By signing and submilling this proposal {contract) the Conlractor agrees fo comply with the pravisions -
indicaled above. .
. ; & . B s
v . - _ e e
. Contraclor Name: ' o - .
. - R * .
{t'a; DwdTng:u oyt $ . .
“w : . . Lo .
"y 67872021 . - bunutlle Mt USSR . 3,
Dale . 5 Name: KEANELH Norton, LICSW '
. ' i THie. gxecutive oirector ] ¥
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- o _ExhivitH
. wk - . - ',;‘, o i . : k - . .
o oo CERVIFISATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE . N
e 3 b, N ) g P b )

T S © publiclaw 103227, Pat G - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the'Pro-Childreh Act o 1898 .. ¢
. (Act), requires that smaking not be permitted in.oay portion of any irdoor lacllity owned of ieased or
coatractad for by an enlily and used routinely of regularly for the provision of health, day tare, education,
_or library sendces to childeen under (he age of 18, if ihe services are funded by Fedeigl programs either © -
R directly o1 threugh State of local gavermments, by Foderal gran], conltaet, loan, of loan guarantee. The
-y jaw doas not epply to chidren's services provided in privale residences, (acifities funded aolely by g
= g . Madicors or Madicald funds, end partions ol facliities used for inpatien} drug or alcahol treatment, Falue )
“ 1o comply with the provisions of the faw may result in the impogition of a civit monglary penélly of up to ,
S1000 per day sndior the Imposition af an administrative compliance order on the responsidle entily. .

%5 The Controgtor identified in Sectio n 1.3°of the Gengral Provisigns agrées:. by signature of the Conractor's ®
,  representative asidertified in Section 1:1% ond 1.32 olhe General Provisions, to execute the following
o pedification: : ’ ’ ; . -

. .. . s
E - !

. ; _4: By signing and submitting this conlract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply © ’
v wilh 20 applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C,'knoiwn as the Pro-Children Actof 1984, 7

epes

e L e . . ) w ¥
N Do . Contractor Name:
. - sad '..:w . ans ":.
- 3 Qe ” " gt
~ * !
5 e/sjonL ' kel Abvbn, (SO : o )
o et .- . APty sz ? Tl T
Date e “ amg; Kedneth Korton, LICSH - :
ok - THE:  executive pirector ' W
I R . F w o " !: . . .‘
% Y w T ' Y
by : o -
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New Hampshire Depaament of Healthand Human Services

L e Exhivh | 5
HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY AND ACCOUNTABILITY ACT '
. ~ . BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT R

The Contrattar identified in Section 1.30f the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees 1o
comply with (ha Health insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually |dentifigble Health Informalion, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associsles. As oefined herein, “Business
Associate” shall moan the Conteaclor and subcontraclors and agents-of the Contractor thal
secelva, use of have access to protected health information under this Agreement and *Covered
‘Enlity"‘_shaﬂ mean the Siate of New Hampshire, Department of Health &nd Human Services.

-

Sy ° N
X . L) . .

(4 Definitions, . :
a." “Breach” shall have the s8me meaning as the ferm “Breach” in section 164,402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations. . :

b, “Bysiness Assagiate” has the meaniﬁg given such term in section 160.103 of Tille 45, Code

‘of Fedesal Regulalions., .- .
o} iCovéred Enlity’ has the meaning given such term In seclion 1 60.10_3 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations, . ) ' '

! d. "Designated B" acord Set” shall have lhe-same.m;eaning as the 'lemj-r“des‘rgnate;l record set”
g in 45 CFR Section 164,501, T st

e. “Data Aqgregation” shell have the samé meaning 8% the term “data dggregation” in 45 ceR
© Section 164,501, . 7 _
. 1. "Heahh Care Operalions™ shall have the sama meaning s the term “health care opgrations”
in 45 CFR Seclion 164,501, - - AL :

g. “HITECH Act” reans the Heallh Informatioh Technology fo Economic and Clinical Health
“Acl, TtleX!ll, Subtitle D, Part ¥ 3 2 ol the American Recovery and Relnvestiment Act of
2009, ‘, e

b. *HIPAA"means the Health lnsutance Portability.and Accountabllity Act of 1086, Public Law
104-184 ang the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Heallh ..
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164 and amendments therelo. o

1. “lhdividual® shall have the same meaning ag the term "individual” in 45 CFR $ection 160,103

and shall include a persan who qualifies 85 a personal representative in accordance with 45

FR Seclion 164.501(g). _ .

¥ ','m_-

& K

o

b : ! .
Informafion-at 45-CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by ihe Uinited States -
Depariment of Health and Human Sepvices. ’

O "_'Erote_ged Heall Informalion” shall have thé same meaning as the term “protecied health
" alormation” in 45 CFR Sectior 160.103, limited to the informalion created ot recelgdby .

Business Assoclale from or on behalf of Covired Entity. EN
A . . - 1 SR
A nme Exrabii| i Conlspelor sy~ _ .
. L Heauninsurancs Portatiliy Act” ‘ sdneT R
a Bukaess Associste Agresmeni C 6/8/2021
Page 1ol b . Date, -

+Privagy Rule* shall mean the Stondards lor Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health <

3
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0
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"o - * New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
o T e ] - -
—.l.;. L . el - - i = . *
1 *ReaulredbyLaw" shali have thé same meaning as the term “requlted by law’ in 45 CFR -
- Seclion 164.103. . . i
w + “m. *Sacrelary" shall mean the Seceetary of the Department of Healthand Human Services or i
histher designee. - g . :

DocuiSign Envekops 1D: 6F038EFE-EFBA-4IEL-8966-B0S5C0812080 ’ '
. DocuSign Envelope 10; F9001370-84 awg:aaﬂilpmcesmso

-

w0

n. “Security Rule™chall mean the Securily Stondards for the Protection of Etectronic Protecied )
Haaith tnformation Bt 45 CER Pert 164, Subparl C, and amendments thereto, -

o 0. “Unsecured Pratecied Healih Inforinglion” means piotected health information that Is not
* gecured by 8 technology standard thai renders prolected heallh information unusable;
unreadable, of indecipherable lo unsutherized individuals end is deveioped or endarsed by
" aslandards developlng organizalion (hat Is accredited by the American National Standards
{nstitute. . T .

p. Other Deﬁm-'jiggs - Al terms aot othenwise deﬁned'herein shall have !h'e';ne_aning

established under 45 C.F.R. Parls 160, 162 and 164, as amended from lime to lime, and_ he

; HITECH . : -
. Act, :

) Business Assoglate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information; .

- LY

3:+ _Business Associate shall nol use, disciose, maintsin of fransmit Prolected Heglth
* + information {PHI) excep! as reasonably necessary lo provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A ol the Agreemenl. Further, Business Associate, including but aot limiled 1o all
* its diceclors, officers, Employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or fransmit -
PHi in any manner thal would constitule & violelion of the Privacy and Securily Rule.

o ‘b, Business Associale may use or disclose PHE . o
- 5 l.. Forthe-proper management and administratioh of (e Business Associale;
. . Il. - Asvequired by law, pursuant lo the terms sel foth in paragraph d. below; or
‘ i Iéqr dala-aggregation purposes for the heallh care oparalions of Covered
. Y tn Enfity. . - ' - L i .

C. Ta the extenl Business Associale is permilied under the Agreement to disclose PHI 1o a -
a third panty, Business Assoctaté must obtain, prlor to meking eny such disclasura, (i) -
" reasonable dssurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disciosed only as required by law or for the purpese for which il was
disclosed to{he third party; and (iiy an agreement from such third parly to nolify Business .
Assotiate, in accordonce with the HIPAA Privecy, Securily, 2nd Breach Nolificalion
Rutes of any breaches of the confidentiality of the' PHI, lo the extent it has oblzined
knowledgé of such breach. : S

¥4
-

vt
4

‘d..  The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to

& provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PH! Inresponse to a

. . request for distlosure on the basis thel it is required by law, without first notifying

ol * . Covered Enlity so thal Govered Enllly bas an opportunily fo object io the disclqspremand «'
: to seek nppropriate reliel. If Covered Entily objetts to such disclosure, the Bus} t’gﬁ

AW . " Exnmi) Contragior sty X
i * v Heathingurance Portatifty Act .
. ’ N R Business Asapclale Apreement W 618/2021
EN o « - Prge2oll . «  Dalo_’
wo T i . EA ® —
! [ . i ; -
[N . B )

o
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‘ P _  Exhibkb . _ W
K ' Assoc:ate sha!l refraln trom disclosing.the PHI unti Covered Enmy has exhausted all ' " v
- . femedies, g o
. & Ifthe Covered Entily notifiés Ihe Business Associale thal Cavered Enhty has agreed T C o
N - be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security 1
. safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate o
L * shall he bound by such additjonél restriclions’and shall not disclose PHIa viclation of ., N
'+ such additiona! restrictions and shall ablde by any additional securily safeguands. . l'-:«
{3) _Obligations and Activitles of Business Assoclate. . - < 0L
S ”1_ Toa T The Business Associate-shall notify the Coverad Enlity's Privacy Off‘cer immediately .z @
S attet (he Business Associate becomas aware of any use or disclosure of protected ° - :
) - health informalion not provided fof by the Agreement Including breaches of unsecured .
. : protected health-informalion and/ot any security incident that may have an impact on the R
d polected hezith information of the Cavered Enlity, : i LN
. iy
i b. Thea Busingss Assocnate shall immediately perform a risk assessmend when 1| becomes
.. aware of any of the above suuahons The risk assessment shall include, but not be ,
l:rmted to: - . . g 'l
. © Thanature and extent of the protectad healthinformation Involved, Inc!ud:ng lha ot
, - types of idenlifiers ond (e likelihood of re- Identification; . " .
e .0 The unaythorized person used the prolecied health information or Lo whom the "
T disclosura was made: - ’
3 * - o Whether the protecled health informalion was acluaﬂy acquired or viewed - ) !
, w - & o The extent 1o which the risk to the protecled Aeallh informafion has been
' . % ' .
. mihga!ed 5‘1 - i)
e A d$r "" - . ?1.
) Ths Business Assodiate shall-complete the risk_assessmenl whhin 48 hours of the ' .
e . breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessmentin wriling to the = v
v - Covered Entity : B o i
- v k * ¢ o
T e The ausmess Assoclate sha\[ comply wi:h all sections of the F'rwacy. Secufity, and Y
Breach Notificalion Rule. . s
" -G,
S d.-  Business Associste shall make avaliable oll of ils internal policies and procedures books' 2
s T “and recoids selating to the use and distlosure of PHI received from, or ereated of T
R received by the Business Assotiate on behalf of Covered Entily to the Secratary for R
purposes of determining Covered: Enlity’s comipliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and Wik
P . SECUI‘I%)’ Rula. - * . N S 0%
2., Eusmess Assoclate shall :equue aloflis bus!ness assoc;ales that recelve, use or have T
.o ...  sccess lo PRI undér the Agreemen, 1o agree in writlng to adhere lo the same e
. restriclions and condilions on the use and- disclosura ol PHI conlained harein, inciuding
’ = the duty io réturn or destray Iie PHI as provided ynderSeclion 3 {I). The Covared Enlily .
. " shall be considered & diract third party benaficiary of thie Contractor’s business g5 s i
agreements wilh Contraclor's intended busingss associates, who will be tecelv 3?.
Tt anom % . Eanitll | S
w Health tasurance Ponabilty Ac n
i P Busifeas Asyocizl Agrecmenl .
. . Pogedols -« . e TR
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.

Exhitit | S .

L

- In the event any mai'vlqual requests access to, amendment of, of accounting of PHI . .

" Individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Enlity. or the Business

" Within ten (10)-business days of términaﬁon of the Agteement, for any reason, the.

‘amendment of PHI or-a record about an individual conlained in a Designated Record S

hap -
L& ) -t i g L.
{

+ pursuant to this Agregment, wilh rights of enforcement and indemnification from guch - - S

busingss.associales who shall be govemed by standard Paragraph #13 of the slandasd * y 4
cantract provisions (P-37) of Lhis Agreement for the purpose of use and drsctosure of . my T
protecled higalth infermation. :

Wilhin five (5) busmess days of recelpt of a written reques! from Covered Entity, 4
Businaess Assoviale shall make available durmg aormal business hours al its clfices all s
tecords, books, agreements, polrcles and’procedures refating to the use and disclosure - '
of PHI to the Covared Enlity, for purposes of enabling Covered Enlity to determine L,

Busingss Assotiale’s compliance with the terms of the Agreemem . i T 5

within ten (1 0) business days of recelving 8 writlen request from Covered Entily, 4,
Business Associate shall provide accass to PHI In o Deslgaaled Record Set to'the . )
Covered Eatity, or 85 direcled by Covered Entity, 1o an indwnduai in ordet to meat the *
requirements under 45.CFR Sechon 164.524.

Wilhin ten (10) business days ol recelving a wiitten reques! from Covered Entity (or an

Set, Ihe Business Assoclale shall make such PHI available 16 Covered Entity far _
amendmenl and incorporate any such amendmenl to enable Covered Entity to {uifill it e
abligalions under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

. ' R 4

Business Associate shall documenl suich d:sclosures ol PH) and information retated ln -
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Enlity to respond to a request by an R
individual for an. accountmg of dcsdosures of PH! in accordance with 456 CFR Seclion J

164,528, ‘ :

Within ten (1 0) businass days of recel\'mg a written request from Covered Entity for o

"request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate ehall make available

to Covered Enlity such information as Covered-Entity may require lo fulfif ts obligations
to pravide an-accounting of dnsclosures with respect o PHi In aocordance with 45 CFR
Section 184.528.

-

direclly from the Businass Associate, the Business Associate shall within.hwo (2) P
buslness days forward.such reques) lo Covered Enlity, Covered Enfily shail have the
vresponsibility of responding to ferwarded requests. However, If forwarding the

Asgsoclale to viplale HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Busingss Assotiale” "
shaltinslead respond to the individual's request as reguired by such law and nolnfy
Cdvered Enlity of such response as soon as praclicable, - -

R

Business Associate shall return or destray, as specified by Covered Entity; alt PH! : .
received from, of created of received by the Business Assaciale in conneclion with the . .
Agreemanl, and shall nol relain eny copies of back-up lapes of such PHL. If return or
destruction is nol feasible, or the disposilion of the PHI has been otherwise pgreed toin
the Agreement, Business Associale shall continue 1o extend the protections of the T
Agreemenl, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to thigsa
purposes that make the return or desiruclion infeasfle, for so long 25 Bustnes'
‘ Extivhid . Coinyettor tnigigh & ;
! Hesnn tnyuranza Potadkly AL : .
- Bunlncsy Assoclale Agrogment . . 6/8 1202 ) O
5 Pegz 4018 O \ -
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. Now Hampshir‘f: Department of Hoalth and Human Son-icgé.

T Business Associale desiray any or all PHI, the Busmess Assocuate shall cerhly o o

2o - ExhivL . cmrncwm'n?s

]

I s Exhibit | -

" <7 0r
. - - g,
. 3 e R - i

.4 G .

Assotiate maintains such PHI. if Covared Enlity, in its sole discrelion, requires thal the IR

Covered Enhty that the PHI has been: dest:oyed . ; ..
4, .Mﬂ.@ﬂxﬂﬂ!‘ﬂ . e

a. Covered Enlity shali notify Business Assoclale of any changes or iimitauon(s} inlg ' ",

Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuats In accordance with 45 CFR Sectiod  * ¢ .
. -164.520, to lhe exten] thal such changa or, limitation may ah‘ecl Business Associate’s : -
7, use or disclosure of PHI '

- .
. yor

iy .

b. . “Covered Entity shall pmmpliy nolify Business Associste of any changesin, or revocahon
of permission pravided to Covered Enlily by individuals whose PHI may be used or

DR PN

S distlosed by Business Associale unders this Agreement, pursuant to.45 CFR Seclion _
164.506 or 45 CFR Secl:on 154 508 . .
26 _Covered entily shall promp!ly notify Business Assaciate of any reslnchons ontheuse or ] ; '
disclosureof PHi that Cavered Enlily has agread 1o in ascordance with 45 CFR 164.522, . - _
- ¢ tothe extent that'such restriction may aﬂect Business Associale’s use or disclosvre of -~ ' iy
'_ PHI. . ‘-‘.: . - . * . - B .’
{8y e nforCause =~ -, o S r ki
i *In addition to Paragraph 10 of the slandard terms and canditions (P-37) of this . i S
' Agreement the Covered Enlity may Immedaalety terminale the Agreement upon Covered i

. Entily's knowledge of & breach by Bushess Assoclate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth hereln 25 Exhibltl. The Covered Entity may eilher immediatety

‘lerminate the Agreement or provide ah, opportunity for Business Associale ta cure the ' .
alleged breach within a limeframe sgecified by Covered Enlity, If Covered Enlity . »
determines (hat neither terminalion not cure is feasible, Covered Enlity shall report the : .
violation to the Secrelary, - _ . . <
{6) . Miscollapeous . . . i S e g 5
.e.  Defisifions and Reaulatory Referpnces. ANl lermsused, but not othénwise defined herein, ~ .
"shallhave the same maaning a5 those termsg In the Privacy end Securlly Rule, amended ., & g3
ol lrom limatotime. A referance in the Apreemeni, a5 amended lo include this Exhibiti,to © - -
"a Seclion in the Prwacy and Security Rule means thg Seclaon esinefiectaras -
amended, .
T, W " <3
b. . ameadmenl. ‘Covered Entity and Business Assaclate gide to-take such sction as is S r
nacassary (o amend the Agreement, irom time Lo lime as is necessary fof Gavered " , =

Entity to/ comply with the ¢hanges in the requuemenls ‘of HIPAA, the Privaey and

s Securily Rule, and appkcable federal and state taw. \ ¥ - 4
. <y

6,, Dala Ovinershin. The Business Assocfate acknowledges that it has no ownership nghts a
! with respect fo the PHI provided by or crealed on behall of Covered Enlily, ' ¥

d- Interprelation, The paries agree thal any ambigulty In tha Agreement shall be'geé
"o perm:l Covered Entily lo comply wilh HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule.

. e

> m

' Hesho bswrince Porabilly Agt . 3
i~ Businzss Assotiat Ajreemant ) * %
o Pege S0l 6 N + Bate
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. . e. . Segregalion. If any term of condition of this Exhibil | or the application thereof {o any -
. person(s) of circumslance is held invalid, such invaligity shall not atfect other lerms ot "
S conditions whith can be given effect withoul the invalld term or conditidn; 1o this end the’ - .
Tt tarms and conditions of this Exhibil | are declared seversble, - :
t! N 1. ._ * " Survlyal. Provislons in this Exniblt | regérdl;\g the use and disclesuca of Pl-{l.'retum'or g
destruction of PH. extensions of the pmlections of the Agreement in saclion (3) |, the
defense and Indemnification provisiens of seclion (3) e and Paragraph 13 ol the "
_ .gtandard tecms and condilions (P-37). shall survive the lesmin glion of the Agre€ment. _ o
':.' s % - o ) ' - R (LA
t - & ] - " 1 v ) v .,;‘ ) . .
¥ INWITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto.have duly executed this Exhibit I, k)
-’ Depariment of Healih pad Human Sendces  NANI New Kaopshire i -
' lder . rephibe Conlraclor ]
i g o C oy v :
. Mgt % kot Mrtow, JESW e
. * Signalure o Authorized Representative ~  Signatdre of Authotized Represenlalive.” ™ _'."
. 4 Katjs Fox Kenneth Nortbn, LICSW . v
. - Name of Authotized Representative “Name.of Authorized Representative T .
. pifreccor ' . : 3
e @ " Execvrive Director 5 e : s
E Title of Authorized Representative Title of Authorized Representative ) T
s y - . : ) 5 . e Ty
o : 6/8/2021 6/8/202) PR e
‘ Date - s Dale ) ] . . »
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. * Now Hampshiro Departmant of Hoallh and Human Services : o
ExhibitJ Hd
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RPN i e toa 4 Moo M
o, CATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACC BILTY AND TRANSPARENCY  ° i
ACT (FEATA) COMPLIANCE T w
4 L :ﬂ
i The Federa! Funding Accountatility and Transpatency Att (FFATA] tequires ptime owardees of Individua! ° &
Federa! geants equal lo or greater than $25, 000 ang awarded on or after Oclober 1, 2010, ta rgporton sl .
daln ratated to execulive compansation and sseociated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 ormore. e - % &
‘ inftia) award Is balow $25,000.but subsequent grant modifications result in o tola! sward equal to or over Mo
L, e 525,000, the award Is subject (o e FFATA reporting requiremants, os of the dalo of the award, . B
) In accotdance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward ond Execulive Compensalion- lnl'ofmatlon} the . _-.'i#
. Depontment of Hoalth ond Humen Seivices (DHHS) mus! rogord the (allowing mrurmahon tor any .
- ' subaward or contrac award sulject fo the FFATA reporliag requ!remenls ) \.4
s Name of enlily . %
" 2 Aniount of award v . - :
‘ 3. Funding egency ) - . + b
. G 4. NAICS code lor contracts ) CFDA program number for granls . ! ST
) 5. Program source ! , B
6. Award s descrptive of the purpose of the funding oction. & I
g 7. Locstion of theentity . - 5.
8. Prnclple.place of performance y ' . s i
. 8. Unique Identifier ol the entily (DUNS &) s : &
o 10. Yolal compensation arid aames of the lop five exccutives if: . ;
10.1., More 1han B0 of pnnirgy fross revanues are from the Fegeral governmant end thase -
y revenues are grealer than $25M annually and . , -
10.2, Compensahan ln!om‘tahon is nol stready available through reporting lo the SEC. 4
Y Pime grent reclp[enls mus! submit FFATA required date by ihe end of the month, plus 30 days, In whlch 4 E'E‘
T the eward or award améndment 15 fada. - _2;-
‘Tha Contractor Ideniified In Settion 1.3 of the Génesal Provisions ngrer.s to comply withtha provisisns of ~ ., .y
_ The: Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Ag), Publlc Law 109-282 dnd Public Lew 110-252, ts';s
" and 2 CFR Part 170 {Reporlng Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agress ° T
Lk to have the Conlraclors representalive, as ldeatified in Sections 1.11 and 1 12 of the Genergl Peovisions . -
Com execute (ne foliowdng Certification: - 4
. Thebelow nemed Conlractor agracs lo prawde needed thformation a3 nu!llned above lo the NH - “h X
R " Depastment of Health end Human Services and to comply with 211 applicabte provislans of the Federal’ ’ 0
. Finanna.l Accountablity and Transparency AcL D
' & " L - . - = - . o -
- - . i © Conlractor N,a_rm'a'. . - : =,
. ) ' 1 " ) Ootulionrdtr: ‘ ; o
w7 efsnon oo l bannndle Portow, U(,sth
Date < . Name: en orEan. : :
‘.- Fd Tille:  gxequrive o4 rector -
o “ Y »
£ ’ s iy Ca
x H ' e Ta : * £
o ¢ i oo C m i
ExPibY J - Certifiention Rogarding the Federst Fundmg Contocio brdtlaly merl 5,
Accountstinly And Trd nspmr\.cym (FFAYA) Compliante v 6/872021 KN
i} Cusksminhy : Page 10{2 - - 1 ‘ ke
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New Hampshiro Oopanmont ol Heallh and Human Services - " . i 2.
: i Exhiblt J : . s
; - R * . i ) ":' ) ':ag
- . " FORMA. - . : . TovRe
LB - o - s ' ]
. ] 2 _
¢ . As the Contraclor identified In Seclion 1.3 of the Genera\ Provisions, | ceftfy ihat the responses to the. = iy
below fisled questions ara true aad accufale, . -
" . BS3G8841Y - Ce ' . :
, . 1. The DUNS number for your enhly 153 - -
L oo, 2. in your buslness o arganlza!mnspracedlng complelad fiscal yeor, did yout buslngss'or organizalion .
. recelva {1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue It U.S. ledera) tontracts, -subcontracls,
s toans, grants; sub-grants, and/ar cooperative agreemonts; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
* gross revenuas from U.S, federal mntracls sub:onlracls Toans, granls. subgrants, and/or '
ey . tooperalive agreemenis? i .- _
. . X N % . vEs coF ' ]
PO ] i~ -= 2
« © jfthe snswer o 72 sbove is NO, stap hese ~
If the answar 10 #2 above Is YES, please answer [he following: . b
s . - L . 4
: 3. Does the public hove atcess to Information about (he compensation of the execulives in yous” i
business or organizatlon throuph periodic reparts fded under section 13{a) or 15(d) of he Securilfes 5 I
. Cxchange Aclof 1934 (15 U.5.C.7Bm(a), 78ald)) or section-6104 of tho Intarnal Revenve Cote of -
- L} - 19389 ' " ¢ - - '“ «
- - ) B ? a- " No - ., YES k] e -, . R u'_
. .. . s i ’ .
- “ It answet 1o #3 above is YES, stop here Y : . ’
* . ‘ li the answer o #3 above is NO please answor the !oilo\a;ing' . B o
- =0 4. The names and compensation of lhe ﬁve mos! highly compensated officers In yom busingss ar ’;‘; “
T organization-are as lollows:- o . ; &
B Name' I : ‘Ambdunt! & s i3
’ '3‘ ) * . .
Nome; : Amounl: _ .y RN
. * o Names__. % o Amounl:, ) ! "
Name: .- & Amounb, v ¥ . . . 4
. T . : e w4
Name: .. Amount: ‘ . i
e . SIS S ) e i -
b ) . - - -
‘- ) - ';‘. “ -.: -
Y # 1 ‘ &' s r o . ,§ A
» 2 . Yo K :l.-‘ - . E , A
£l J ~ Cestification Reparding the Federal Funding  Conimaetorinfilals™——___ .
ALcoumabiiy And Transporenty ACl{FFATA} Compliance = 6/8 /zo; 1 ! o
. CUPRELICH Page el2 ‘ Deta, e
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New Hampsh:re E)epartment of Health and Human Sarvices

- . . . Exhibli K .
. L ':.‘. R * ':
DHHS Information Secirity Requ:remenls g C e

&t - A L % T B . 3

. a.‘f' —~ 1 - : - - - - — ~ s

: A Deﬁntlnons . : ¢ e ‘ )

1 . * YHha following lerms may be reﬂec!ed and have the descnbed maanlng in lhts documem' ’ ' ';
[}

‘1, *Bresch” means the loss af contror compmmlse. unautharized disclosure, .
unaulhorized acquisilion, unauthdrized eccess, or eny similar term refarring lo

* siluations where persons olher than aulhicrized users and for an other than R

z authorized purpase heve ateess of potenlial access 10 personally identifiable. =

' information, whelher physical ar elsclronic. With regard lo Protected Health ot

_ Information, * Breach™ shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach™inseglion =~ - = _

Bow 164.402 of Tille 45, Code of Federsl Regulations, _ T

-

R 2 Cornpuler Security inciden!” shall have the same meaning ‘Computer Security 5,
Incident” in saction two {2} of NIST Publicaiion 800-61, Computer Security Incident :
Handling Guide, National Institute of Standarus pnd Techno!ogy‘ 1.8, Depanment .
, - ol Commerce. i : Lo = |
3. ~Confidential Informalion® of 'Conﬂdenlial Data® means all confidentlal information :
disclosed by .one pary to tha other such as all medical, health, financial, public
‘ f .- assistance benefits and personat information including without limitation, Substance
i "' - Abuse Teealment Racords, Case, Records, Prowgtled Healih. !n!ormal:on g
: ' Personallyldentrrabla Information, . '

A e
2y v w
By,

LR TN

B

(e

Confidential Jnformation also includes any and all mrormahon owned or managed by
the State of NH - crealed, recaivad from or on bahall of the Depariment of Health ard
Human Services (DHKS) or accessed -in the course of perorming eontrecled
- servicas - of which collection, disclosure, proteciion, and dlSpOSlhon 1s gaverned by
stale or federal law or regulation. This information includes, but is not timited o i
... 'Protected Heatth Information (PHI), Personal Information (Pl). Personal. Financial ; i
v 1 ni*  Informatlon (PFI), Feders) Tex Informalion (Fl’l) Social Security Numbers (SSN), R-NY T3
~ Payment Card Industry (PC1), and or other sensitive and confidentlal information, . S

4. "End User means any person or enlity (e.g., contraclor, contracior’s: employoe,
business " sssoclale, subconlraclor, other downstream user, olc.) that feceivas

DHHS data or derivative data in.accordance with-the terms of this Contract. ':'
. T 'HIPAA means the Health Insurance Portabllity and Accountablmy Aciof 1686 and tha ’ .
Ty T regulauons promulgated thareunder. _ Y s .
# 6. “Incident” means an act that, potentialiy- vio!ales &n expllc-t or implied secunty palicy, = e ‘

Y A whichincludas attempls (either fafled orsuccesstul) to gain unauthorized access to o

- 7 system or ils 0313, unwanted disruplion or denizl of sepvice, the unaulhorized use o} -
_ 8 system for the’ processing or slorage of dala; and changes lo syslem hardwase, -

Lk - firmware, or softwara characlerislics withoul the owner's knowlacge, instruction, or

¢ , N consant. Incidents Include thé 105 of data through theft or device misplacement, loss

w . or misplaceman! of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or ejacgriomc

Eahlbitk . °
e DHHS Infornption -
i . ’ o o Secutlly Requirementy . 67872021 e -

Bl e PG 1OID Doie - x;:" £

]




' DccuS‘i:g'n-Enva%opa 1D EF3235AD-FSDF-4676.61£8-B80815874471 .
t

DocuSign Envelopa I0; C1¢FB|75-12FE-4130—§7‘83~C§ 1COF11E4AE

-

DocuSigh Erivelosd ID: SFOISEFE-EFB4-43E1-8068-8055C0512088
DocuBign Ememom:mew:mnMsmsudemm

"

2

-

New Hampshire Department af Health and Human Sarwces i
& Exhibit K
“E . DHHS Information Security Requirements

i & .

—
A%

3 (‘”-'RESPONSIBIUT(ES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR -

a ’ i g A, Busmass Use and Disclosure ol Canlidential (nformation.

3 1.

P

~ States Depanmenl of Health and Human Servloes . . s

4

AL

mall, alt'of whrch may have the polenlial o pul’ lhe dalz a! risk of unaulhorized
Booess, use, dISCIOSUfe modilication or desirucllon “ .
“Opén Wifaless Nelwork™ means any network or sepgment af a network that is
-not designated by the Stale of New Hampshlre's Dapastment-of Information
Technology or delegetsé as- a protetled network (deslgned, tested, and’
appraved, by means of the Slale, lo transmit} wili be considered an open
network and not sdequately secure [or the transmission of unencrypted PI, PFI,

PHI or confidential DHMMS dala. <

"Parsonal information” {or 'PI") means-aformation which can be used to dus'lmgulsh
of trace an Individual's-identity, such as their name, soctal security number, personal
infosmation as defined In New Hampshire RSA 350 C:19, biometdc records, etc.,
akne, or when combined with othe? personal or idenlifying lnformahon which Is: lmked
of linkable to a spegilic individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden

~hameg, elc.

B

“Privacy Rule® shall mean the Standards for Privacy of lnmvldua!!y ldenhﬁab}e Health
information 8l 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgaled under HiPAA by the United

i

2 A0, "Pror.ec!ed Health {aformation” {of "PHI") has the ame meamng as pmv:ded inthe

dafinition of "Protected Health Inron'natton in tha HIPAA .Pmracy Ruia a145CFR. §
160.103.

i

R = 11, *Security’ Rule™*shall mean the Sacurlly Stangards for the Proleclion of' Elzcironic

Protecied Health Information 3! 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart G, and amendmems
therelo. .

2 .f' _12 *Unsecured Protected Healih Information” means Protected Health. lnfonnanon thal is

no! secured by & techrolopy stondard that renders Protected Health Informalion
unusable, unreagdabls, -or Endeclpherabie to. unauthorlzed individuals and -is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization thal Is accredited by
tho American National Standards Inslitule.

o

]
EL)

The Contragior musl not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Conrdenha! Informalmn
except as reasanably necessary as-oullined under this Conlract, Funher, Contractor, -
including but not limited to all its dicectors, officers, employees and agents, musi aol

I

rn

use, disclosa, meintaln or transmit PHI In any mannar lha! would constilute a violation -

of the Privacy and Security Rule,

= 2. The Conlraclor must not disr,lose any Conf‘den!lal ‘Infarmalion ln response toa
R ‘ ; . ot

g " L . 2 ) - l T

o V5. Lastupdale 100210 B K o " Contratiornlials .,

J " DHHS Information 3
: -5 Socurlly Requbremonls . 67872021 -
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New Ha’_ri';bs'ﬁlre Department of Health and Human Services

.i'é

HHS InformationSecurity Requirements

i

Exhibit K

e
i

&

{I, - METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA ‘-

iz

3

R B

-

rehuest for

£ PR

a H *
a - .

disclosure on the basls that it ig required by law, in response 10 o

- subpoena, elc., without first notifying DHHS. 5o thal DHHS has an opportunily to - -

consent of objec! 1o the disclasure. :

3. if DMHS polifids the Corltractor that OHHS has ‘agreed to be hound by addiional
resiriclions ovet and abbve those uses or disclosures or securlly safeguards of PH!

-pursuant lo

the Privacy and Securily Rule, the Contracior must be bound by such

additional testrictions- and must not disclose PHI In violation of such addilional

reslrictions and must abkle by aay addilional securily safeguards,

4..Tha Conlraclor égrees thal OHHS Data or dedvaiive Lherg from disclosed to an-End
User must‘only be used pursuanl lo tha teras of this Conlracl. R ’

5. The Conttacior agrees DHHS Daté oblaingd under this Conlracl may not be used for

" any other purposes that are not indicated in Infs Conlact.

o .

.. B. Tne Contraclor agrees to gran! access 10 the dala to the guthorized ropresentatives
ol DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to canfimm qgmptiancer with the terms of s

1, Applicalion Engryplion, Il End User is lransrﬁmin{; DRHS  dala -conlaining

Contract, )

i . ¢

Confidentie} Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications havé
 been cvaluated by an experl knowledgeable in cyber securily and that said
application's encryption capabililies ansure secure ransmission viathe internet.

., 2. Computer Disks and Portabls Storage Devices. End User may not use compuler disks

. or portable storage devices, such as & thumb drive, 25 o'method of transmitling DHHS
dala. e '

3, Encrypted Emall. End User may onty employ email to transmjt Con_ﬁden!jal Data if .
emall is encrypled and being sent to and being received by email bddresses of

;o PRrsons avthorized to'raceive such Informalion. ) -
4, Encrypled Web Site. If Eng User is employing the Web 1o transmit ConfRidential

113

Data, the sécura’ socket layeis (SSL) musi be used and the web sile must be

secure, :SSL encrypls dala rensmilted via a Web site.

i

5. File Hosting Services, also known ds File Sharing Shes.-End User may nol use file
hosting services, such as Orapbox -of Google Cioud Storape, 1o transmil .

Configenlial Cata.

= dnat,

6. Ground Mail Servica, End Lser may only tronsmit Confidentiat Data via cortified ground
mail within the continental U,S, and whefrsent to @ named individual,
_ 7. Laplops and PDA. U End User is employing poniable devices to transmil
. Confidential Dala said devices must be encrypled and password-prolected. - 5
) 8. ‘Open Wireless Networks. End Usar may not transmil Confidential Oata via an open
. CF . o o . o
V5. Lost upsato 10709113 " G K ) -cwa;m;,mmu:ﬂ- -
. o - DHHS Informatien o
bR . Sacurily Raquiisments . T B B8/2021
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- . "Instalied on the End User's maobila device(s) or lapiop fram which infermation will be L B

T, undar this Contract. To this end, the parties must:
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o _ DHHS Information Securlty Requirsments ° -

o - g ‘.
L “m

el )
o

‘- witeléss network, End User rnust amploy 3 virlual prlvale network (VPN] when

e -remo!eiy transmilling via an open wireless network. ni.

- -

9. Remme User Communication. If End User Is empmylng remolé oommumcauon lo .
. Btecess or transmiy Confidéntial. Oata, a virtLa). private network {VPN) must be ~ ™o

lransmflted ar accessed ) . )

10, 5SH File Transfer Prosoco‘ (SFTP), also known as Secure File Transfer Prolocal. IF-
End User Is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User wilt e
. strotture the Folder end access prvileges to prevent inappropriale disclosure of S
wo T information, SFTP folders and sub-folders used for ransmilling Confidential Data wi te
' be coded for 24-hour.auto-delefion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24 !
hours) L e .t ; . i

1. ereless Devices. If End User is Iransmiltting Canfidential Data via wireless devices, sl .
data must be enceypledto prevenl inappropriate disclesuse of information. ¢

. H. .RETENI—IGN AND D!SPDSITI,ON oF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS I

The Canlractor wil only retaln Lhe data and any derivalive of the data for the duration of this 4y
Contracl, ARter-such time, the. Contratior will have 30 days 1o daslroy the data and any" 1
derivative in whalever fom- it may exist, unless, olhenwise requxred by faw or permntted

\ A. Relention - r " w . : e
: 1. The Contraclor agrees il will not store, transfer or process dala collecled In
conneclion with the services rendered under Ihis Conlract oulside of the United Se
States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementalion of -
i . cloud computing, ¢loud-service or cloud slorage capab:hhes ang Inclugdes backup -t
. ~. data and Disaster Recovery locations, o . :

2. The Contracior agraes {o ensure praper secumy mbmlormg capabllities are in
W pace ta-datacl polential securily events that can inipaci State of NH syslsms
i andfor Departmeni canfidzntial Infarmation for conlraclor providsd sysiems,

* 3. The-Conleaclor agrees o provide security .awarenass and education far iis End -
i Users in support-of pro[ecllng Dapartment confidential Infosmation. . LN ¢

o wad

- 4. The Contractor. agrees Io retain all electronic and hatd coples of Oonl?denl:al Dala
- . Inasecure kacation and identified In seclion V. A.2 . . gy

5. The Contracior .3grees -Conligentia} Dala slored in & Cloud must be In a

o FedRAMPIHITECH oompliant solutfon and comply with a1l applicable statutes and Y
R _ g . regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have E g
' ) - currently-supporied and hardened opersling sysiams, the lalas! anti-viral, anlis .
o hacker, gnti-spam, anli-spyware, and anli-malware utifilies: The environmenl, as s

. . B4
- T . . M N ‘ \ 4, L‘IJ ) - .
; V5. Los epdals 107088 . Eawpitk Contracior mmma_‘_‘_{__,

BHRS tnlomation ™ f 2
' : Securily Reguiremonts © 6J872021
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B whole, must have aggnessive Intrusion-detection and firewall protoction.

6.. The Conlractor agrees to-snd ansures lis complete cospérallon with the Stata's
- Chiel information Officer in the dataction of any securily vulnerability or thehasling
fnfrastructure.

B. Oisposilion .

1. If the Conlactor wiil mainlain any Conrdenilai Information on R systems:{or its
sub:eonlcactor syslems) the Contracler will maintain a documenied process for
securely disposing of Such dala upon requesl or contracl lernsination; and wil

- obtain wrillen cedification for any State of New Hampshlra data destroyed by the

.= Conlracior or any subconiraclors as a par of ongeing, emergency, and or disaster
- recavery operalions. When no longer in use, slectronic media containing Siste of
New Hampshlre tata shall be rendered unrecoverable via-'a secure wipe program
in accordance with industry-accepled standards for secure delefion and media
sanlitzallan, of otherwizse physically deslroying: the -media (for example,
degaussing) as described n NIST Special Publication 800-88, Rev 1, Guidalings

% for Madia Sanitization, Naticnal (nskiute of Standards end Technology. u. s,

Depardment of Commerge. Tha Conlractor wilt document and cerdify {n writing at
time.af the dala deslruction, and will provide writlen certification 1o the Oepartment
upen request. The wilien cedificalion wili include 3ll details necessary lo

-demongirate dala has been properly destroyed and validated. Where spplicable,

avalualed by the State and Contracier prior Lo destruction.

2. Unless othérwise ‘speciied, within thirty (30) days of the lemmination of this
- Contraci, Conlractor agrees to deslroy afl hard copies of Confidenlial Data-ysing &
secure method such at shredding. V.

3. Unless olhewise specified, wilhin thitty (30) days of the termination of this
. Conlraci, Conlratior agrees to completely destioy all electronfe .Confidential Dats:
' by means of dala arasure, atso known as secure dala wiping, -~ ;

.\.-J

W PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A, Contraclor agress o safequard the OHHS Data received under,this Ccamract and aﬁy
derivative dala or fes, as loliows: - 5 v

1. The Coniraclor wil mainlaln proper security controls to ptotect Depanment

- confdential, Information collacted, pfocessed managéd, andior stared In the dellvery
. .of contracted services.

2, The conlrac{or will mainiain po!ic\es and procedutes 1o pictect Deparimen\'
confidéntial information throughout the Information fifecycls, where applicabla, {Irom-

creation, transformalion, use, storage and secure destruction)- regardless of the
! . media used to slore tha data {i.e.. tapse. disk. paper, etc.).
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3. The 'Contractor wit maintain appropriate sulientication and access conlrals 1o
. . ‘contraclor systems that coltect, teansmit, or store Depaﬂmem conrdentiathrozmatlon

- whare applicable. o

- . £

4. The Comfsctor wil ensure proper, securily monlitoring capablhhes are in.place 10
detect polential security’ evenis (hat can Impact State. of NH systems _andfor
Depantment conrdemm iniformation foF.contractor provided systems,

-

‘ 5 The Con!rac!or vnll prov:de tegular.securily awarariess and edugalion for its End
s Users in suppon of prorecling Oapanmént confidential Informatlon.

* 6. If the Conlraclor will be subcontracting any core functions of the engagemenl

. " supponting the services for Slale of New Hampshire, the Contcactor will malntaln a

program of an intemal process: or procésses Ihat defines spegific securily

B expettations, and monitoring compliance to sesurity requirements Ihat at a minimum
mateh thase far the Conlraclor including bréach notification requurements

- 7. Tha Conlractor will work with the Depaﬁment o sign &nd comply with ail applicable
] Stala of New Hampshira and Dapartment- syslam 8eoess, and authorizalion policies
o e and pracedures, systems sccess forms, and compuler use agreements as par of
- abialning end maintaining access o any Depatmant system(s). Agraemeants will be
s - complgled and signed by the Centractor and any applicable sub- contraclors prier o
W syslam access being authorized. - .. o
. _ 8. ilhe Depadmem delermines the Contractor Is 2 Busmess Associate pirsuant to 45
: b CFR 160,103, the Contractor will execule a HIPAA Business Associale Agrasmant
4 {BAA) with the Department and is reSpons:b!e for maintaining cnmphance with the
agreemenl, . ‘-

o " 9. The Contractor wil work wilh the. Depattment al ils reques!. 1o complale a Syslem -
* Management Survey The purpese of the survay is 10 enable the Department and
_ Caniractor to monitor for gny changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilies that may
“ 24 oceur over the dife of the Contraclor engagemen!. The survey 'will be completed
annually, or an alternate 1ime frama at tha Dapartmants discretion with: -agrepmen! by
the Contractor, or (he Department may request the survey be coripleted when the
scope of the engsgoment belween the Oepariment. and the Conlractor changes.

"
w

% . 10.-The Conlractor will not siore, knoMngly o unknowmg!y, any State ol New Hgmpshirs
or Depaimen) data offshore or oulside the boundarias of the United Stales unless
prior express wrillen consent is:oblained from the |nformat:on Secunty COffice
Isadership member within the Depantment, #

e , - %1, Dala Secutity Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach’ Contractor shall
B make elforls to Invesligale the cavses of the breach, promplly 1zke measures to
‘ prevent future breach and minlmize any damage or loss resuliing from {hs breach,
# The Slale shall recover [rom the Contractor ell costs of response end recovery from
* -3}
!!;. . '._ ks v B '_ J!:N'
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\he-breach, including but ngt limiled: lo: credit monilo:iﬁg seevices, malling costs and
costs associated wnh websi!e ang {elephone call cenler servites necessary dué to W
o the breach, . :

. ta -
- N - . « e

12. Conlraclor mus!, comply with all applicable slatutes and regulanons regardmg the

- = privacy and secwiily of Conlidential Information, and must in.ald other- respscts
mainlain the privacy and security of Pl and PHI al & level and scope that Is nol fess

b * than the lave! and scope of requirements applicable o federal agencies, inclutiing, R

- but not fimited to, provisions of the Privecy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a), DHHS
- . Privacy Acl-ReguIa!ions {45 CF.R. §5b), HIPAA Privacy.and Securily Rules (45
. C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) thal govern protections for individually identifiable -nealih . e

" information and as applicable under State bow: . oa T

(113

]
s

e

JwLy R pRM

P . T "13, Contractor agrees to establish and malnlaln appropriste adminisirative, lechnical, and ., .
physicat safeguards to prolect the cenfidentiality of the Confidential Data 'and lo
¢ preven! unauthorized yse or access 1o Jl. The safeguards must provide a level and
¥ - scape of securily Ihal is'not less than the level and Scope of secuily requitements
e established by the State of New Hampshire, Departiment of Information Technology.”
ks ! Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement 8l hitps:/iwew.nh.govidoivendorfindex.him i
«  for the Depariment of Information Technology policigs, guidelines, standards, .and . ;
i procyremenl inrormation relating 16 véndors, . i

’ +

14, Conlraclor sgrees to malntain a documented breach nofification and Incident %
. response process. The Conlractor: will nolily the State's Privacy Officer and the
v S - Stale's Securily Officer of any security breach immedialely, al ths emall sddresses L
. provided in Saction Vi, This includes & confidential infoimalion ‘breach, computer B
B securily incident, or suspecied breach which affests or Includes any State of New 3
Hempshire syslems thal connecl lothe Stalé of New Hampshire network. ‘ %
*e .y 18 Conlrattor must. teslnct access 10 the Confidenlial Dats obtained wndec this
‘Conlracl to only. those autharized End Users who ‘need such DHHS Dala to,
perform their olficial dulies in conrection with purposes identified in this Contracl.

A

nivat o
S

"

16. The Coniractor must ensure that all End Users: * T ¥

s 3. comply wilh such saleguards as referenced In Seclion IV A. sbove,
. W implemented lo protéct Confidantial Inloimation that is [urdlghed by DHMS
o under this Conlract from lass, thefl of Inadvertent disclosure. s,
%o . b, ssleguard this Information al alltimes. . . . )
% .c. ensure lhat laplops and olher electronic devicesimedia contalning PHI, Pl ot~ ¥
PFlare encrypled and password-prolecled. o 5t

N d. send erails conlairing Confidential Information only il encrypled and baing W &
5 sent 10 end being réceved by- emall addresses of persons aulhorlzad o7 e
, recelve such Information. . L
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s shared with anyone. End Users wil) keep their credential informatlon secuse, o

v, Lost updalo 1ODRIG ‘EowbK T Contmcdrindaty '

< ¥ et

.. [limit disclosure of the Confidantial Information Lo the extent permitled i)y law.

. Confidential {nformalion received wnder this Conlragt and individually
idanlifights dala darivad from DHHS Dala, must be. stored in an arsa lhat i3 o
physically and lechnolopically seoure from access by unauthorlzed parsons, .. .

during duty hours as woll as non-duly hours (e.g., doot Iccks card keys, st

blamelric Identifiers, elc.).

9. only authorized End Users may lransmll the Confidential Data, including any
derivative fles containing personally identiiable information, and In all cases,
such data must e encrypled ai all times when In transit, sl rest, or when-
slared on porlabla media as required in seclion IV above. Y] L

-bh. in all other instances Confidertia) Data must be malnlained, used and "
disciosed using appropriate safeguards as -delermined by a: ﬂsk based . . vy
assessment of the circumstances involved. '

i. . understand that their user cradentials (user name and password) must not be .

. This applies lo credentials used-lo access the siie direcily or Indnrchy through
‘a third parly app!lcahon

=

: ) .

5 e B 2
Contractor s rasponsidle for oversight and compliance of their End Users,” DHHS
reserves (e righl lo conducl onsite énspeclions -lo monitor compliance with this *+ &
Centracl, including the privacy and securily requirements provided In herein, HIPAA, . £
and olher applicable laws and Federa) regulations unlil such lime.the Conﬁdanhal Data -

‘is disposed of In accordance with this Con!rac!

LOSS REPORTING

2

§9

i) N
“». -
hu -

The Conlraclor must nol'iry the Sigle's.Privacy Officer and Security Gfficer of any
Segurity Incidenis and Breaches Immedialely, at the emall addresses provided in )
Secuon W, ;_. LA

EY 'i" $ 1Y

Y

Tho Coniractor must further handle and report -tncidents and Breaches mvoIvIng PHI In
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Hangling and Breach Nolificatlon
procedures -and In accondance with 42 CF.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. in eddition 10, and
notwathswndmg, Contrattor's compliancs with 2l applicable obligalions and procedures.
Conlraclor's procadures must also address how tho Conlractor will: . o

ERN | *

1. Menlify Incidents; o

2. Deermine if porsonally (entifiable Information s involved Innciderts; .
3, Report suspected of conrrmed incidents as requlred in this Exhibit or P-37; - - T
4

. ldentily and‘convene 8 core responge group o determine the risk tevel of Incidents”
and delermine risk-based responses 1o Incidents; and *
- ]"T’“":

. fs. ;
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e . §: Delermine whather Breach nolification Is faquired, end, il so, identify appropriate
W Breach folificalion melhods, liming, source, and conlents from among different

T ' 'oplions. end bear casls associated with the Begach potice as weall as any mtllgahon
N i 3 < mBasureS. . ™ - i

* i ko lnc!dems andfar Breaches thal implicale Pl must ba addressed and repoded as
> eppl:cah!a.inacoordance with NH REA 358-C:20. . o
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P . V. ‘PERSGNS TO CONTA.CT - o y 3
e x
N ~ A DHHS Prvacy Off cer: s 3 . .
- P DHHSPnuacyOIfcer@dhns nh. gov . T -
y * B, DHHS Secuiity Officer: - ' e .
. DHHSInformationSecurityOtfice@dhhs nh.gov - . P o
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